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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To 
The Members ofVeritas (India) Limited, 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 33rd Annual Report on the business and operations 
of the Company together with the audited accounts for the financial year ended 31 51 March, 2018. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Company has adopted IND AS for the year ended 31 51 March, 2018 and has restated the 
accounts of financial year ended 31 51 March, 2017 in IND AS format as tabled below: -

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

2017-2018 2016-2017 2017-2018 2016-2017 

Revenue from 5,29,86,54,265 5,40,76,77,164 16,80,36,16,810 16,50,74,41,317 
operations (including 
other income) 

Profit before tax 9,58,34,725 8,30,14,307 71,76,48,002 70,25,20,768 

Less: Provision for 
Taxation 

Current Tax 2,24,64,207 1,96,03,433 2,24,64,207 1,96,03,422 

Deferred Tax 1,19,56,884 (65,84,932) 1,19,37,830 (66,15,696) 

Current Tax Expenses (55,462) 2,21,682 (55,462) 1,77,468 
related to prior Years 

Profit after Tax for the 6,14,69,095 6,97,74,123 68,33,01,426 68,93,55,574 
current year 

Add: Balance in Profit & 147,82,99,794 140,31,88,147 1172,26,14,776 1110,45,33,880 
Loss Account brought 

forward 

Add: Credit for Tax on 0 2,74,400 0 2,74,400 
Dividend 

Add: Transfer to Capital 0 66,70,000 0 6,06,850 
Work -in-progress 

Add: Transfer from 0 0 0 66,70,000 
Capital Reserves 

Profit available for 0 ° 0 0 
Appropriation 

Less: 

- Proposed Dividend (13,40,500) (13,40,500) (13,40,500) (13,40,500) 



- Dividend Distribution - (2,74,400) (2,74,400) 
Tax 

Balance transferred to 153,84,82,852 147,82,99,794 1244,44,83,759 1172,26,14,776 
Balance Sheet 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS: 

The standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 
2017 -18 have been prepared for the first time, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Following are the figures and comparison of the operations of the Company for the financial year 
ended 3 pt March, 2018: 
Standalone revenue from operations decreased to Rs. 524,88,95,415/- as compared to previous 
year's revenue ofRs. 534,01,76,4191-. 
Consolidated revenue from operations increased to Rs. 1679,31,50,944/-as compared to previous 
year's revenue ofRs. 1648,47,92,0511-. 
Standalone Profit after Tax decreased to Rs. 6,14,69,095/- as compared to previous year's profit 
after tax ofRs. 6,97,74,123/-. 
Consolidated Profit after Tax is Rs. 68,33,01,426/-
as compared to previous year's profit after tax ofRs. 68,93;55,574/-

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

During the year under review, there were no material changes and/or commitments affecting the 
financial position of the company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 5 (Five) paise per Equity Share ofthe face 
value ofRe. 11- (Rupees One only) each for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2018 payable to 
the shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members as on the Book Closure date. 
The Dividend is payable subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. 

The total cash outgo on account of dividend payment for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2018 
will be Rs. 13,40,500/- (Rupees Thirteen Lakhs FOlty Thousand Five Hundred Only). 
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

Your Company propose not to transfer any fund out of its total profit for the financial year 2017-
2018 to the General Reserves of the Company. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year 
ended 31 5t March, 2018 are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions 
of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as applicable along with all relevant documents and the 
Statutory Auditors' Report forms part of this Annual Report. 

The detailed Financial Statements as stated above are also available on the website of the Company 
and can be accessed at the web linle http://www.veritasindia.netlannual_reports.asp 

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES COMPANIES 

Your company has ten subsidiay's including overseas subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries and 
Limited Liability Paltnership (LLP). 

As on 31 5t March 20 18, Your Company owned following wholly owned subsidiaries I Step down 
subsidiaries companies and LLPs within India and abroad: 

1. Veritas Infra & Logistics Private Limited, incorporated in India 
2. Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited, incorporated in India 
3. Veritas Polychem Private Limited, incorporated in India 
4. Veritas International FZE, incorporated in Dubai, UAE 
5. Hazel International FZE, incorporated in Sharjah, UAE 
6. Veritas Global PTE Limited, incorporated in Singapore 
7. GV Investment Finance Company Limited, incorporated in Mauritius 
8. Veritas America Trading INC, incorporated in USA 
9. Veritas Infra LLP, incorporated in India 
10. Veritas Agricom LLP, incorporated in India 

During the financial year ended 31 51 March, 2018, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of 
Company's subsidiaries as mentioned above. Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and new IND AS (Accounting Standards) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of 
India, Consolidated Financial Statement presented by the Company includes the financial 
statements of its subsidiaries. Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited is a material subsidiary of 
the company. Company is in process of closing two of its subsidiaries, Veritas America Trading 
INC, incorporated in USA and GV Investment Finance Company Limited, incorporated in 
Mauritius. 
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Further, in accordance with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(1) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the report on the performance and financial position of all the 
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements is provided in the prescribed Form AOC-l as 'Annexure I' which forms pati of this 
report. 

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall place 
separately audited/unaudited accounts of each of its subsidiaries on its website at 
www.veritasindia.net and the same shall be available for inspection by the Members at the 
registered office of the Company during the business hours on all working days between 10.30 
A.M. to 5.30 P.M. except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of ensuing AGM. Members 
interested of obtaining a copy of the said financial statements shall write to the Investor Relations 
Department at the Registered Office of the company. 

Your Company has approved a policy for determining material subsidiaries and the same is 
uploaded on the Company's website which can be accessed using the link 
http://www.veritasindia.netlpdfIVIL-Material Subsidiary Policy-New .pdf 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operations. Such controls have been assessed during the year under review 
taking into consideration the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Based on the results of such assessments carried out by 
Management, no reportable material weakness or significant deficiency in the design or operation 
of internal financial controls was observed. Nevertheless, your Company recognizes that any 
internal control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations and accordingly, 
regular audits and review processes ensure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis. 

Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) - IFRS Convergence 
Your Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") for the accounting periods 
beginning on 1 st April, 2017 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 16th 

February, 2015 notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

A detailed analysis of your Company's performance is discussed in Management Discussion and 
Analysis RepOli, which forms part of this Annual Report. (Annexure V) 
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO WITH 
RELATED PARTIES 

During the financial year ended 3 pt March, 2018, your Company has entered into transactions 
with the related parties as defmed under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Rules made there under and the Listing Regulations. All related party transactions are in the 
ordinary course of business and are on arm's length basis. All related party transactions are placed 
on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and were reviewed and approved by the Audit 
Committee. Further, there were no transactions with related parties which qualify as material 
transactions under the Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party 
transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is 
not applicable. In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the 
Listing Regulations, your Company has formulated a policy on Materiality of Related Party 
Transaction and on dealing with related party transactions duly approved by the Board and is 
uploaded on the website of the Company. 
Website: http://www.veritasindia.netlpdfNIL PolicylRelated-Party-Transaction-&-the-manner­
of-dealing-with-Related-Party-Transaction. pdf 

The details of the transactions with related parties and the status of outstanding balances as per 
Accounting Standard 18 are set out in Note nos. 36 to the Standalone Financial Statements forming 
part of this repmi. 

STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The reports given by the Mis. M. P. Chitale & Co., Statutory Auditors on standalone and 
consolidated financial statements of the Company forms part of the Annual Report. There are no 
qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers given by the Statutory Auditors in their 
reports. The notes on financial statements referred to in the Statutory Auditors' Report are self­
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 

SECRET ARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

The Board has appointed Mis. JMJA & Associates LLP, Practising Company Secretaries to 
undertake secretarial audit of the company pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31 51 March, 2018 as submitted by them 
is annexed as Annexure II and forms pati of this Report. 

There are no qualifications or observations or adverse remarks or disclaimer of the Secretarial 
Auditors in the Report issued by them for the financial year ended 31 5t March, 2018 which call for 
any explanation from the Board of Directors. 

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors 

During the year under review, the Statutory and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any 
instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit 
Committee under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be 
mentioned in this Repmi. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARNATEES GIVEN 
AND SECURITY PROVIDED 

Particulars of investments made, loans given, guarantees given or security provided and the 
purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security given as proposed to be utilised pursuant to 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") 
are provided in the Note No.4 and 5 to the financial statements. 

PUBLIC DEPOSIT 

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any public deposit within the 
meaning of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

Disclosures with regards to the particulars of Directors, KMPs and employees who are in receipt 
of remuneration in excess of the limits as prescribed under the provisions of Section 197(12) of 
the Act read with Rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended till date as may be applicable are available and the Statement 
containing the details of employee remuneration as required under Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is available for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company during business hours from 21 days before the Annual General Meeting and any 
Member willing to obtain copy of the said statement can write to the Investor Relations 
Department at the Registered office address of the company (Annexure VI). 
In telIDS of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent to the 
Members excluding the information on particulars of employees'. 

BOARD AND COMMITTEES 

DIRECTORS 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company 
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV and the relevant rules made there under and 
Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as an 
independent director during the year. 

Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi has resigned from the position of Whole-Time Directorship w.e.f 12th June, 
2018 but will continue as the Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company. Board 
has appointed after the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee Mr. Praveen 
Bhatnagar as Whole-Time Director of the Company w.e.f 12th June, 2018. 
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In accordance with the Section 152, other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
in terms of Memorandum and Article of Association of the Company, one-third of such of the 
Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer themsel ves 
for re-appointment at every AGM. 

Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-executive Director (DIN: 02000411) retires by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment. 

Key Managerial Personnel 

The following personnel have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company pursuant to Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

(a) Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi Whole-time Director** 

(b) Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar Whole-time Director** 

(c) Mr. Rajaram Shanbhag Chief Financial Officer 

(d) Mr. Prasad A Oak Vice President Legal & Company Secretary 

**Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned as a Whole-Time Director of the company with effect from 12th 
June, 2018 and Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar was appointed as a Whole-Time Director of the Company 
with effect from 12th June, 2018. 

BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried 
out a fOlmal Annual evaluation of its own performance, 
of its Committees, the ChaiIman as well as perfOlmance of the Directors individually. The 
evaluation was done by the way of a structured questionnaires covering various aspects of the 
Board functioning, amongst others vision, strategy & role clarity of the Board, Board dynamics & 
processes, contribution towards development of the strategy, risk management, budgetary controls, 
receipt of regular inputs and information, functioning, performance & structure of Board 
Committees, ethics & values, skill set, knowledge & expertise of Directors, leadership etc. 

A separate exercise was carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ofthe Board 
to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. The performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. 
The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The performance evaluation of the Chairman of the 
Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors, considering the views of the 
Executive Director. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
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SEBI vide its guidance note dated 5th January, 2017 has suggested process/practice that may be 
adopted by the Companies for perfOlmance evaluation. The Company is evaluating the required 
changes, if any, in the performance evaluation process as per the SEBI guidance note. 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS 

Your Company has in place a structured induction and familiarization program for all its Directors 
including the Independent Directors. Your Company through such programs familiarizes not only 
the Independent Directors but any new appointee on the Board with a brief background of your 
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature of the industry in which it operates, business 
model operations, ongoing events, etc. In order to enable the Directors to fulfill the governance 
role, comprehensive presentations are made on the various businesses, business models, risk 
minimization procedures and new initiatives of the Company. Changes in domestic/overseas 
corporate and industry scenario including their effect on the Company, statutory and legal matters 
are also presented to the Directors on a periodic basis. They are also informed of the important 
policies of your Company including the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel and the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. The details regarding the 
familiarization program imparted by the Company can be accessed on the website of your 
Company on the Web-Link: http://www.veritasindia.netlinvestor_downloads.asp 

Further, at the time of appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter 
of appointment outlining his/her role, function, duties and responsibilities as a Director. The 
template of the letter of appointment is available on the website of your Company at Web-Link: 
http://www.veritasindia.net/investor _ downloads.asp 

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION 

As part of good governance and also in accordance of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
adopted a policy for Board Diversity, Appointment, Remuneration, Training and Evaluation of 
Directors and Employees. The Policy inter alia includes criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence notice of a director and other matters provided under Sub section 
(3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of such Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy on the appointment of Directors and remuneration is annexed as Annexure III and forms 
part of this Annual Report. 
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 
134(3)(0 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Pursuant to provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Director's 
Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm: 

That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31 st March, 2018, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31 st March, 2018 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that 
date; 

That they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

That Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern' basis; 

That they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 

That they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

During the financial year ended 31 st March, 2018, five meetings of the Board of Directors were 
held. Meetings were held on 25/05/2017, 11/08/2017, 12/09/2017, 14112/2017 and 12/02/2018 
respectively. The details of attendance of Board of Directors and its Committees in respective 
meetings are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report under the heading "Board of 
Directors" forming part of this Annual Report. 

Board Committees 

Audit Committee 

The Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
1. Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Independent Director 
2. Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-Executive Director* 
3. Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar, Whole-Time Director* 
4. Mrs. Kamala Aithal, Independent Director** 
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*Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned as a Whole-Time Director of the company and became N on­
Executive Director with effect from 12th June, 2018 and Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar was appointed as 
a Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect from 12th June, 2018. 

**Mrs. Kamala Aithal was appointed as the Member of the Audit Committee of the company 
w.e.f. 11 tl! August, 2017. 
Mr. Shafi Sayeed Parkar, Independent Director resigned from Audit Committee w.e.f. 12th June, 
2018. 

Members of the Committee possess accounting and financial management knowledge. Two third 
of the members of the Committee are independent Directors. 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. 

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
1. Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Independent Director 
2. Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania. Non-executive Director 
3. Justice (Retd.) S. S. Parkar, Independent Director 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
1. Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-executive Director 
2. Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-executive Director* 
3. Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Independent Director 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. 

*Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned as a Whole-Time Director of the company with effect from 12th 

June, 2018 and continued as a Non-Executive Director of the Company. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

CSR Committee comprises of the following Directors: 
1. Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-executive Director 
2. Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-executive Director* 
3. Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Independent Director 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. 
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*Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned as a Whole-Time Director of the company with effect from 12th 
June, 2018 and continued as a Non-Executive Director of the Company. 

GOVERNANCE 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule V to the said Regulations, 
a separate Report on Corporate Governance along with a required Celiificate from Practising 
Company Secretaries regarding the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated forms part of this Annual Report. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Your Company has a well-defined framework for risk management in place to identify, measure 
and mitigate business risk and opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, 
minimize adverse impact on the business objective and enhance the Company's competitive 
advantage. This risk framework thus helps in managing market, credit and operations risks and 
quantifies exposure and potential impact at a Company level. 

Risk management process has been established across the Company and is designed to identify, 
assess and frame a response to threats that affect the achievement of its objectives. Further, it is 
embedded across all the major functions and revolves around the goals and objectives of the 
organization. However, during the year under review there are no such risks which in the opinion 
of the Board may threaten the existence of your organization. 

VIGIL MECHANSIM 

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Rules prescribed there under and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is implemented through the Company's Whistle 
Blower Policy to enable the Directors, employees and all stakeholders of the Company to report 
genuine concerns, to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use 
such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Under this policy, your Company encourages its employees to report any fraudulent financial or 
other information to the stakeholders, and any conduct that results in violation of the Company's 
code of conduct to the management (on an anonymous basis, if employees wish so). Likewise, 
under this policy, your Company has prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any 
kind against any employees who, based on the employee's reasonable belief that such conduct or 
practice has occurred or are occurring, reports that information or participates in the investigation. 
Also, no personnel have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

Whistle Blower Policy of your Company is available on the Company's website and can be 
accessed at the Web-link: http://www.veritasindia.netlinvestor downloads.asp 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

In telIDS of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under, your 
Company has constituted a Committee named as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee. 

The CSR Committee comprises of 
• Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-Executive Director 
• Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-Executive Director* 
• Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Independent Director 

Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. 

*Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned as a Whole-Time Director of the company with effect from 12th 
June, 2018 and continued as a Non-Executive Director of the Company. 

The Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility for recommending to the Board about 
the implementing of the CSR activities. Also, the Committee inter alia monitors the CSR activities. 

The CSR Policy includes a brief overview of the projects and 1 or programs proposed to be 
undertaken by the Company and can be accessed at the Company's website at the Web-link: 
http://www.veritasindia.net/investor downloads.asp 

The gross amount to be spent by the Company during the year is Rs. 16,19,305/-. 

The total amount spent on CSR activities during the year is Rs. 5,95,2151- The amount was spent 
for providing education. 

The amount unspent on CSR during the year, is Rs. 10,24,0901-

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The Company has in place, policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment 
for women at workplace in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up as per the statutory requirements, to redress complaints regarding 
sexual harassment. The policy has set guidelines on the redressal and enquiry process that is to be 
followed by complainants and the ICC, whilst dealing with issues related to Sexual Harassment at 
the work place. All women employees are covered under this policy. 

The company has not received any complaint during the year. 
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SHARE CAPITAL 

The issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as at 31 st March, 2018 
stood at Rs. 26,810,0001- (Rupees Two Crore Sixty-Eight Lakhs Ten Thousand only) comprising 
of 26,81 0,000 fully paid equity shares of Re.1 each fully paid-up. 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting 
rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity. As on 3 pt March, 2018 none of the 
Directors of the Company holds instruments convertible into equity shares of the Company. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Extract of Annual Return as on 31 st March, 2018 in the prescribed format Form MGT -9 is attached 
as Annexure IV and forms part of this report. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 providing for the details of Conservation of energy, technology absorption, 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo are not applicable since the Company is into trading and 
distribution business. 

However, your Directors have taken proper care to conserve the energy during the year under 
review. 

The Company has taken various initiatives for development of export markets for sale of various 
products in the International market to increase its foreign exchange earnings. 

GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

The Chairman of the Company did not receive any remuneration or commission from any of the 
subsidiaries of your Company. The Whole-Time Director of the Company did not receive any 
commission from any of its subsidiaries. 

Your Directors state that no disclosures or reporting is required in respect of the following items 
as there were no transactions/events on these items during the year under review: 
• The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 

otherwise. 
• No Significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 

impact the going concern status or Company's operations in future. 
• Company has not issued Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares and Employee Stock Options) 

to employees of the Company under any Scheme. 
• The Company has not bought back any shares during the year. 
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-:--r---.......... 
Sr. Name of the subsldlary Company Reporting 

No. Period 

WholiV ow;;.dSubiidi.iV 

1 Veritas. Poi~'chem PrI\late limited 31·Mar·18 

2 Veritas Agro Ventures Private limited 31·Mar-18 

Veritaslnfra & logistics Private Umited (Dharni 
3 farming PrIvate Umitedi 31·Mar-18 

eritas America Trading Inc. 31-Mar-IS 

nal FZE 31-Mar-IS 

nal FZE 31-Mar-18 

7 GV lnve!.itment Finance Company Umited 31*Mar*18 

Reponing CUrrffnc.v and 

elCdt.anie rate "5 on the 
last date ot the Fjnancial 

Year] 

INR 

INR 

INR 

Form AOC-I 
(Pursuant to first proviso to suo--section (3} of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the flnandal statement of Substdlaries/A$sociate Companies/Joint Vantures 
Part 'A', Subsldlarle. 

(lnlormatlon In respect 01 each subsidiary to "" presented withamounl' in ft, J 

Share Capital Reserves & Surplus Total Assets TotaIUabUltl •• Investments Turnover 

1().000,OOO 522,526,688 3.421,227,241 2.888.700,553 

100,000 8,348,807,915 8.493.741)187 144,833,572 601,600 235,709 

100,000 (460,168) ................... 1.9,377.018 19,737,186 

~"""'"'' 2,221.629 3,322,798 

USD 89,232,456 5,600,838.145 2,721.469,626 3.422 11,544,019.819 

usa 596,095 23,352 10,217,303,579 10.<16,684.132 

uso 601,600 (2,152,869) 86,438 1,637,707 -

... 
Profit Before 

Ta~ation 

(4,866,165) 

(260,515) 

662,171,389 

-

(453,857) 

-
B Vcritas Global Pte Ltd 31-Mar-IS U5a 3,422 - (455,533) 

Limited Liability Partnership (llP) Contribution 

9 Veritas Agricom LlP 31-Mar-IS INR 500,000 17,013) 494,9S7 (7,013) 

10 Veri!aslnfra lLP 31-Mar-IS INR 1,000,000 (17,030) 1.030,990 48,020 

Notes: 
1 % of SharehoJding Includes dlfect and indirect holding through subsldary 
2 The amounts given in the table above are from the annual aC(QUnts made for the respettive financial year end for each of thi! companies, 
3 The Indlan rupee eqUIvalents of the figures given in foreign currencies in the ac{;ounts of the subsidiary companies. have been gi .... en based on the exchange rates as on 31st March. 2018 i.e. Rs. 65.04 
4 There are no subslt1aries whIch are vet to commence operation, 

-I (410) 

Part B of Form AOC .. 1 fs not applicable to the Company as the Company does not have any Associate Company and Joint Venture 

Plaee~ Mumbal 
Date: 12th June# 2018 
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For Verltas (India) limlted 

Sd/-
NIUn Kumar Didwanfa 

Director 
Sd/-

Raj.ram Shanbhag 
Chief Financial Officer 

5<1/-
Sa.rabl! Sanghvi 

Director 
Sd/-

PrasadA Oak 
Company Secrflary 

Provision For P,ofltAft.r Propo~d %;,~ 

Taxation Taxation Dividend Shareholding 

100 

19,054 (4,847,111) 100 

(260,515) 100 

100 

662,171,389 100 

100 

(453,857) ~ 
(455,533) 100 

(7,013) 100 

1410) 100 



Form No. MR-3 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 

To 

The Members, 

Veritas (India) Limited 

Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 

70, Mint Road, Fort, 

Mumbai-400001 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by Veritas {India) Limited (CIN 

L23209MH1985PLC035702) (hereinafter referred as lithe Company") having its Registered 

Office at Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70, Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai-400001. The Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we 

hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the Audit period April 01, 2017 to 

March 31, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the period April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Commercial 

Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulation, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 

2015 as amended from time to time; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 

Period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to 

the Company during the Audit Period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(vi) The other applicable laws like The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, The Employees

Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 etc.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

(ii) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to

the Board and General Meetings. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. as mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in

the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under

review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c) During the period under review resolutions were carried through majority decisions.

The minutes of the minutes did not reveal any dissenting views by any member of the

Board of Directors during the period under review.
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d) Based on the information provided and the representations made by the Company, its 

officers, and also on review of the compliance reports of the Company secretary, in our 

opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

e) We further report that during the audit period the Company has 

• appointed Ms. Kamala Aithal (DIN: 07832519) as additional Independent 

Director of the Company w.e.f. May 25, 2017 and was also regularized as a 

Director of the Company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

• Appointed Secretarial Auditors/ Internal Auditors. 

• The Company has partly spent on CSR activity. 

• The Company has carried out transactions on arm's length basis. 

For JMJA & Associates LlP 

Practising Company Secretaries 

Sd/-

CS Mansi Damania 

Designated Partner 

FCS: 7447/ COP No.: 8120 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 10, 2018 

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure' and 

forms an integral part of this report. 
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'Annexure' 

To, 

The Members, 

Veritas (India) Limited 

Our report of even date is to be read with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 

that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, Rules, 

Regulations, Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI is the responsibility of the Management. Our 

examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 
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7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, 

authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly 

compliance report by the respective departmental heads/ Company Secretary/ Managing 

Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate systems and 

process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable 

general laws like labour laws & Environment laws and Data protection policy. 

8. We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable fiscal laws like Direct & 

Indirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review 

by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals. 

For JMJA & Associates llP 

Practising Company Secretaries 

Sd/-

CS Mansi Damania 

Designated Partner 

FCS: 7447/ COP No.: 8120 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 10, 2018 
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Annexure III 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 
AND EMPLOYEES AND THEIR REMUNERATION 

I. General: 

The Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made there under in terms of Regulation 19 read with Part D 
of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("the Regulations') requires every Company to formulate the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors. The Company is also required to 
adopt a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees. 

Accordingly, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the company has adopted 
the following policy and procedure with regard to identification and nomination of persons who 
are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed at senior management level. 

II. Criteria for identifying persons for appointment as Directors and Senior Management: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is responsible for evaluating the 
qualification of each director candidates and of those directors who are to be nominated for election 
by shareholders at each Annual General Meeting of shareholders (if any), and for recommending 
duly qualified director nominees to the Board of Directors. The qualification criteria set forth 
herein are designed to describe the qualities and characteristics required for the Board as a whole 
and for the Board members. 

Directors: 

1. Candidates for Directorship should possess appropriate qualifications, skills and expertise in 
one or more fields of finance, law, general corporate management, information management, 
science and innovation, public policy, financial services, sales & marketing and other disciplines 
as may be identified by the NRC and/or the Board from time to time, that may be relevant to the 
Company's business. 

2. The director candidates should have completed the age of 21 years. The maximum age of 
executive directors shall not be more than 70 years at the time of appointment Ire-appointment. 
However, a candidate who has attained the age of 70 years may be appointed if approved by 
shareholders by passing of special resolution. 

3. The Board has not established specific education, years of business experience or specific types 
of skills for Board members, but, in general, expects qualified directors to have ample experience 
and a proven record of professional success, leadership and the highest level of personal and 
professional ethics, integrity and values. 
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4. The candidate to be appointed as Director shall have a Director Identification Number (DIN) 
allotted under section 154 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and duly complied with DIN KYC 
norms. 

5. In addition any person to be appointed as a Managing Director or whole-time director in the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as 'Executive Directors') shall have to meet the following 
requirements for being eligible for appointment set out in Part I of Schedule V of the Act and the 
limits of directorships set out in listing agreement with stock exchanges. 

6. Above all, every candidate for Directorship on the Board should have the following positive 
attributes: 

• Possesses a high level of integrity, ethics, credibility and trustworthiness; 
• Ability to handle conflict constructively and possess the willingness to address critical 

issues proactively; 
• Is familiar with the business of the Company and the industry in which it operates and 

displays a keen interest in contributing at the Board level to the Company's growth in these 
areas; 

• Possesses the ability to bring independent judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations 
especially on issues of strategy, performance, risk management and resource planning; 

• Displays willingness to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs; 
• Values Corporate Governance and possesses the skills and ability to assist the Company in 

implementing good corporate governance practices; 
• Possesses leadership skills and is a team player. 

7. Criteria for Independence applicable for selection ofIndependent Directors: 

The Company may select the candidate from data bank(s) containing name, address, qualification 
of persons who are eligible and willing to act as Independent Director maintained by relevant 
institute or association as may be notified by the Central Government having expertise in creation 
and maintenance of such data bank. 
The prospective candidates for appointment as an Independent Director shall have to meet the 
criteria ofIndependence laid down in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and in terms of 
Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations. 
Such Candidates shall submit a Declaration of Independence to the NRC / Board, initially and 
thereafter, annually, based upon which, the NRC / Board shall evaluate compliance with this 
criteria for Independence. 
In the process of short listing Independent Directors, the Board shall ensure that there is appropriate 
balance of skills, experience and knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharge 
its functions and duties effectively. 

8. Change in status of Independent Director: 

Every Independent Director shall be required to inform the NRC / Board immediately in case of 
any change in circumstances that may put his or her independence in doubt, based upon which, the 
NRC / Board may take such steps as it may deem fit in the best interest of the company. 
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III. Directors selection procedure 

1. Upon instructions/guidelines of Board of Directors Human Resources (HR) department shall 
identify and recommend appropriate candidates for selection to the Board based on director's 
qualification criteria. 

2. For each shortlisted director candidate considered for selection to the Board, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate each director candidate and recommend to the Board 
any duly qualified director candidates. 

3. To aid in the short listing and screening process the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
may take the support of professional agencies, conduct interviews or have a personality check 
undertaken or take any other steps to ensure that the right candidates are identified. 

4. A detennination of a director's qualifications to serve on the Board shall be made by the Board, 
upon the recommendation of the Committee, prior to nominating said director for selection at the 
Company's next Annual General Meeting. 

5. The company shall issue a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner 
as provided in Paragraph IV (4) of Schedule IV of the Act. 

IV. Removal of Director: 

1. If a Director incurs any disqualification mentioned under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other 
applicable law, regulations, statutory requirement, the NRC may recommend to the Board with 
reasons recorded in writing, the removal of the said Director subject to the provisions of and 
compliance with the statutory provisions. 

2. Such recommendations may also be made on the basis of performance evaluation of the 
Directors or as may otherwise be thought fit by the NRC. 

V. Remuneration Policy: 

1. All remuneration/fees/ compensation, payable to Directors shall be fixed by the Board of 
Directors and payment of such remuneration fees/ compensation shall require approval of 
shareholders in general meeting except for sitting fee payable to Independent Directors for 
attending Board/Committee meeting of the Company. 

2. The Board shall decide on the remuneration/fees/compensation, payable to Directors based on 
the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

3. The total managerial remuneration payable, to its directors, including Managing Director and 
Whole-time Director, (and its manager) in respect of any financial year shall not exceed eleven 
per cent of the net profits of the company for that financial year computed in the manner laid down 
in Section 198 of the Act. Provided that the company in general meeting may, with the approval 
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of the Central Government, authorize the payment of remuneration exceeding eleven per cent of 
the net profits of the company, subj ect to the provisions of Schedule V of the Act. 

4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure the following while recommending 
the remuneration/fee/compensation payable to Directors: 

a. The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors shall not exceed 1 % of the net profits 
of the Company. 

b. A Non-Executive director may be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of 
the Board or Committee thereof or for any other purpose whatsoever. The amount of such fee 
on upper side shall not exceed Rs.l,OO,OOO/- for attending each meeting of the Board or 
Committee thereof or su~h higher amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government. 

c. Sitting Fees: Independent Directors receive remuneration in the form of sitting fees for 
attending the meetings of Board or Committee of the Company and its subsidiaries where such 
Director may be so appointed. 

d. Commission: The remuneration payable to the Independent Directors in the form of 
Commission may be paid within the monetary limits as may be approved by shareholders 
subject to the limit not exceeding 1 % of the profits of the Company computed as per applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

e. An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option. 

VI. Remuneration to the Whole-Time Directors / KMPs I Senior Management Personnel: 

a. The Whole-Time Director / KMPs and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as per the HR policy of the Company in force from time to time and in 
compliance with the required applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The total 
remuneration comprises of a fixed basis salary, perquisites as per the Company policy, retirement 
benefits as per company Rules and Statutory requirements, performance linked incentives (on an 
annual basis) based on the achievement of pre-set KRAs and long-term incentives based on value 
creation. 

b. The remuneration payable to anyone managing director; or whole-time director or manager 
shall not exceed five percent of the net profits of the company and if there is more than one such 
director remuneration shall not exceed ten per cent of the net profits to all such directors and 
manager taken together. Else the remuneration will be subject to approval of central government 
as may be required. 

c. In case of inadequacy of profits, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-Time 
Director in accordance with the provisions of the Schedule V of the Act. 
In case the Company wants to pay remuneration in excess of the limits as prescribed under 
Schedule V of the Act, the same can be provided with the approval of Central Government. 

25 



d. If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration 
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the 
Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund the sums to the Company and until such 
sums is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery of 
such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 

PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE: 10th August, 2018 

for and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania 

CHAIRMAN 
DIN: 00210289 



Form No. MGT-9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on 31" March, 2018 

Annexure - IV 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

i) CIN L23209MH) 985PLC035702 

ii) Registration Date 21103/1985 

iii) Name of the Company Veritas (India) Limited 

iv) Category 1 Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government 
Company 

v) Address of the Registered office and contact Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai 
details - 40000), Maharashtra. 

Tel No.: +91 2222755555/61840000 

vi) Whether listed company Yes 

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Universal Capital Securities Private Limited, 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 21 Shakeel Niwas, Mahakali Caves Road, 

Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093, 
Tel. No.: +91 222820 7203 / 05 
Email: ravi@unisec.in 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All h b . t e uSll1ess actIVItIes contn utll1g o or more 0 'b' 100/, t e tota turnover 0 t e company s a f h f h h II b d estate: -
Sl. Name and Description of main products 1 Nrc Code of the % to total turnover of the 

No. services Product! service company 

) Wholesale trade, except of motor vehicles 46 99.75 
and motorcycles 

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/LLPs 

Sl. Name and Address CIN /GLN Holding/ %of Applicable 
No of the Company Subsidiary / shares Section 

Associate held 
1 Veritas Infra & U01403MH2011PTC215010 Subsidiary 100 2(87) 

Logistics Private 
Limited (Formerly 
known as Dharni 
Farming Private 
Limited) 
701, Embassy 
Centre, Nariman 
Point, Mumbai -
400021, 
Maharashtra 
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2 Veritas Agro UO 1403TN20 llPTC 103236 Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
Ventures Private 
Limited 
AP-114, AF Block, 
5th Street, 11th 
Main Road, Anna 
Nagar, Chennai-
600040, 
Tamil Nadu 

3 Veritas Polychem U24233MH20 IlPTC212664 Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
Private Limited 
701, Embassy 
Centre, Nariman 
Point, Mumbai -
400021, 
Maharashtra 

4 Hazel NA Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
International FZE 
Plot No# lA-08 
Hamriyah - UAE 

5 Veritas NA Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
International FZE 
Jatza, Dubai - UAE 

6 Veritas America NA Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
Trading Inc 
211E, 7th Street, 
Suite 620 Austin 
Texas, Tx- 78701-
3218 

7 Veritas Global NA Step down 100 2(87) 
PTE Limited Subsidiary 
16 Raffles Quay 
#27-0lB Hong 
Leong Building 
Sing~ore 048581 

8 GV Investment NA Step down 100 2(87) 
Finance Company Subsidiary 
Limited 
6th Floor, Tower I 
NexTeracom 
Building, Ebene 
Mauritius 

9 Veritas Infra LLP AAH-9198 Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
Veritas House, 70 
Mint Road, Fort, 
Mumbai - 400001, 
Maharashtra 

10 Veritas Agricom AAI-6329 Subsidiary 100 2(87) 
LLP 
Veritas House, 70, 
Mint Road, Fort 
Mumbai -400001, 
Maharashtra 
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III. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

.) C t . Sb HId' I a egory-wlse are 0 109 
Category No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares beld at the End of the year %. 

of year (as on 31" March, 2018) Ch 
Shareholde (as on 1" April, 2017) ang 

rs e 
dur 
ing 
the 
yea 
r 

Demat Physical Total %of Demat Physical Total %of 
Total Total 
shares shares 

A. Promoters 
(1) Indian 
(g) [ndividua [,59,63,100 --- 1,59,63,100 59.54 1,59.63,100 --- 1,59,63,100 59.54 ---

IIHUF 
(h) Central --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---

Govt. 

(i) State --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Govt.(s) 

0) Bodies 2,50,000 --- 2,50,000 0.93 2,50,000 --- 2,50,000 0.93 ---
Corp. 

(k) BankslFI --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
(I) Any --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---

Other. ... 
Sub-Total 1,62,13,100 -- 1,62,13,100 60.47 1,62,13,100 --- 1,62,13,100 60.47 ---
(A) (1):-

(2) Foreign 
(a) NRIs- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --

Individual 
s 

(b) Other- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Individual 
s 

(c) Bodies --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Corp. 

(d) Banks/FI --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
(e) Any --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---

Other .... 
Sub-Total --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --
(B) (2):-
Total 1,62,13,100 --- 1,62,13,100 60.47 1,62,13,100 -- 1,62,13,100 60.47 --
sbareboldin 
g of 
Promoter 
(A) = (A)(I) 
+(A)(2) 

B. Public Shareholding 
Bl) 
Institutions 
(a) Mutual --- --- --- --- --- -- --- --- ---

Fund 
(b )Banks/FI --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
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(c) Central 
Govt. 

(d) State . 
Govt.(s) I 

(e) Venture 
capital 
Fund 

1 t ers 
(specify) 
Foreign 
Portfolio 
Investor 

I Sub-Total 
(8)(1): -

I B2) Non-
Institutions 
(a) Bodies 

corp. 
0) Indian 
(ii) Oversea 

s 
• (b)lndividua 

is 
(i)Individua 

I 
share hoi 
ders 
holding 
nominal 
share 
capital 
up to 
Rs.2lacs 

(ii) 
Individua 
I 
sharehol 
defS 
holding 
nominal 
share 
capital in 
excess of 
Rs.21acs 

i (c) Others 
(specify) 

(c -i) 
Clearing 
Member 

(c -in NRIf 
OCBs 

2600000 ! , , --

26,00,000 --

10,13,697 4,62,000 
i 

1,98,283 7,60,100 

--- 15,58,570 

I 

i 
4,250 40,00,000 I 

1,820 ---

I 

I 
390 ---

- , , 1600000 970 2600000 , , --- - , , 1600000 970 ---

26,00,000 9.70 26,00,000 --- 26,00,000 9.70 ---
I 

14,75,697 5.50 14,77,561 --- 14,77,561 5.51 ---

I 

9,58,383 3.57 1,94,844 7,60, lOO 9,54,944 3.56 0.01 

I 
j 

15,58,570 5.81 --- 15,58,570 15,58,570 5.81 ---

I 
40,04,250 14.94 5,825 40,00.000 40,05,825 0.01 0.01 

i 

1,820 I 0.01 2,920 --- 2,920 0.01 ---
I 

39O 0.00 395 --- 395 0.00 -.. 
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(c -iii) --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Foreign 
Nationals 

(c-lv) --- 40,00,000 40,00,000 14.92 --- 40,00,000 40,00,000 14.92 ---
Foreign 
Bodies 

Sub-Total 12,16,230 67,80,670 79,96,900 29.82 16,78,230 63,18,670 29.81~ 
(8)(2): -

Total 38,16,230 67,80,670 95,99,110 39.52 42,78,230 63,18,670 1,05,96,900 39.52 
Public 
sbareholdin 
g o(B) = 

(B)(l) I 
-=t(B)(2) 
C. Shares -- --- --- -- --- --- -- --- ---
held by 
Custodian 
forGDRs 
&ADRs 
Grand 2,00,29,330 67,80,670 2,68,10,000 100 2,04,91,330 63,18,670 2,68,10,000 100 ---

Total 
I (A+B+C) 

ii) Share holding of Promoters: 

I SI Shareholder's Sbarebolding at the beginning of Sbareholding at the end of the year 

! 

NO. Name the year 
No. of %of % of Shares No. of %of % of Shares % change in 
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / shareholding 

Shares encumbered Shares encumbered during the 
of the to total of the to total year 

company shares company shares 
I i Nitin Kumar 92,50,000 34.50 NTL 92,50,000 34.50 NTL NIL 

Deendayal 
Didwania 

2 Niti Nitin 67,13,100 25.04 NIL 67,13,100 25.04 NIL NIL 
Kumar 
Didwania 

3 Groupe 2,50,000 0.93 NIL 2.50,000 0.93 NIL NIL 
Veritas 
Limited 
Total 1,62,13,HI0 60.47 NIL 1,62,13,100 60.47 NIL NIL 

iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

81 
NO. Particulars 

wania 
e Veritas Limited 

92,50,000 

67,13,100 
250000 
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shares of the 
company 

34.50 

25.04 
0.93 

Cumulative 8hareholding during the year 
As on 31'1 March, 2018) 

No. of shares % of total shares of the 
company 

92,50,000 34.50 

67,13,100 25.04 
2,50,000 0.93 



Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the There were no changes in promoter shareholding during the year 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase 
At the End of ycar 

1 Nitin Kumar Deendayal 92,50,000 34.50 92,50,000 34.50 
Didwania 

2 Niti Nitin Kumar Didwania 67,13,100 25.04 67,13,100 25.04 
3 Groupe Veritas Limited 2,50,000 0.93 2,50,000 0.93 

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs): 

SI Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the 
NO. the year (As on 1st April, 2017) year (As on 1" April, 2018) 

For Each of the Top 10 No. of shares % of total No. of % of total shares of 
Shareholders shares of the shares the company 

company 
1 Onix Assets Limited 30.00,000 IU9 30,00,000 11.19 
2 Latitude Consultants Limited 26,00,000 9.70 26,00,000 9.70 
3 Kamalasini Tradelink Private 14,71,300 5.48 14,71,300 5.48 

Limited 
4 A vcntia Global Limitcd 10,00,000 3.73 10,00,000 3.73 

5 Sanjay Agarwal 5,44,000 2.03 5,44,000 2.03 
6 Aman Bhatia 4,00,000 1.49 4,00,000 1.49 
7 Neeti Bhatia 3,50,000 1.31 3,50,000 1.31 
8 Manish Harshad Sanghvi 2,64,570 0.99 2,64,570 0.99 
9 Bhadresh B Desai 1,49,500 0.56 1,49,500 0.56 
10 Shirish Dahyalal Upadhyay 1,02,154 0.38 94,284 0.35 

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

SI Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
NO. of the year 

For Each of the Directors No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total shares of the 
and KMP shares of the company 

company 

1 Mr. Nitin Kumar Dindayal 
Didwania (Director) 
At the beginning ofvear 92,50,000 34.50 92,50,000 34.50 
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase 
/ decrease No Change During the Year 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat 
equity etc.): 
At the End of year 92,50,000 34.50 92,50,000 34.50 

2 **Mr. Saurabh Dipak 
Sanghvi 
(Whole Time Director) 
At the beginning of year 20,000 0.08 20000 0.08 
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Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase 
I decrease No Change During the Year 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat 
equity etc): 
At the End of year 20,000 I. 0.08 I 20,000 I 0.08 

Note: Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Mr. Shafi Sayeed Parkar, Mr. Rajaram Shanbhag and Prasad A Oak did not hold any 
shares of the Company during the financial year 2017-18. 
**Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned from the position of Whole-Time Directorship of the Company and would 
continue on the Board as Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 12th June, 2018 

vi) INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total 
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (As on 0l.04.2017) 
(i) Principal Amount 167,947202 - - 167,947,202 
(ii) Interest due but - - - -
not paid 
(iii) Interest accrued - - - -
but not due 
Total(i+ii+iii) 167,947,202 - - 167,947,202 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 
Additions - - - -
Reduction 5,65,15,735 - - 56,51,57,35 
NetChan~e 11,14,31,467 - - 11,14,31,467 

Indebtedness at the End of the financial year (As on 31.03.2018) 
(i) Principal Amount 11,14,31,467 - - 11,14,31,467 
(ii) Interest due but - - - -
not paid 
(iii) Interest accrued - - -
but not due -
Total(Hii+iii) 11,14,31,467 - - 11,1431,467 

vii) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager 

SI Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Whole-Time 
NO. Director - Mr. Saurabh Dipak 

Sanghvi 
1 Gross salary 

a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17( 1) ofthe Income-tax 30,00,000 
Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 -

2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity -
4 Commission -

- As a % of profit -
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5 Others, please specify -
Total (A) 30,00,000 
Ceiling as per the Act* .. 

*Remuneratlon paid to the Whole-Time Director IS wlthm the cellmg provided under Section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 

SI Particulars of Name of Directors Total Amount 
NO. Remuneration 

Mrs. Alpa Mr. S.S. Mrs. Kamala 
Mayank Parkar (Retd.) Aithal 
Parekh 

1 Independent Directors 

• Fee for attending 32,000 32,000 21,000 85,000 
board/committee 
meetings 

• Commission - - -
• Others, please - - -

specify 
Total (1) 32,000 32,000 21,000 85,000 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors 

• Fee for attending - - - -
board/committee 
meetings 

• Commission - - - -
• Olhers, please - - - -

specify 
Total (2) - - - -
Total (B)= (1+2) 32,000 32,000 - 85,000 
Overall Ceiling as per Rs.l,OO,OOO per meeting 
the Act 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MDI Managerl WTD: 

SI. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 
No. 

Mr. Rajaram S Shanbhag Mr. Prasad A Oak 
(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

1 Gross salary 
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 78,00,000 21,36,048 
1 7(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax. - -
Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - -
[ncome- tax Act, 1961 

2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -

- As % of profit - -
5 Others, please specifY - -

Total 78,00,000 21,36,048 
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IV. PENAL TlESI PUNISHMENTI COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of Brief Details of Penaltyl Authority Appeal Made, if 
the Description Punishment [RD/NCLTI Any (give details) 

Companies Compounding fees COURT] 
Act imposed 

A.COMPANY 
Penalty 
Punishment N.A. 
Compounding 
B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty 
Punishment N.A. 
Comyounding 
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty 
Punishment N.A. 
Compounding 

There were no penalties/punishment/compounding of offences for violation of the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 against the Company or its Directors or other officers in default during the financial year 2018. 

PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE: loth August, 2018 
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ANNEXURE V 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Industry Structure and Development 
Company is in business of Export, Import, Trading and distribution of chemicals, metals and 
rubbers. The Company is also actively involved in business of generation of wind energy. 

Chemical Industry 

The chemical industry is the main stay of industrial and agricultural development of the country 
and provides building blocks for several downstream industries, such as textiles, papers, paints, 
soaps, detergents, pharmaceuticals, varnish etc. In terms of volume, the Indian chemical industry 
is the 7th largest in the world and the 3rd largest in Asia with the size worth $139 Billion. The Indian 
chemical industry, comprised of 3.4 % of the global industry and presents a huge opportunity for 
young and dynamic entrepreneurs. "The Indian chemical industry is currently estimated to be about 
US $ 155 billion in 2016, and has the potential to grow at 9% per annum to reach US $ 226 billion 
by FY20. India is the Seventh largest producer of chemicals worldwide and third largest producer 
in Asia. 

With one of the highest populations but with a polymer demand less than 20%, the region is 
expected to enjoy the fastest growth in polymer demand anywhere in the world over the next five 
years; outstripping China and other emerging economies. Further, the Indian sub-continent has 
established itself as the most exciting and dynamic emerging market in the world and is one full 
of potential and investment opportunities. With India's population similar to China's, but polymer 
demand at only one-fifth of China'S, the Indian subcontinent's plastics industry has a good 
potential for growth. Improving standards of living have led to an increase in consumption of a 
wide range of conswner goods from packaged foods to automobiles. 

Wind Energy 

Over the period of time people across the world are slowly but consistently understanding the 
importance of pollution free environment. Alarming rate of global warming is also a cause of 
growing concern. People are now opting/preferring alternate fuel resources than conventional 
ones. Alternative fuels which are available at a cheaper rate can meet growing demands for such 
alternative fuels. Wind energy is one of such resource which is a viable option to achieve 
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sustainable development and also to conserve traditional energy resources, supply of which is 
limited. Continuous growing population of the world would require huge energy resources at 
reasonable/competitive prices. 

The largest component of renewable generation capacity is wind power. Wind energy not only 
offers both a power source that completely avoids the emission of carbon dioxide, the main Green 
House Gas (GHG), but also produces none of the other pollutants associated with either fossil fuel 
or nuclear generation. 

The Government is also considering benefits of wind power generation and is promoting the same 
direct! y !indirectly. 

Opportunities & Threats 

Opportunities: 
The chemical industry in India, in particular, is on tenterhooks regarding the result of GST 
implementation, considering the fact that Indian chemical industry has continued facing severe 
challenges owing to the mounting taxations. But it is believed that GST will have long-tern1 
positive impact on the chemical sector. 

India's growing per capita consumption and demand for agriculture-related chemicals offers huge 
scope of growth for the sector in future. Given the substantial growth of chemical industry and in 
particular the petro-chemical industry, the Management feels the Company is in good position to 
further develop and enter into various global markets. 

Threats: 
The Global inflation effect on costs especially the cost attributed to the logistic and supply chain 
management, cheaper substitutes by mass producing countries like China and Taiwan on account 
oflow labour costs and volatility in sales are likely threats having the effect of eroding the margins 
to some extent. India, China political relations and any adverse change therein will have negative 
impact on many industries including chemical industry. 

Outlook 
The management is quite confident that the market and business would be stable/positive in the 
coming financial year. India's existing good business relations with foreign countries and efforts 
for developing relations with the few other foreign countries would prove beneficial in the interest 
of various industries including chemical industry. 

The Company is open for new opportunities and may grow sizably in the coming future. 

Risk and Concerns 
As like any other business, the company is prone to various risks and concerns including but not 
limited to fluctuating foreign exchange, increase in operational cost, etc. 
The Company evaluates and monitors all risks associated with various areas of operations such as 
procurement, sales, marketing, inventory management, debtor's management, operational 
management, insurance, supply chain management, legal and other issues having a material impact 
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on the financial health of the company on a regular basis with a view to mitigate the adverse impact 
of the risk factors. 

Internal Control Systems 
The Company has an adequate internal control system in place which is commensurate with its 
size and nature of its business, which is periodically evaluated by the management. The internal 
control system ensures that all the assets of the company are safeguarded from loss, damage or 
unauthorized disposition. Checks and controls are in place to ensure that transactions are 
adequately authorised and recorded and reported correctly to the concerned personnel. 

Human Resource Management 

Your company recognizes the importance of building a strong human capital for the futuristic 
world. Learning culture in Redington has been accelerated through Technology enabled learning 
and by learning Technology. Flexible HR policies reflecting our organization value of 'Trust' and 
work-life balance have been continuously devised. Learning Opportunities & employee 
engagements have been consistently rendered and HR policies are retuned to changing needs of 
our business. 

The Company provides suitable environment for development of leadership skills which enables 
it to recruit and retain quality professionals in all fields. The employer- employee relationships are 
cordial and mutually supporting at all levels. 

Cautionary Statement 
Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company's 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward-looking statements 
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from those 
expected, expressed or implied. 

PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE: 10th August, 2018 
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Annexure VI 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 
197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE 

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 5t March, 2018 and percentage increase in 
remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial 
year 2017-2018: 

Name of Ratio of remuneration to 0/0 Increasenoecrease in 
DirectorslKMP median remuneration of remuneration in the 

Employees financial year 
Executive Directors 
Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 8.33 25 

Key Managerial Personnel 
Mr. Raiaram Shanbhag 21.49 11 
Mr. Prasad A Oak* 6.33 0 

ii) The median remuneration of employees of the company during the financial year was Rs. 
3,60,000/-

iii) In the financial year, there was an increase of 28% in the median remuneration of 
employees. 

iv) There were 31 permanent employees on the rolls ofthe Company as on 31 5t March, 2018. 
v) Relationship between average increase/decrease in remuneration and Company 

performance: 
The Profit After tax decreased by 11.9% for the Financial Year 2017-2018 whereas the 
increase in median remuneration was 28%. 

vi ) Average percentage increase/decrease in the salaries of employees' other than the 
Managerial Personnel in the financial year 2017-2018 was 10%. 

vii) The Key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors: 
No variable components of remuneration availed by any Director. Remuneration of 
Independent Directors covers sitting fees. 

viii) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company. 

PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE: 10th August, 2018 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1. COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Corporate governance is the system of rules, practices and processes by which a firm is directed 
and controlled. Corporate governance essentially involves balancing the interests of a company's 
many stakeholders, such as shareholders, management, customers, suppliers, financiers, 
government and the community. Since corporate governance also provides the framework for 
attaining a company's objectives, it encompasses practically every sphere of management, from 
action plans and internal controls to performance measurement and corporate disclosure. It refers 
to the way a company governs. 

Your Company has been following fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. The 
governance processes and practices embedded into the culture of the Organization ensure that the 
interests of all the stakeholders are taken into account in a balanced and transparent manner. 

Your company has always practiced corporate governance of high standard and follows a corporate 
culture i.e. built on core values and professional which over the past many years of the company's 
operations has become part of its culture and practice. 

A Report on compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is given below: 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
At Veritas, we believe that an active, well-informed and independent board is necessary for 
ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors being at its core 
of Corporate Governance practice, plays the most pivotal role in overseeing how the management 
works and protects the long-term interests of all the Stakeholders. Veritas Board consist of an 
optimum combination of Executive and Independent Directors who are highly renowned 
professionals drawn from diverse fields, possess the requisite qualifications and experience in 
general corporate management, finance, banking, insurance, economics and other allied fields 
which enable them to contribute effectively to your Company and enhance the quality of Board's 
decision-making process. 

2.1 Composition of the Board 
The size and composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"). As on date of this Report, the 
Board consists of six Directors comprising two Non-Executive Director, three Independent 
Directors and one Executive Director. None of the Director is a Director in more than 10 (ten) 
public companies as specified in Section 165 of the Act or acts as an Independent Director in more 
than 7 listed companies or 3 listed companies in case helshe serves as a Whole-Time Director in 
any listed company as specified in Regulation 25 ofthe Listing Regulation as on 31 st March, 2018. 
Further, none of the Directors of the Company is a Member of more than 10 (ten) Committees and 
Chairman of more than 5 (five) Committees (Committees being, Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee) across all the companies in which hel she is Director. None 
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of the Directors of your Company are inter-se related to each other and the Company has not issued 
any non-convertible instruments. 

The details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)/Committee 
Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) held by them are provided herein below: 

Name of Category Number of Whether Number of Number of 
Directors Board attended Directorsh Committee positions 

Meetings IastAGM ips in held in other 
during the held on other companies 

year 2017-18 220d companies 

Atten September Membe Chairman 
Held ded 2017 rship+ ship+ 

Mr. Nitin 
Non-

Kumar 
Executive 

Didwania 
(Promoter 

5 3 Present 
5* 1 1 

Group) 

Mrs. Alpa Independent 

Parekh Director 5 4 Absent NIL 2 1 

Mr. Saurabh 
Whole-

Time 
Sanghvi 

Director 5 4 Present 
1 * 1 0 

Justice S. S. Independent 
Parkar Director 

Absent 1 * 1 0 
(Retd.) 5 4 

Mrs. Kamala Independent 
Aithal Director 3 3 Absent 1* 1 0 

+ Committees considered are Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
including that of your Company. Committee Membership(s) and Chairmanship(s) are counted 
separately. 

* Excludes private limited companies, foreign companies registered under Section 8 of the Act 
and Government Bodies. 

** Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi resigned from the position of Whole-Time Directorship of the Company 
and would continue as a Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect 
from 12th June, 2018. *Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar has been appointed as a Whole-Time Director of 
the Company with effect from 12th June, 2018. 
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2.2 BOARD PROCEDURE: 
During the year under review, Board met 5 (five) times on 25th May, 2017, 11 th August, 2017, 12tll 
September, 2017, 14th December, 2017 and 12th February, 2018. The Board meets at least once in 
every quarter to review the Company's operations and the maximum time gap between any two 
meetings is not more than 120 days. 

A detailed Agenda, setting out the business to be transacted at the Meeting(s), supported by 
detailed notes is sent to each Director at least seven days before the date of the Board Meeting(s) 
and ofthe Committee Meeting(s). Adequate information is circulated as a part ofthe Board Paper~ 
and is also available at the Board Meeting to enable the Board to take decisions. As required under 
Regulation 17(3) of Listing Regulations, the Board periodically reviews compliances of various 
laws applicable to the Company. The Directors are also provided the facility of video conferencing 
or other Audio-Visual mode to enable them to participate effectively in the Meeting(s) as and when 
required except in respect of such Meetings/ Items which are not permitted to be transacted through 
video conferencing. 

Detailed presentations are made at the Board / Committee meetings covering operations of the 
Company, business performance, finance, sales, marketing, global business environment and 
related issues. All necessary information including but not limited to those mentioned in Part A of 
Schedule II to the Listing Regulations, are placed before the Board of Directors. The Members of 
the Board are at liberty to bring up any matter for discussions at the Board Meetings and the 
functioning is democratic. The Company has a well-established process in place for reporting 
compliance status of various laws applicable to the Company. 

2.3 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS, ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT 
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

During the year pt April, 2017 to 31 st March, 2018, five board meetings were held on the 
following dates - 25th May, 2017, 11th August, 2017, 12th September, 2017, 14th December, 2017 
and 12th February, 2018. 

The Board met at least once in every Calendar Quarter and the gap between two Meetings did not 
exceed one hundred and twenty days. These Meetings were well attended. 

The 32nd AGM of your Company was held on 22nd September, 2017. 

The d f h D· atten ance 0 t e lrectors at t lese M d eetmgs was as un er: 
Name of Director Board Meetings Attendance at last 

Held during Attended AGM held on 22nd 

the tenure September, 2017 
Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania 5 3 Present 
Mrs. Alpa Parekh 5 4 Absent 
Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 5 4 Present 
Justice S. S. Parkar iRetd) 5 4 Absent 
Mrs. Kamala Aithal * * 4 3 Absent 
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** Mrs. Kamala Aithal was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company with 
effect from 25th May, 2017 and her appointment as an Independent Director was regularised at the 
Annual General Meeting held on 22nd September, 2017. 

3. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
During the year under review, a meeting ofIndependent Directors was held on 12th February, 2018 
without the presence of the Chairman, Whole-time Director, inter alia, to discuss on the following 
matters: 
• To review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole 
• Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company 
• Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company's 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties. 

In addition to these formal meetings, interactions outside the Board meetings also take place 
between the Chairman and Independent Directors. 

4. DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT I RE-APPOINTlVIENT 
Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-Executive Director is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible for 
re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and has offered himself for re­
appointment. 

Board recommends appointment of Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar as a Whole-time Director in place of 
Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, who has resigned from the position of Whole-Time Director of the Company 
w.e.f. 12th June, 2018 for the term offive (5) years commencing from 12th June, 2018 to 11 th June, 
2023 on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee subject to approval of 
members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

Mrs. Kamala Aithal, is appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 25th 

May, 2017. 

The Brief resume and other information required to be disclosed under this section is provided in 
the Notice convening 33rd Annual General Meeting. 

5. CODE OF CONDUCT 
Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct ("The Code") for all the Board Members Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company in accordance with the requirement under Regulation 17 
of the Listing Regulations. The Code has been posted on the Company's website 
http://www.veritasindia.netlinvestor downloads.asp. All the Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct for the financial 
year 2017-18. A declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman to this effect forms part of this 
Report. 

The Board has also adopted a separate Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which is a guide 
to professional conduct for Independent Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of 
Companies Act, 2013. 
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6. BOARD EVALUATION 
In terms of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder 
and Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors has put in place a process to formally 
evaluate the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees along with performance evaluation of each 
Director to be carried out on an annual basis. Accordingly, the mmual performance evaluation of 
the Board, its Committees and each Director was carried out for the financial year 2017-18. 

Feedback was sought by way of a structured questionnaire prepared to evaluate the performance 
of the Board as a whole and individual performance of each Director covering various aspects of 
the Board's functioning such as Board effectiveness, understanding of the role and responsibilities, 
understanding of the business and competitive environment, effectiveness of the contributions 
made during the Board meetings, adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, 
Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance and the 
evaluation was carried out based on responses received from the Directors. 

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee plays a vital role in undertaking 
the evaluation of performance for the Board and the Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee discussed on the evaluation mechanism, outcome and the feedback received from the 
Directors. The Independent Directors at their meeting also discussed the performance of the Non­
Executive/Promoter Director, the Chairman of the Board. 

The overall outcome of this exercise to evaluate effectiveness of the Board and its Committees for 
the financial yem' 2017-18 was discussed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
the result was positive and members expressed their satisfaction. 

7. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
Your Company has in place a structured induction and Familiarization Program for all its Directors 
including the Independent Directors. Your Company through such familiarizes not only the 
Independent Directors but also any new appointee on the Board with a brief background of your 
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature of the industry in which it operates, business 
model operations, presentations on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting, framework for 
Related Party Transactions, ongoing events, etc. They all are updated on business related issues 
and new initiatives. They are also infOlmed of the important policies of your Company including 
the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and the Code of Conduct 
for Prevention of Insider Trading. 

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, brief details as required are available on the 
Company's website and can be accessed at the web link: 
http://www.veritasindia.netlinvestor downloads.asp 
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8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
The Board Committees playa crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have 
been constituted to deal with specific areas / activities which concern the Company and need a 
closer review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to can·y 
out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part 
of good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the 
Committees and is responsible for their action. The Chairman of the respective Committee informs 
the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of 
the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board Committees 
can request special invitees to join the meeting, as may be required. 

The Board has currently established the following statutory and non-statutory Committees. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The composition of Audit Committee is in alignment with the provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations. All the members of the Audit 
Committee have accounting and financial management expertise. All the members of the 
Committee are Non- Executive Directors and two-thirds of them are Independent Directors. 

Mrs. Alpa Parekh is the Chairperson of the Committee. 
Mrs. Kamala Aithal is inducted on the Audit Committee w.e.f 11 th August, 2017. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 

The Committee met 5 (five) times during the year under review. The Committee meetings were 
held on 25th May, 2017, 11th August, 2017, 12th September, 2017, 14th December, 2017 and 12th 
February, 2018. The gap between two Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

The attendance at the meetings was as under: 

Name of the Director N umber of meetings during the Financial Year 
2017-2018 

Held Attended 
Mrs. Alpa Parekh 5 4 
Justice S. S. Parkar 5 4 

Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 5 4 
**Mrs. Kamala Aithal (Entitled to 5 2 
attend 4 meetings) 

**Mrs. Kamala Aithal was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 25th May, 
2017 and was admitted as member of Audit Committee w.e.f. 11 th August, 2017. 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated 
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part C of Schedule II of the Listing 
Regulations. The Committee acts as a link between the Statutory/Internal Auditors and the Board 
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of Directors of the Company. It is authorized to, inter alia, review and monitor the Auditor's 
independence and performance, effectiveness of audit process, oversight of the Company's 
financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information, review with the 
management, the quarterly and annual financial statements and auditor's report before submission 
to the Board for approval, select and establish accounting policies, review Reports of the Statutory 
and the Internal Auditors and meet with them to discuss their findings, suggestions and other 
related matters, approve (wherever necessary) transactions of the Company with related parties 
including subsequent modifications thereof, grant omnibus approvals for related party transactions 
subject to fulfillment of certain conditions, scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments, 
valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, review the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures, evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems, monitor end use of 
the funds raised through public offers and related matters, etc. 

The Audit Committee has been granted powers as prescribed under Regulation 18(2) (c) of the 
Listing Regulations and reviews all the information as prescribed in Part C of Schedule II of the 
Listing Regulations. The Committee also reviews on quarterly basis the Report on compliance 
under Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading adopted by the Company pursuant to 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 
Further, Compliance Reports under Whistleblower Policy are also placed before the Committee. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted as per the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations, 2015. 

Meeting and attendance: 

Th C e ommlttee meetmg was e on_ ay, h ld ?5th M 2017 
Name of the Director Number of meetings during the Financial Year 2017-

2018 
Held Attended 

Mrs. Alpa Parekh 1 1 
Justice S. S. Parkar (Retd.) 1 1 
Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania 1 1 

As per section 178 (7) of the Act and Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in 
his absence, any other Member of the Committee authorized by him/her in this behalf shall attend 
the General Meetings of the Company. 

Mrs. Alpa Parekh is the Chairperson of the Committee. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
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The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements mandated in 
the Act and Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The brief terms of references of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 
• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a Director and recommended to the Board a Policy relating to the remuneration for the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
• Devising a policy on Board diversity 
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation of every Director's performance. 

• Carry out the evaluation of every director's performance and formulate criteria for evaluation 
of Independent Directors, Board/Committees of Board and review the term of appointment of 
Independent Directors on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors. 

• To recommend / review remuneration of the Whole-time Director(s)/ Executive Director(s) 
based on their performance and defined assessment criteria. 

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced 
by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS: 

A. Remuneration Policy 
The remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance, based on 
review of achievements on a periodic basis. The Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop 
and motivate the high-caliber executives and to incentivize them to develop and implement the 
Group's Strategy, thereby enhancing the business value and maintain a high-performance 
workforce. The policy ensures that the level and composition of remuneration of the Directors is 
optimum. 

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors / Independent Directors: 
The details of sitting fees paid to Independent Directors during the financial year 2017-18 is as 
under: 

Name of Director Sitting Fees paid for the Board 
and Committee Meetings 

Mrs. Alpa Parekh 32,000 
Justice (Retd.) S. S. Parkar 32,000 
Mrs. Kamala Aithal** 21,000 

* *Mrs. Kamala Aithal was appointed as an Independent director of the Company with effect from 
25th May, 2017. 
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Remuneration to Executive DirectorlWhole-Time Director: 
Remuneration of the Whole-time Director consists of the fixed component and a variable 
performance incentive. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee makes periodical appraisal 
of the performance of the Whole-time Director based on a detailed performance evaluation, and 
recommends the compensation payable to them, within the parameters approved by the 
shareholders, to the Board for their approval. 

During the financial year 2017-18, remuneration paid to the Whole-time Director was as under: 

(Amount in Rs.) 
Salary Component Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 

Basic Salary 30,00,000 
Perquisites, allowances and Other -
benefits 
Commission -
Total 30,00,000 

Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi ceased to be Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect from 12th 

June, 2018 and Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar is appointed as Whole-Time Director w.e.f12th June, 2018. 

The Company has no Employee Stock Options Scheme in force at present. 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-Executive Promoter Director is holding 92,50,000 equity shares 
ofRs.l/- each in the Company. 

None of the Other Non-Executive Directors hold any share in the company. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in compliance with Regulation 20 
of the Listing Regulation. The Committee functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Nitin Kumar 
Didwania, Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director. Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi Non-Executive, Non­
Independent Director and Mrs. Alpa Parekh, Independent Director are the other members of the 
Committee. 
**With effect from 12th June, 2018 Saurabh Sanghvi resigned from the position of Whole-Time 
Directorship and became Non-executive, Non-independent Director of the Company. 

Meeting and attendance: 
There was one meeting conducted during the year under review on 14th December, 2017. 

As per Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in his absence, any other Member 
of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend the General Meetings of the 
Company. The Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania and Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, 
committee members were present at the 320d Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
220d September, 2017. 
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The role and terms of reference of the Committee covers the areas as contemplated under 
Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations besides the other terms 
as referred by the Board of Directors. The Committee meets, as and when required, to inter alia, 
deal with matters relating to transfer/transmission of shares, request for issue of duplicate share 
certificates and monitor redressal of the grievances of the security holders of the Company relating 
to transfers, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of dividends declared, etc. The Committee 
is also authorised to approve request for transmission of shares and issue of duplicate share 
certificates. 

During the year under review, the complaints received from the shareholders were resolved and 
are regularly rep0l1ed to Bombay Stock Exchange as per Regulation 13 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania, Non-executive, Non-independent 
Director, Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi, Non-executive, Non-independent Director and Mrs. Alpa Parekh, 
Independent Director are the members of the Committee. 

* * With effect from 12th June, 2018 Saurabh Sanghvi resigned from the position of Whole-Time 
Directorship and became Non-executive, Non-independent Director ofthe Company. 

The Committee meeting was held on 14th December, 2017. 

N arne of the Director Number of meetings during the Financial Year 2017-
2018 

Held Attended 
Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania 1 1 
Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 1 1 
Mrs. Alpa Parekh 1 1 

The role of this Committee also includes recommendation of the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the CSR activities as enumerated in Schedule VII of the Act and also referred to in the 
CSR Policy of the Company, as also to monitor the implementation of framework CSR Policy, 
etc. 

9. SUBSIDARY COMPANIES 
Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations defines a "material subsidiary" to mean a subsidiary, 
whose income or net worth exceeds twenty percent of the consolidated income or net worth 
respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. 
Under this definition, the Company has unlisted material subsidiary, Veritas Agro Ventures Private 
Limited, incorporated in India and is required to nominate an Independent Director of the 
Company on the Board. The Company is in process of identifying suitable individual to be 
appointed as an Independent Director of the said Company. 
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The Company has formulated a policy for determining its 'Material' Subsidiaries and the same is 
available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link: 
http://www.veritasindia.net/investor downloads.as p 

The Company monitors the performance of its subsidiary company's inter-alia, by the following 
means: 
• The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements of the subsidiary companies, along with 

the investments made by them, on a quarterly basis. 
• The Board of Directors reviews the Board Meetings minutes and statement of all significant 

transactions and anangements, if any, of the subsidiaries companies on a quarterly basis. 

10. DISCLOSURES 
A. Policy for detelmining 'material' subsidiaries 
Your Company has formulated a Policy for Determining 'Material' Subsidiaries as defined in 
Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. This Policy has also been posted on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed through web link: 
http://www.veritasindia.net/investor downloads. asp 

B. Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions 
Your Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party 
Transactions in accordance with relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulation which specify the manner of entering into related party transactions. This Policy has 
also been posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web link: 
http://www.veritasindia.net/investor downloads.asp. All the related party transactions are 
approved by the Audit Committee prior to entering into the transaction. 

During the financial year 2017-18, there were no such Related Party Transactions, either as per 
Companies Act, 2013 or Listing Regulations which were required to be approved by the Board of 
Directors or the shareholders of the Company. Further, there were no material significant Related 
Party Transactions and pecuniary transactions that may have potential conflict of interest. The 
details of Related Party Transactions are disclosed in financial section of this Annual Report. 

C. Whistleblower Policy 
Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism! Whistle Blower Policy to enable stakeholders 
(including Directors and employees) to report unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The Policy provides adequate safeguards against 
victimization of Director(s)/ employee(s) and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee in exceptional cases. Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have 
been denied access to the Chairman and that no complaints were received during the year. 

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the 
web link http://www.veritasindia.netlinvestor downloads. asp and circulated to all the 
Directors/employees. 
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D. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 
Pursuant to Regulation 55A of the Listing Regulations with the stock exchanges, the Company has 
engaged a qualified practising Company Secretary to carry out a share capital audit to reconcile 
the total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity 
share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with 
the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with 
NSDL and CDSL. The Company files copy of this certificate with the Stock Exchange as required. 

E. Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements 
The Company has adopted and prepared the financial statements of the Company in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) and comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

F. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices 
The Company has instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 
and the 'Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information' in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 ("the Regulations") which came into force from 15th January, 
2015. All Directors, Designated Employees who could have access to the Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information of the Company are governed by the Code.Veritas Code of Conduct has 
been formulated to regulate monitor and ensure that the reporting of trading by the Employees and 
Connected persons are in accordance with the procedures as laid down in the guidelines and 
caution them of the consequence of violations. 

G. Disclosures with respect to Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account 
The Company does not have any shares in the Demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense 
account. 

H. Details of Non-Compliances: 
Your Company has generally complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. There 
has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to capital 
markets during the last three years and no penalties have been imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority during the financial year 
ended 3pt March, 2018. 

The company had adopted for the first time IND AS, accounting standards from April, 2017 as per 
notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and for the said reason audited balance sheet could not be finalised on time and there was a 
delay of 12 days for uploading audited financial results on Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company 
has paid a penalty of Rs. 76,700/- (Rupees Seventy-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Only) for the 
said purpose. 

I. Compliance with Mandatory requirements: 
Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations 
relating to Corporate Governance. 
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J. Compliance with Non-mandatory requirements 
i. The Board: The Non - Executive Chairman of your Company has been provided a Chairman's 
Office at the Registered Office of your Company. 

ii. Audit Qualification: During the year under review, there is no audit qualification in your 
Company's standalone and consolidated financial statements. Your Company continues to adopt 
best practices to ensure regime of unqualified financial statements. 

11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
The Company recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders and of 
giving a balanced repOlting of results and progress and responds to questions and issues raised in 
a timely and consistent manner. Shareholders seeking information may contact the Company 
directly throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask questions in person at the 
Annual General Meeting. Some of the modes of communication are mentioned below: 

Quarterly: The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are normally 
published in one leading national (English) business newspaper and in one vernacular (Marathi) 
newspaper viz. Mumbai edition of "The Free Press Journal" and "Navshakti" newspaper. 

Annual Report: Physical copy of the Annual Report is sent to all shareholders who have not 
registered their email ids for the purpose of receiving the documents I communication from the 
Company in electronic mode. Full version of the Annual Report is sent via email to all shareholders 
who have provided their email ids and is also available at the Company's website at 
http://www.veritasindia.netlannual repOlts.asp. 

Website: Tn compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the company's website 
contains a separate section under 'Investors Information' for use of shareholders. The quarterly, 
half-yearly and annual financial results are promptly and prominently displayed on the website. 
Annual Reports, Quarterly Corporate Governance Report, Shareholding Pattern and other 
Corporate Communications made to the Stock Exchanges are also available on the website. Annual 
Reports of subsidiaries companies are also posted on the website. 

BSE has developed a web-based application called BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing 
Centre for corporates. All the quarterly, half-yearly and yearly compliances are filed electronically 
on BSE Listing Centre. 

Exclusive email ID for investors: 
The Company has designated the email id corp@veritasindia.net exclusively for investor 
servicing, and the same is prominently displayed on the Company's website www.veritasindia.net. 
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12. Additional Shareholders Information 

Company Registration Details 
The Company is registered in Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Corporate Identification Number (eIN) 
allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L23209MH1985PLC035702. 

Annual General Meeting 
Date: Friday, 28th September, 2018 
Time: 11.45am 
Venue: 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020 

Financial year of the Company 
Financial year cover the period from 15t April to 31 5t March of the next year. Tentative Schedule 
for declaration of results during the financial year 2018-19 

Results for the Quarter ending 30th June, 2018 Second week of September, 2018** 

Results for the Quarter ending 30th September, 2018 Second week of November, 2018 
Results for the Quarter ending 31 5t December, 2018 Second week of February, 2019 

Annual Results of 20 18-19 Second week of May, 2019 or 
Audited Results by 30th May, 2019 

Date of Book Closure and Dividend Payment Date 
The book closure for Dividend will be from Saturday, 22nd September, 2018 to Friday 28th 

September, 2018 both days inclusive. 

Listing of Eguitv Shares on the Stock Exchanges and Stock Code 
Your Company's Ordinary (Equity) Shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The requisite Annual 
listing fees for the financial year 2018-19 have been paid in full to the Stock Exchange. The 
Company has paid custodial fees for the year 2018-19 to National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) on the basis of number offolios 
of shareholders for their shares held in the electronic form. 

Name and Address of Exchange Type of Security / International 
Scrip Code Securities 

Identification Number 

BSE Limited Ordinary (Equity) INE379JOI029 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Shares / 
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001 512229 
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13. Stock Market Data 

Month 
Equity Shares 

BSE Limited 

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) 

April 2017 146.50 120.25 

May 2017 151.70 129.30 

June 2017 151.55 127.05 

July 2017 209.10 154.55 

August 2017 209.10 171.20 

September 2017 172.35 160.00 

October 2017 174.10 161.00 

November 2017 170.00 157.00 

December 2017 154.00 149.10 

January 2018 182.50 156.10 

February 2018 192.75 182.90 

March 2018 179.25 172.25 

14. Stock Performance 

The performance of your Company's shares may be compared with S&P BSE Sensitive Index 
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15. Registrar and Transfer Agents 

Universal Capital Securities Private Limited (formerly known as "Mondkar Computers Private 
Limited"), are the Share Transfer Agents of the Company. The Contact details are given below: 
Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
Corporate Off: 21, Shakil Niwas,Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple, 

Mahakali Caves Road,Andheri (E), 
Mumbai- 400 093. 
Tel Nos. 022- 28207203 /05 
Tele fax. 022- 28207207 
Email: ravi@unisec.in 

16. Share Transfer System 

For administrative convenience and to facilitate speedy approvals, authority has been delegated to 
the Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to approve share transfers up to specified limits. Share transfers/ 
transmissions approved by the RTA and/or the authorized executives are placed at the Board 
Meeting from time to time. Stakeholders Relationship Committee is authorized to approve transfer 
of shares in the physical segment. The Committee has delegated authority for approving transfer 
and transmission of shares and other related matters to the executives of the Company. A summary 
of all the transfers/ transmissions etc. so approved by the executives of the Company is placed at 
every Committee Meeting. Shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered and returned 
within a period of fifteen days from the date of receipt of the documents, provided the documents 
are valid and complete in all respects. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are 
processed by NSDL / CDSL through respective Depository Participants. 

17. Shareholding as on 3pt March, 2018: 

17(a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 st March, 2018 

N umber of Shares 
(in terms of nominal Shareholders Shares 

value) 

From To Number % of Total Held % of Total 

1 5000 455 92.90 1,50,768 0.56 

5001 10000 008 01.67 75,044 0.25 

10001 20000 003 00.63 47,834 0.18 

20001 30000 001 00.21 30,000 0.11 

30001 40000 004 00.84 1,53,600 0.57 

40001 50000 003 00.63 1,41,000 0.53 

50001 100000 003 00.63 2,19,284 0.82 

100001 And above 012 02.505 2,59,92,470 96.95 

Total 2,68,10,000 100 
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17(b) Shareholding Pattern according to category of shareholders as on 3pt March, 2018 

Categories Number of Number of %of 

shareholders Shares Holding 

Promoter and Promoter Group 3 16213100 60.47 

Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 

Foreign Portfolio Investors 1 2600000 9.70 

NRIs / OCBs / Foreign Corporate Bodies 8 40,00,395 14.92 

Private Corporate Bodies 6 1477561 5.51 

Indian Public 441 25,13,514 9.38 

Others (Clearing Members) 3 2920 0.01 

Others & HUF 17 2510 0.01 

Total 479 2,68,10,000 100 

18. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 

76.43% of the total equity share capital is held in dematerliased form with NSDL and CDSL as on 
31 5t March, 2018. 

19.Address for Correspondence: 

Shareholders can correspond with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at: 

Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple, 
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400093. 
Tel Nos. 022- 28207203/05 
Tele fax. 022- 28207207 
Email: ravi@unisec.in 

for all matters relating to transfer/dematerialization of shares, payment of dividend and any other 
query relating to Equity shares of your Company. Your Company has also designated 
corp(@'veritasindia.net as an exclusive email ID for Investors for the purpose of registering 
complaints and the same has been displayed on the Company's website. 
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For all investor related matters, the Investor Relations Department can also be contacted at: 

Investor Relations Department 
Veritas (India) Limited 
Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 
70, Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001. 
Tel: +91 - 22 - 22755555/61840000 
Fax: +91 - 22 - 22755556/61840001 
E-mail: corp@veritasindia.net 
Your Company can also be visited at its website: http://www.veritasindia.net 

20. Outstanding GDRs/ADRsl Warrants or any convertible instrument, conversion and 
likely impact on equity: Nil 

21. Commodity Price RiskIForeign Exchange Risk and Hedging: 

Your company continues to watch the market situation closely and continues to focus on mitigating 
the inflationary impact on its business through suitable commodity price risk measures, foreign 
exchange risks measures and other cost reduction measures. 

22. Plant Locations 

The Company being in the Intemational Trade and Distribution business there are no 
manufacturing units or plants across the country. 

23. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

The date, time and venue of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years and 
special resolution passed there at are as follows: 

Financial Date Venue Time Special Resolution 
Year passed 

2016-17 22-09-2017 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, 11.30 A.M. NIL 
Eros Theatre Building, 
Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020 

2015-16 30-09-2016 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, 11.30 A.M. NIL 
Eros Theatre Building, 
Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020 

2014-15 29-09-2015 Orchid, 1 sl Floor, Centre 1 3:30 P.M. NIL 
Building, World Trade Centre 
Cuff Parade, Mumbai 400 005 
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No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 51 March, 2018. 
Further, no special resolution is proposed to be undertaken by postal ballot. 

Declaration by the Chairman under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Ob1igations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

I hereby confirm that: 
the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, 
affirmation(s) that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel in respect of the financial year ended 31 st March, 2018. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10lh August, 2018 
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Chairman 
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CERTIFICATE OF PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

[Under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(E) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 
The Members 
Veritas (India) Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Veritas (India) Limited 
(the Company), for the year ended on March 31, 2018, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and 
clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the said 
Company. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
the applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 

For JMJA & Associates LLP 
Practising Company Secretaries 

Sd/-
CS Mansi Damania 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 7447 I COP: 8120 

Date: August 10, 2018 
Place: Mumbai 
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 st March, 
2018 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, I state that: 

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that may be misleading; 

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

I also certify that, based on our knowledge and the information provided to us, there are, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company's code of conduct. 

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in 
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps have 
been taken or propose to be taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

I further certify that we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

That there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial rep0l1ing during the 
year; 

That there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year except which 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

That there were no instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10th August, 2018 
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Sd/­
Rajaram Shanbhag 

Chief Financial Officer 



DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT UNDER 
REGULATION 17(5) SEBI (LISITNG OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS), REGULATIONS, 2015 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct ("COC") for its employees 
including the Chairman and Whole-time Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted the 
cac for Non-Executive Directors as well as and the same is posted on the Company's website. 

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended 3 pI March, 2018, 
received from the senior management team of the Company and the Members of the Board a 
declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team means the Members of the 
Management one level below the Chairman and Director as on 31 sl March, 2018. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10lh August, 2018 
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for Veritas (India) Limited 

Sd/-
Nitin Kumar Didwania 

Chairman 



TO THE MEMBERS OF VERITAS INDIA LIMITED 

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of VERlTAS 

INDIA LIMITED ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2018) 
'.' . 

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Managemenes Responsibility 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies ~ct. 2013 ('the Act') with respect to' the preparation of these standalone Ind AS 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the 

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including 

the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specifiea under s~ction 133 of the Act read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detectin~ frauds and other irregularities; selection and application. of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that' are reasonable and pnldent; and 

-design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiaf controls, that were 

operating effectively r.r ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the l'iccounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our ;esponsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements 

based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act. the accounting und auditing standards 

and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisi.ns of the 

Act ami the Rules ~made thereunder. 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Cornpany1s 
preparation of the stan_alone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order 
to des~n aU9.1t procedures t~J are appropriate in the circumstances. An ~dit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accm.mting policies used and the reasonableness of the 

accounting estimates made by Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of OUf information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the standalone lni AS financial statements give the information requiied by the Act in the 

manner so required and" give a true and' fair view in conformity with the accounting principles­

generally accepted in India, of the state of'affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2Cn8, and 

its profit (including other comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date. 

Our opinion is not mc:dified in respect of these m~tters. 

Other Matters 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 

2016 prepared in accordance with the with the Companies (Accounting Standartls) Rules, 2006 
were audited by the predecessor auditor who haS issued a report dated.lune 06, 2017 and June 

14, 2016 on financial statements of the Company for the ye'ar ended March 31, 201 7 and March 

31. 2016 respectively expressed 'an unmodified opinion, which have been relied upon by' us. - - . - .. - . .... 

We have audited differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Comp"any on transition-

·to the Ind -AS for the year ended March 31, 2:017 and March J 1, 20'16. ::-
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Report on Other Legalnnd Re~ulatory RC4lluirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2016 ('the Order'), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 

Annexure I a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order~ to the 

extent applicable. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other con"lprehensive 

income), the Statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) In OUf opinion, the attached standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the 

Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the 

Companies (Indi~n Accounting Standard) Rules, 201~ as amended; 

e) On lhe basis of the written representations reCeived from-the directors of the Holding 

Company as on'31st March, 2018 taken on record oy the Board ofDirectors~ none of the 

directors of the holding company is disqualified as on 31st M~rch, 2018 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act: 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Fi!lancial Statements. of the Company and the operating .effectiveness of S4ch controls, 

refer to our separ~te report in Annexure II; and 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in acqprdance with rule 

- t 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditprs) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion ·and to the 

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

L The €omp~ny has disclosed the ~mpact of pending litigations on il5 fmancial position in 

its s1and~lone lnd AS financial statem~hts - .Refer Note '29 to~.the standalc;ne [nd AS' 

. finanCial ~tatements; .. : ... 
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11. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be· transfened to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

For M. P Chitale & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regis~Btion No.: 1018S1W 

Sd/-

Ashutosb Pednekar 

Partner 
Membership No.: 041037 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: June 12,2018 

" 
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Annexure I - referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements" of our report of even date 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained "proper records showing full particulars~ including 

quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment (fixed assets). 

(b) The Property Plant and Equipment of the Company, are physicaUy verified by the 

Management in a phased program of three to five years cycle. In our opinion, the 

programme is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 

of its assets. In our opinion and as per the information given by the management, 

the discrepancies observed were not material and have been appropriately 

accounted in the books of account. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on verification 

of records, we report that the title deeds of immovable properties held as Properly 

Plant and Equipment, are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) During the year, the inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals by 

the management. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification, as compared to the 

book records, were not material having regards to size and nature of operations and 

have been properly dealt with in the books of account. 

- (iii) Tl'ie Company has riot granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, fimls, limitoo 

liability partnerships or other parties' covered in 'the register maintained under section 

189 of the Act. Hence, the question of reporting under sub-clauses (a), (b) & (c) of the 

clause 3(iii) of the Order does not arise. 

(iv) The Company has not grante~ any loans or provided Il!lY guarantees or security to !he 

parties covered under section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the 
- . -

. (v) 

provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or 

guarantee or security provided to the. parties covered uru\er section 186 of the Act. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits' from the public, within the meaning or 

sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. We are informed by the 

Man~ge1l1ent that no order has. been passed by the Compapy '4aw Board .?r Nation~1 

Company Law TrjJJunal or Re~erve Bank ol)ndla or any court or any ot ... ber tribunal in 

t~is' regMd: . , 
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(vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the 

Central Government under sub section (1) of section 1480f the Act, in respect of the 

activities carried out by the Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the 

records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally 

regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 

including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax. Sales Tax, 

Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty o(~xcise, Value Added 

Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues, wherever applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of -aforesaid dues were o-;:;tstanding as on March 31 ~ 2018 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of 

statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of disputes are as under: 

Statute Forum pending Period to which Amount (Rs) 

amount relates 

Sales Tax STO- Survey Branch AY 2008-09 159,534 
- . 

Income Tax CIT (Appea!l A Y 2014-15 156.27,240 

(viii) According lo the information and explanations given to us, the Company 'has hot 

defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to tinancial institutions. banks, 

government or dues to deben~ure holders. 

(ix) The Company has not raised money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public 
.... - - -

Ofl:er (inc1ud~ng debt instruments). According to the information. and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of the records examined by us, the Company has prima 

facie applied the tenn loan for the purpose for which it was obtained. 

(x) During the course of our examination of the hooks and records of the Company, carried 

out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according 

to. the information ansi explanations given to us,.no..instaaces of fraud by th~ Company 

~! on l.he Company by its of~cers and employees have Eeen noticed '01' reported during 

the 'yl'ar. 
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(xi) According to information and explanations given to us managerial remuneration is paid 

in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 

read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi company, Hence, the question of reporting 

under clause 3(xii) of the Order does not arise. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the 

related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 as 

applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the lnd AS 

Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

fully or partly convertible i.ebentures during the year under audit. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with him covered under the provisions of section 192 of the Act. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

ofIndia Act, 1934. 

For M. P Chitale & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm 'Registration No.: l01851W 

SdI-
Ash utosh Pednekar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 041037 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: June 12, 2tns 

", 
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Annexure II ~ referred to in paragraph 3(g) under "Report 011 Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under 

clause (i) of sub~secti.n 3 of section 143 of tbe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements of 

VERITAS INDIA LIMITED ('the Company') as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our 

audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ende. on that 

date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial 

'. Controls with reference to Financial Statements established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal fmandal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the onieriy and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding 

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness' 

of the accountin, records, and the timely preparation of reliable tlnancial information, as 

required under the Act 

Auditors' Responsibility 

OUf responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We comiucted our audit in accordance with the . . 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAI and specified unller Section 
, - . 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial 
. . 

controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply wiih ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ab.ut whether 

atlequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established .and maintained 

ami if such controls operated effectively in all matel'ial respects. 

Our audit involves performing proc~dl.ires ~o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of t.he 

-'intern~l-financiat control5~sY5tem over finaticial reportr~g and -their operating effecti~ene~s. Our 

:audit of-internal financial controls over firiancia,! reporting included ~btaining an urlderstandiog ",. 

of internal tin~ncia'l controls over tlnanc·ial reporting, assessing" the ti~k that a material 
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weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate t:o provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal fmancial controls system over financial 

reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A Company's Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of standalone Iml AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over 

Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reUeet the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of"" 

the company are being ma.e only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable a~surance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the comPany's assets that could 

have a material effecron the standalone-Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements 
" . 

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements, includ!ng the possibility of collusion or improper mana~ement override of 

_controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud_ may occur and not be detected. Also, 
. -

projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control with 

referertce to Financial Statements may become inB:dequate because of changes in conditions. or 

tbat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has, in aU material respects. an adequate Internal Financial 

Controls with reference to Financial Statements and such Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to Financial Statements were operating effectively as on March 3 t, 201 3, based on 

the criteria established by the Company considerin~ the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia. 

For M. P Chitale & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 101851W 

Sd/­
Ashutosh Pednekar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 041037 

Place: Mumbai 

Date": June 12,2018 
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'iERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

'\' .. 
·,)r . ..'. ....\ N~tes I 

':. : . . , ... ·iJ ... ;. ...... ,,>'.'-

J I 
ASSETS .. 

1 Nol'W:ummt A$SCts 
lal proptrty,PJanurul iqlllpmtnt 1 
'!bl Fln!Jlltlill A$~ts 

(II ·ll'lllutll1l!nts 4 

Ie) Oefl!l'I1!d tax assllts (Nltl 2S 
{dl Other Non Current Assets S 

TotlllNon Curnlnt A_ts . 

2 t;urrentAssets 
(al Inventories 6 

{b} Finam:1aI Assets 
(II - Trade Receivables 7 
(II) • Caslland Cash Equivalents 8 
tm) ·Lo~II$ 9 
(Iv! - Other finanCial A$$eti 10 

(e) Other Current; Auets 11 
Total Cllrfillll! A$sel$ 

Total Asseu 

: ,c· •• C·.·:. EQUITY ANI)'UABlUl1ES: :,., . , -' :-.;.;;~~.; ,': .' 

Ilqulty 
t~(al Equity Share Capital 12 

(b) Othlrr Equity 13 
'otal equity 

llJblUUI$ 

2 Non.{Un'lInt \.labilities 
(e! financial Uabmlles 

(I) -BOfTOw\nv 14 

(bl DIIfel'l1!o Tex Uabmtlu (Net) 2S 
Total Non CUrnlnt liabilities 

3 Current liabilities 
(1I1 Flnallclal UlbiDties 

(II • SCIITl)w\ngs 15 
(ii} • Trade Piyibles 16 

11111 • Othtr FllI3n(lal ~"'bllltin 11 

{bl Provisions 18 

leI Curcent Tax (labilities (Net) 19 

TotalCl,lrrent liablilies 

Total Equity and lIabiltle$ 

The accompanying !!ObIS formSlnteg(al part of the fln~nclal Statements 

As per (lur report of e.vell datI! attach"ld 

For M.9.Cfdtalil & OJ: 
Chorterlld At::collntants 
firm Rlricl. No.: 101851 W 

54/-
Ashutosh Pednekar 
Partner 
Membflr$hlp No.! 041037 

Place: Mumbai 
Oale: 12th June 2018. 

. 
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!Amollnt In Rs) 
.;. A~at .. ;. /\sat .', .. Aut, . ..' 

l.l Marm 1018' i U MareJ!2Ql.1 •.. , lAp;ii20i~ : 
1 I 

719.86,!!08 748.07,512. 773,54.829 

9611,6l,635 3345,49,369 3143,48,447 
. 19,42,487 -

84,33,362 94,n.ll1 16,:16,023 

104U,81,8OS i 420,,,, 539 3993.19,299 

1413.84,041 2471.60,90l 10 • .31.126 

10863,05,295 9447.S8.8S9 7544,23,853 
1841.20.270 127:1,32.051 1323,56..457 
2623,84.591 3971.42.963 4542,61,851 

9.93,417 5.00.068 9.S9.768 
164,35.150 149796.675 

16916,21,863 11207,75,216 14928~a(},310 -
. : .... :.>:::. '.' ':::.,.:.:, .... :: ': ". :.: ." . 

: .... :..,,,.1 
268,10.000 

1S384.8a.eSl 
15652.92,852 

- · 
100.14,379 · 
100,14,379 · 

-
1114.31.467 1619,47,202 
9217.10,212 4320,45,221 
li:90,40,238 .. 316.2S,7S0 

13.45,343 11.88)42 
113,10,178 . 3635 S44 

11648,97418 6164 41.960 

27401,1)4.669 21415.51,155 

For and CI\ behalf QI the Board of Dlrectonl 

54/-
Nitin Kumar ()ldw~lIl. 
Director 

DIN: QOa0289 

SII/-
Rajaram Shanbhall 
Chitf Flnallclal olPcer 

268, :10,000 
14031,88,147 
14299,98.141 

40.95,495 
46,42.,445 
87.37.940 

Z431,45.869 
18S1.20,Ur 

194.1S.!11 
l1,4S,4n 

. 39;86,512 
4S -

lUU.49,1iU 

SIII-
Saurlblt SanehVi 
Oirector 
OIH: 02000413. 

PtaudOlk 
Compami'3ecl'etal1' 
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Revenue from Operations 
Other 1n«lrt\4 

Totall{~~ 

, Expel'\Sli$ 

PurchaSe (If Stock-ln-Trade 
C'tlaflses it'! lmentone.'> otstodc-in-T'fiide 
Emloyee Benefit Expenses 
Depreciation and AmMtl$atlon Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Other Expensat, 

Prcfrt/ {loss) batore tax 

Tax expense 
a} Cwent tax 
b) Oefem!d tax 
tl Ea(lIer Years 

TctaI Tax i!lqlense 

Profit! (loss) for the period from conclnulng operations 

Other COmprehensive Income 
·,kem$ ~t wiU not be redassilied to IJront Of loss 
'I~come ca~ relating to !te.~s that will not be rec,!!sslfled to 
profit or toss 
TOlal Other Comprehenslve lncom!! .-

Total Comprllhensive Incoml! fort!1e period -

Eamll1gll per equity share 
a) Basic 
[.b\ OUuted 

20 
21 

12 
3 
23 
24 

'1.7 

The acrompanylng notes forms In~l part of the Financial Scatemenu. 

Ff¥ M.P.Chl1llle & Co. 
C1uUtf!ft!d ACcollntnnts 
Firm Segu. No.; 10'18S1W 

sd/-
Ashut05h 'Pl!dnekar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 04-1037 

Plaa:Mum~ 

- Date: 12th June 2018. 
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(Amount In Rs_1 
,'f<>r.~,(ye3r ende9 

" . ,,:liMiirCil'ip1.7, 

52488,95.415 53401,76,419 
491,SS,8SG 675,00,74S 

S299&,54~5 S40~.71 ,164 

50028,32,350 54550,17,594 
997,16,861 (2461,29,1..77) 

273.83,833 2(;4,75,91.2 
60,66,462 6!..39,02Q 

246,41,708 225,41,318 
411r17,827 GOZ, 11,191 

52023,19,540 53%46,62#858 

958,34,725 aaO,14,,3(J7 

2l4,G4,207 196,03,433 
1.19.56,884 (55,84,932. 

(5S,462) 2.21,6,82, 

343,65,630 m,40,184 

614.69.095 697,74.:123 

614,69.095 697,74.123 

(10,51,801. 8,024 
2,2'7.974 . 

{B,29,81? 8.024 

606,39,268 .~1,B2"1.41 

-
i19 2.60 
2.l9 2.60 

For and Ot! beIl"'f of the Boatd of Directors 

Sd/· 

NIUI'l Kumat OIdwanla 
a/rector 
011>1 : 0021D289 

5d/-
RaJ8f am Sha~a 
Chh!f Flncmcktt 0/f1W 

Sd/· 

Saul'lIbb Sangmn 
DirettOI' 

DIN : 020004.1.1 

Sd/-

ComPany Secretary 
~ .. 
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A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particular 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Changes In Equity Share capital during the 
Financial Year 
O\it$tandlng at the end of the year 

Other Comprehensive Inoome 
OMdends Uncluding Taxes on DiIIldel'lds} 
Transfers from Retained Earnings 

at the end of the reporting ~riod teo 
31st Mardi, 2017 

",' ,,' ····1 ", 
Paiti~Ia&" 

.' Balance asatAprlll, 2017 
Balance at the beginnlng of the reporting 
perioa i.e. 1st April¥ 2011 
Profit fortne veal' 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Dividends 
Balan~ at the end of the reporting period I.e. 
31st Marth, 2018 

March ~1,2018 
'. 

268,10,000 

-
268.10.000 

9711,68,750 

9711,68,750 

9711,68,7S0 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Mardi 31.I017 March 31,2016 

268,10,000 268,10,000 

. -
268,10,Coo 268,10,000 

4316,67,158 3,52,239 14031,88,141 
697,74.123 697,14.123 

8.024 8,024 
(13.40,500) (13.40,SOO) 
66,70,000 66,70,000 

14782,99,194 

, " 

'totti 

3,60,263 14782,99,194 

614,69))95 . 614,69,095 

54,462 
(13.40,500) (lMO,SOO) 

5668,99.376 4,14,725 15384,82,852 

Tne accompanying 110te-s forms integraI part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

for M.P.C:hitale & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regd •. No.: 101851W 

SAl· 
AshutOl'h Pednekiu 

Portner 
Membership No.: 041037 

Place: Mtlillbai 

Dille. 12th lune 2018. 

for and OR behalf of the Board of DIrectors 

. SdJ· 

Nitin Kumar D1dWanla 
Director 

OIN .00210289 

Sd/-
RQi~rQm Shonbhag 
Chief Financial Officer 

Sd/­

Saurabh Sanghvi 
Director 
DIN: 02000411 

Sd/­
Prasad O<lk ' 

'w Comp~ny Secretary .. ' 
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VERlTAS {lNDIA} t~MITi:!) 

(A.mouotill!\S ) 

!,,2UiO:;)? ,' ....... ;,;.',,'';:,; hniciJl~ri ·/"";'!"';";~;i~···.:-'.·: .':::'E~~~ii;~ti~J~~ 31rtMi';'it wiB,>~!Ii~Yll~~:;gii',~~~d::' ~: 
A Cam flow Fro!!! Qgetllting I!ctlyit!es 

I't<Ints h!rore flIx 

Adjustml!l\t for 
l>e!lreclatlol\ and AmC<ilillt>on EMpenses 
loss lin Sale of ilssw 
F~lr V;lu~ ~ustrnent o:n Gv<;mtn lo Subsi0iari5 
I..,tel~t f<lcomt 
Intl':ll!!st&' Ftnill1l:eCh~rlles 

Change In the falrYalueofkwestme.nts 
Remeil5\ln!ml!llts of post-employment benellt obligations 
OMdand R«eiYcd from SWWJl3rtH 

Worfdn& ClIl'lul 0\;In&1IS 
(lnQ'e~$e!/l>t:cfell1e In Invenlorfe$ 
(1r.q=eIlOeetease !o Trade Rec-eNAbles 
(Inu_~)/l)eC!ease III Short ferm laans and Ad""rlcU 
(lMfease)JbeC1e;n~ in Other Noo tltll'e:ntAS •• t5 

(lncrsse)/Oecre_ in Oth~r Current AiSl!t5 
~'n~Otctt~R) in Trade Pav~blc:s 
locteaS#/{Oc<:ttll$el II> Othet Omen! UlIbiUt!<:$ 
lnuease./lOea!sselln Peovlllen 
1!nc:reaselfO«rease in WOlking Capital 

Tax Paid 

B cam now Frem ,,",utln& Act1Itlties 
addltlcn of fixed Mseu 
~Slt of Non,Cul'I'ent In~ments 
Comm~~ 1'10", Wholly Ownc(\ Sublldiarie,s 
Interest lCcorne -
OlYldend lI«eNeQ from Subsldlar!es 
OiYi<!Cl1d RO:<:etred on Qthet lnv..strnl!nts 

Nef Cash \Jsl!d In inVl!Stinit A~{ ~} " 

(; Cash flow Ff'<Iln fln~nt:lne AttMtIes 
(Rcllilymerlt oil/Proceeds ftom Short Term IkIrTowIIljlS 
Rclpayme~ of lons T etm 8Qf<owll1ilS 
Rfll!IiUtlcn 04lo.;: terrt110~n1 
Interen & Flru.nce Chu,ei 
()Ividend paid 

Net Cash Usd in fl!,arKio, AtdvUloas { C 1 

0- Net Incre.se (tIl o-euease (-I in cash;and <:;;1m equE ... ", ... \ 
cam equivak!ftt {A+Bo.C) 

Ca$h IrndCWlsll Eqltiv;,lent Citlenl", eataRl:e 
C"sh and CaJiI Equi'lalenl (hlli.."lh"llCC 

". 

75 

95$,34,125 

6G,66.462 ... 
. 

lZ22,J5,438j 
{99,llS,15S) 
246,41,708 

17,93,944 
54,462 

(lG6.1.S,~Sl 

(152.59,3141 

8OS,lSA1O 

997,76,361 
(1415.4ti,436) 
134S,6s,O~4 

l,5"O.OOO 
(131,54,819) 
4897,24,990 

874,14,4811 

1.57,101 

6S7S,87,149 

7381,62,559 

(HQ,40.3S2) 
(140.40.382) 

7241,n,178 

[32,45,1OOJ 
(6304,06,210) 
222,3S,~38 

99,OS,lSS' • 
16&,15,29& 

(565.15,134) 

{146,41,1081 
(13.40.500)I! 

il 
{1!.24,Q7,94ZI 

,567,!IlI,m 

1273,l2,GSl 
1841.20,270' 

65,39,010 
41,15,111 

/222,56,000) 
(11O,6l>,5G8} 
:U,,$,41,31S 

77,31,567 
8,1124 

(11l.l5.350l 

(<461.29,116) 
(tSOl,35,OO6) 

S67A6A20 
SO,OOO 

1464.66,304 
2463.25,004 
UUO.4~9 

42,770 

(220,87.3311 

{S7,66,975} 
t1'19.82,489) 
122.56.000 
110,00,568 
171,U,l!SO 

2.soo 

-

(751,ss,667) 
14ll.95.'193) 
G1.Z0,OOO 

l~i3.09,150} 
(U,4O,SOO) 

830,14,307 

[81,867181 

742,21,523 

-

253,76,755 

!l$,04,2B3 

(2:10)11,331) 

ns,16.953 

1~2,u,alll 

{SO,14,404} 

UU,5S,457 
U73,32.0S2 

'. 



Ot'her ~ El<JIlIf1Qls 
tll ~ Bali<l<;es wJttr8<!nis 
{Ii) A",lntl Ma~ Moneyfor Sl.9t 

FISfM.P.allUlkaco. 
CIIfJrtillttd ~tcl1KS 

firm /tl!fld, flo.: l01851W 

Sd/. 
ASlwWh P<ldnmr 
'P'afI'i\"er 
MlImbarshipf>la.:041037 

~Mt.tmbal 

Date: Ulhlutle 2016. 

<" 

VERITAS (INDIA) UMiTED 

Sd{-
l/iIdn !(umor Qldwill11<o 
tJlnctQt 

om I OOU021l!l 

Sd/· 
Raj;uam Si-.a,lIIihas 
Chief I'lltltllC.lal OJJlw 
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16;14,602 

!a~1.1:1,971,i 

lB4l.2X!.2JO 

Sdt­
S3Ura'h SanclM 
DIf«tor 
001 :0<000411 

Sd/· 
P"$:JdQ~~ 

Company S<crll'!!>lY 

',' 
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VERITAS (u\1DIA) UMlTED 

1 Corporate Information 
Veritas (India) Umited {"The Company") Is a listed Public entity incorporated in India. The-company Is 1 n the business of 
International Trade & Distribution of Polymers. Paper & Paper Boards, Rubber, Heavy Distillates, Chemicals, Development 
of Software, Manufacture of Ceramic products, etc. The Company is also engaged in generation of Wind Energy. 

2 Significant Accounting PnUdes 

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS 

The company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies-Act, 2013 

and the Indian Accounting Standards lind AS} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 

These financial statements indude the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of <:ash flows and notes, comprisfng a summary of Significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information-and comparative information In respect of the preceding period. 

Up to the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in compliance with Accounting Standards as specified in 

the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 read with Rule 7(1} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules .. 2014 issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in r~spect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. These are the Company's first Ind 
AS financial Statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2016. 

The- company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carned out In accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time 
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. 

Refer Note 2.4 for the details of first time adoption exemptions availed by the Company. . -

2.2 Basis of Accounting 
The C{lmpany- m.alntains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention except certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd AS. 

Fair value measurements are ~tegorized into' levell, Z or 3 based on the degree to which th~ inputs to the fair value 
measurements are observable and the Significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are 

described as follows: 

level I Inputs are qu~ted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or .lIabilities that entity can access at 
measurement dat~ 

Level U inputs.are inputs. other than quoted price? Induded in levell, that are-observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly; and 

Level III inputs are unobservable inputs for the as;set or liabilitY 
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VERlTAS{}NmA} LIMITED 

2.3 Presentation of financial statements 
The financial statements (except Statement of Cash-flow) are prepared and presented in the format presc.ribed in Division 
II-IND AS Schedule III ("Schedule HI") to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of ind AS 7 "Statl;!ment of Cash 
flows". 

Disclosure requirements with respect to items in the fmanclal statements, as prescribed in Schedule III to the Act, are 
presented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed U oder the notified 
Accounting Standards. 

Amounts in the finandal statements are presented In Indian Rupees in line with the requirements of Schedule lU. Per 
share data are presented !n Ind!an Rupees. 

b}. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE} 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated depreciation and impaIrment losse~( If any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any 
cost dIrectly attributable to bringing the assets to its workIng condition for i;ts intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated wIth the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be 
measured reliablv. 

Depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment is provided based on useful Hfe prescribed in S<:hedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013 under Straight line Method. 
PPE not ready for the Intended use on the date of the 6alance Sheet is disclosed as "capital work-in-progress". 

The residual valueS, useful lives and methods of depredation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each -
flnancbll year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate_, 

Gains.or IQSSE~ arising from derecognltlon of a property/.plant and,equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognIsed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when the asset Is derecognised. 

Type of Asset with Useful Ufe 
Type of Asset Life -
leasehold land OVer the tease Period 
Plant and Machinery used in windpower generation - 22 Vears 
Other Plant and Machinery - 15 Years 
Office E.quipment - 5 Years 
Computer Equipment's 3 'Years 

furniture·and Fixtures. 10 Years 
Vehicle . a'Years -

c). Lea"4i!s 
Leases where the lessor effectively retains $ubstantially all the riSks 3t:1d benefits of ownership over the lease term 
<:ifE! cla$slfiec! as operating I~ase. Lease-payments for assets taken OD operating lease are recognised as an expense in 
the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term." - . 

". . .' 
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d). Intangible Assets and Amortisation 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation /depletion arid 1m pairment loss, if 
any. 

Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable .to bringing the asset to its 
working coijtljtion for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from 
exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets. 

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity an d the cost can be 
measured renably. . 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when 
the asset [s derecognised. 

Intangible assets oftlle company comprises of Software which is amortlted over a period of 5 years. 

e}. Sorrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised during the period of time that Is required to complete and prepare the asset for its Intended use or sale. 
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for thai r intended use or 
sale. 

fl. Inventories 
Items of Inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value afte.r providing for obsolescence, if any. 
Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing 
them to their respective present location and condition. The valuation of inventories is done on FIfO (first-in-first­
out) Method. 

g). Impairment oj Non Financial Assets 
Assets a~~ tested for Impairment whenever events ar changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 

. may not be tecoverable:An 'impaIrment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset~s fair value: less costs of disposal 
and. value in use. 

79 



VERlTAS {INDiA} LIMITED 

11). Provisions & ContIngencies 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events 
for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to. settle the obligation and th e .amount can be 
reliably estimated as at the batance sheet date. 

A disclosu(e for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligatIon that may, but 
will probably not, requite an outflow of resources. Information on contingent liabifities Is disclosed in the notes to 
flnandal statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefIt is remote. 

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the finandal statements where an inflow of economic benefit is 
probable. 

i). Employee Benefit Expenses 

(1). Short Term Employee Benefits 

All Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve month of rendering the service are classified as Short Term 

Employee Benefltsand they are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related ser\lice. 

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 

rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees reode r the services. 

(U). Post Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 
A defined contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified monthly 

povments to Employee State Insurance Scheme. Provident Fund Scheme and Government administered Pension 
Fund Scheme for all appliJ;:able employees. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in whlch the employee renders the related service. 

Defined Benefit l?lans 
~ ~ . - "-

Gratuity liability IS a defined benefit obligation which is provided for on the baSis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit cost method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/llosses} are recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income. This benefit is presented according to present value after deducting the fair value of 
the plan assets. the Company determines the net interest on the net define~ benefit liability (asset) in respect of a 
defined benefit by multiplying the net liability (asset) in respect of a defined benefit by the discount rate used to 

measure the defined benefit obligation as they were determined at the beginning of the annual reporting period. 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive 
. Income. 

Acct.imulated leave is' treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected ~ost of such 

absences 115 the, additional amount that it expects t.o pay as a result ofthe unused entitlement that has accumulated 
at the reporting date. 

Qther Long Term Emplove!' Benefits - . '. 
The employees of the company ar-e entitled to compensated absences whkh are both accumulating <lnd non· 

accumulating in nature:'The expected d5st of accumulating c0rl1pensated _absences is determined by:':actu<lrial 

val~a~lon uSing project!,!d unit'credit met!'o.d.·, . .' ~." . _ .' -



VERlTAS (-INDiA) lHVUTED 

n. Tax EKpenses 

The tax expense For the period comprise!> CUrrent and Deferred Tax. Tax Is recognised in Statement of Profrt and 
Loss, except to the extent that it relates to Items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity_ tn which 
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enact.ed at the Balance sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT} Credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the company will pay Income Tax under the normal provisions during the specified period, resulting In 
utilisation of MAT Credit. In the Year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in 
accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants' 
of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profrt and Loss and shown as MAT Credit 
Entitlement. Company revlews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
Cre~it Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the COlilpany will utilise 
MAT Credit dui'lng the specified period. '_ 

Deferred TaK 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Ilabllities in the 
standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, basea OR-t<»< rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period. 

k}. Foreign Currency 
Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements of the Company are presented using Indian Rupee (INR) i.e. turrency -.of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the respective functional currency using the exchange rates at the 
dates ~f the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting f[om the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denomin'ated in foreign currendes at year end exchange rates 

are recognised In profit Qr loss. 

ll. ,Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Escalation and other claims, which are not ascertainable/acknowledged by 
customers, ar~ not taken into account. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns and aHo)'lances, trade- discount~ ~and_ volume rebates. 

:,...-

Criteria for recognition of revenue are-as under: - , 
aj Sale of Goods 
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Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all 
the following conditions are satisfied: 

(il significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods ilre transferred to the buyer: 

(II)Company retains neither continuing manageriallnvo!vement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 
effective control over the goods sold; 

(Iii) it is probable that economic benefits assodated with transaction will flow to the Company; and 

(iv)amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
b) In cases where trade contracts provide for crystallization of price or for price adjustment on a subsequent date, 
corresponding purchase and sales are recognized on the basis of expected settlement price and any differential 
determined subsequently is accounted for at the time of final settlement. 

cjlncome from sale of electricity is recognized as per the terms and conditions of the .agreement with the Customer. 

d} Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding and applicable 
interest rate. 

e) Dividend is recognised when the company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend. 

m). Flnantlallnstruments 

(f), Financiallnstruments 

Initial Recognition 
Financial instruments i.e. Financial assets and fjnan~ialliabHitles are recognised whe!l the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Finandal instruments are initially measured at fair value-. 

_.Transaction ~osts that are directly attributable to the acquisl~ion or issue. of financial instruments (other than 
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair val ue of the financial 
instruments, as apprOjjriate, on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acqulsitiori- of 
financial instruments assets or financialliabHities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Financial assets 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost except financial assets carried at fair 
value through Profit and loss (fVTPl) or fair value tilrous,l. other comprehensive income (FVQCI). 

-' 
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3) EquitV Investments {other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture} 
All equity investments falling within the scope of tod-AS 109 are mandatorily measured at Fair Valu e Through Profit 
and Loss (FVTPL) with all fair value changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company has an irrevocable option of designating certain equity Instruments as NOel. Option of designating 
instruments as !=VOCI is done on an instrument-bY-instrument basis. The dasSification made on initial recognition Is 
irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity Instrument as NOel, then all fair value changes on the instrument are 
recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOO). Amounts from SOCI are not subsequently 
transferred to profit and loss, even on sale of Investment. 

b) Derecognltion 

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the 
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asse~ or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delav to a third party under a pass-through arrangement; and with that 
althe Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or bl the Com pany has neither 
tran~ferred nor retained substantianv all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

c} Impairment of financial assets 

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recogniSing allowances for expected credit loss on finanCial 
assets measured at amortised cost. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 
Finanoalliabllitles and equity instruments issued by the Company a're classified according to the substance of the 

, contractual g,rrangements entered into and the definitions of a financialliabiliw and an eqUity instrument. 

Subsequent Measurement , 
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at Amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate (EIRt except for 
finandalUabilttles at fair value through profit or loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral piut of the EIR. Amortisation is included as a part of 
Finance Costs in the Statement of Profit and loss 
Financial liabilities recognised at FVTPL.~l1 be subs.equently measured at fair value. 

Derecognltion 

A financial liability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
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Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and Uabilities are offset and the oet amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the (ecogo\sed amounts and there is an intention to settle Oil a net basis or realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Re-dasslflc:atlon of ffnanc:lallnstruments 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on Initial recognition. After initial recognition. 
no redassification Is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial 
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for 
managing thoSE! assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be Infrequent. The Company's senior 
management determin'es change In the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are 
significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business 
model occurs when the CompanV either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If 
the Company reclassifies financial assets, It applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date 
which is the first day of the immediatelv next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company 
does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including Impairment gains or losses) or Interest. The 
Company has not redassified any financial asset during the current year or previous year, 

0). Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit Of loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit after tax for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the ~riod are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

pl. Segment Reporting 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in lod AS -ios -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Declsion 
Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resource~' based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segme~ts. The Company concludes that it operates under two reporting 

segment viz {al Trading, Distribution and' Development and (b) Wind power genration. the secondary reponing 
segment is geograp.hical segment based on location of customer viz domestic and ov~rseas. 

Unallotable items iodudes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business 

segment. 

Segment Policies 
The Company prepares Its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 

presenting the standalone financial statements of the Co!Upariy as a whole. Comn:on allocable costs are allocated to 
each segment on an" appropriate basis. -

",;..-
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VEifUTAS (INOlA) UMlTEO 

Key estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates 
and assumptions that impact the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosure of 
contingent liabilitIes as at the date of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the 
accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and 
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Difference between the actual and estimates 
are recognised in the period in which they actually materialise or are known. Any revision to accounting estimates is 

- recognised prospectively. Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of Financia I Statements are 
prudent and reasonable. 

2.4 First Time Adoption of Ind AS 
The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2011 with comparatives being restated. Accordingly the 
impact of transition has been provided In the Opening ReselVes as at 1st April 2016. The figures fo. the previous 
period have been restated, regrouped and reclassified wherever required to comply with the requi rement of Ind AS 
and Schedule.HI. 

Exemptions from Retrospective Application 
{i}. Business combinations 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 011 non-application of Ind AS 103, "8usiness 
Combinationsn to business combinations consummated prior to April 1, 2016 (the "Transition Date"), pursuant to 
which goodwill/capital reserve arising from a bUSiness combination has been stated at the carrying amount prior to 
the date of transition under Indian GAAP. The Company has also applied the exemption for past bUSiness 
combinations to acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries I assodates I joint ventures consummated prior to the 
Transition Date. 

(ii}, Fair value as Deemed Cost 
The Company has elected to measure Items of property, plant and eqUipment and intangible assets at its carrying 
value at the tfansition date except for certain class of assets which are measured at fair valLIe as deemed cost. 

(ill). Investments In Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures a~d Associates 
The Company has elected to measure Investments in Subsidiaries, loint Ventures and Associates at Cost 

{Iv). Classif1cation and measurement of financial assets 

The Company has classified the finandal assets in accordance with Ind AS lQ9 on the basis of facts and 
circumstances that exist at the date oftransition to lnd AS. 
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VERlTAS (INDiA) llMI1'EO 

4 INVESTMENTS - NON CURRENT 
As at Aut As at 

Partlrulars 31 Marth 2018 nMarch2017 1 Aprif 2016 
Amount (Rs.) AmOUnt IRs.} AmoUnt (Rs.) 

1 Investments measured at Cost 
.. 

Investments fn Equity lnttuments • Unquoted 
Investment in Subsidiaries 
Verltas Potychem PriVate limited 100.00,000 100,CO,GOO 1,00,000 

ICY 10,00,000 equity shares of as. 10 each) 
(py 10,00,000 Equity shares of as. 1Q each) 
(py 10,000 Equity shares of Rs.IO each) 

Veritas Americas Trading Inc 67,610 67,610 67.610 
(CY 10,000 Equity snares of $ 0.1 each) 
(PV 10,000 Equity shares of $ 0.1 each) 
(py 10,000 Equity shares of S 0.1 eilChl 

Veritaslntemational FZE UAf 2901,36.053 2901,36,0£3 2901.36,063 
(CY 16 Shares of AEO 10,00,000 each) 
(py 16 Shares of AED 10,00,000 each) 
(py 16 Shares of AED 10,00,000 each) 

Hazellntemational FZE UAE 1249,64,845 171,78,595 5,96,095 
(CY 35 Shares of AEO 1,000 each) 
(Jl'Y 35 Shares of AEO 1,000 each) 
(PY 35 Shares of AED 1,000 each) 

-
Veritas Agro Venture Private limited 1,00,000 1,00,000 1.00,000 

(CY 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 
(ftY 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 
(py 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

Veritas Infra &. Logistics Private limited 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 
(CY 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) -. -
(py lO,OOO Eql.lity Shares of As. to each) 

-(py 10,000 EqultyShaies of Rs. 10 each} 

VeritasAgricom llP 4,99,990 4,99,990 -

Veritas Infra llP 9,99,999 9,99,999 -
-

Other Investment 
Quasi eqclty contribution to Veritas Polychem Private -
lIml~ed 5226,19,960 -

I ITotal Unquoted 9494,88.467 3190,82,257 ~910,.99.76a 
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VERITAS UNDIA) LIMITED 

4 Investments Contd 
2 

I 

Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit 
and loss 
Investments in equity Intrumeots • Quoted 
Investments in others 
Vitan Agro Industries limited 18.80,000 40,40,000 54,92.,000 

(CY 4,OOJOOO EqultyShares. of R$. i-each) --
(I'Y 4,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each) 
(py 4,00.000 equity Shares of Rs. 1 eaen) 

DS {International} Stock Brokers Umlted 42,00,000 - 47,SO,OOO 99,.50,000 
ICY 5,00,000 EqUity Shares of Rs. 2 each) 
(py 5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each) 
(py 5,OO,OOOEquity Shares of Rs. 2 each) 

Ramler COrporatlon limited 64,03,418 53.32,112 63,57,679 
(CY 4,57,38 EqUity Shares of Rs. 10 each} 
(py 4,57,38 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 
~PV 4,57,38 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

-. .-
CO.ln(ernational Limited 1,89,750 3,15,000 14,49.000 

(CY 15.000 EqUity Shares of RS.IO each) 
(py 15,000 Equity Shares ot Rs. 10 each} 
(py 15,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

I Total quoted 11.6,13,168 154,67,112 2:n.qS,679 

Total 9621,61,635 3345,49,369 3143,48,447 

4 1 Information as requir!:.d under paragraph 17{b) of lnd AS - 27 for Investment In Wholly owned SUbsidiaries' 
...... , . 

.. '~ Name ofi~eSubsidj~fy ••. . .. 

Veritas .polyc.hem Pnv!te limited 
Veritas Americas Trading rnc 
Verltas International FZE 
Hazeiloternational FZE 
Gv Investment Finance company limIted 
Verltas Globle pte ltd 
Veritas Agre Ventures Private limited 
Verltas Infra & logistiCS Private limited 
Veritas Agrlcom llP 

Veritas Inlra-LLP 

Loans and Advances 
Advance Tax (Net of PrOVisions) 
Capital AdV<lIKE 

Total-. 

::;:..-

". ". . . 
Princlp~d Place of AS at .' As at ., ·.As at 

BUsiness 31 March 2013 31:M~fch 2017 i~~rn2016 
~ 

%ohha~ehol~ngS: .... 
India 100 

'. 

USA 100 
-

UAE 100 
UAE 100 

Mauritius 100 
Singapore 100 

India 100 
India 100 
India 100 
IMla 100 

- 84.33.362 

84r33,362 
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. 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

91,27,111 

3,50,000 
94,77,111 

100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

100 
100 

72.16,023 
4,00,000 

-

- 76,16,023 
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VERtTAS {INDIA) LIMITED 
;.;, .... ;: 

partit.ulars -" . ':.'.'-

(At Lower of Cost and net realizable valuel 
Stock In Trade 
Stock in Transit 

Trade Receivables 
Unsecured 

Total 

Considered Good 

Considered Doubtful 
Less: Provision for Expected Credit loss allowance 

on doubtfu I debts 
Total 

Trade Receivables from relatelfPartle:> 
HazetMercantl1@ Limited 

Sanman Trade impex limited 

Aspen International Private I.!mited 

P~rtli:Ul~rs 

Cas.h :and Cash Equivalents 
(il aalam:es with Banks 

I n Current Accounts 
Iii) Cash On !-land 

OtherBaok Balances 
(i) Unpaid Dividend Bank Accounts 

(II) Oepos.t \'{lth matufitv for mOfe tnan 12 months 
Deposit with maturity far more than 3 months but less 

{iii} than 12 Months lheld as margin money against c 

bOrrowing} 

Asilt 

31 March,2!>1S. 
Amount (RS., 

1413,84,041 

-
1473,a'Ml41 

. . .ASat;:',X!~~. ". 
31 March 2ll~S .• 
Amount (RS.f 

10853,05,295 

78,1$,129 

(18,15,129) 

1086~.OS.29S 

As at 
31 Ma~th2018 

1016,97,500 
3688,81,Q()4 

315,57,825 

2,58,145 
75,546 

16,14,602 

1821,71,976 

:~: ,:.!-. 

Ant 
31 Mar.ch 2011 

' .. ' .. ~' 
Amount (Rs;) 

2001,36,$02 

470,24,400 

2411.60,902 

Milt .• ··;.··.· 
31 March 2017 ... 
Amou~t (Rs..} '. 

9447,58,359 
725,92.993 

(nS,92,993} 
9447,58,859 

A$a~ 

,nMarch 2017 

24,99,3.70 

60,136 

13,68,710 

1214,03,786 

Statement of Cash Flows 
1841.20;270 1273;32,052 

89 

As.at 
1 AprlJ20~6 
Amount{~§;l 

10,31.726 
. 

10.31,726, 

. . )\sat 
1 April 2616 
Amount {Rs.} 

7544,23,853 
503,69,597 

(S\l3,69,597) 

7544,23,853 

As 
1 Apol 

12,27,694 

58,70.~76 

1l.lZ,195 

1241,46,093 

i323,56,457 
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VERlTAS (INOlA) LIMiTED 

A$3t Aut As at 
P<lrtialiars 31.Marllh 2018 31 Mardi 2017 IJ1.prif 2016 

Amount (Its;) Amount'(~:i ArtiCU"~(R$.} 

Unsecured Considered Good unless. otherwise stated 
loans and Advances 

To Emplovees 1.15,000 40,000 43,502 

To Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (Refer N.ote No. 3S) 1544,06,564 2880.15.343 4066,93,258 
others 182.99,92Q 200,00,000 440,34,QQO 

Security Oeposlts. 895,63,107 896,87.615 34,91,090 

T~I 2623,84,591 3917,42,963 4S4Z,.61,BSl 

~a~CulaB 
.... A~at Mat: P-$;tt. 
.31 :Mareh201S 31 Marcl\2017 '1 AprillOi6 

.: . AtnOunt (Rs.) AJnoo~liRi;i AmoUnt tR~.) 

Unsecured, Considered Good 

Otller Retelvables 9,93,417 5,00,068 9,59,768 

Total 9,93,411 5.00,068 9,59,168 

. Asat As at 
:UMM~2(n7 1iApri12016 

, ....... A;n~nt (ft~.l ~~~ti6s~) Amoun~ 11\$,) 

'unsecured, Considered Geod 
Prepaid Expenses 93,37,175 lS,Ol,S20 113,87,134 
Mvance Gratuity 17044.167 
6alance with Government Authorities 53,53.908 14,18,852 1384,09,541 

Total 164.35,250 32,80,311 1497,96.675 

.~-
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VERlTAS (iNDIA) UiVll1''ED 

12 EQUITY SHAR.~ _~APlTA~ 

As at As at As at 
Particulars 31 MarCh 2018 31 Mardi 2017 1 April 2016 

Amount IRs,) Amount {Rs.} Amount (~5.J 

Authorised Share Caplt<ll 
Equity Shares of Rs.l each 1000,00,000 1000,00,000 1000,00,000 
(CY 10,00,00,000 shares of Rs. 1 each) 
(py 10,00,00;000 shares of Rs. 1 each) 
(py 10,00,00,000 shares of Rs.l each) 

Total .- 1000,00,000 1000,00,000 1.000,00,000 

Issued Subscri~ and Paid Up 
Equity S,iares of Rs. 1 each :268,10.000 268,10,000 268,10,000 
(CY 2,68.10.000 shar~s of as. 1 each) 
(py 2,68,10,000 shares of RS. 1 each) 
(PV 2.68,10.000 shares of RS.l each) 

Total 268,10,000 268,10,000 2.68.10,000 

12.1 The reconcilfation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below: 

particUiirS As at 3~M~~ch ~Q18 As at As <it 
31 Marth 2017 1 Aprll 2016 

Equity Siures at the beginning of the ye<lf (nos) - 258.10,000 268.10,000 268,10,000 
Add/less: Changes In Equity 5hllres (nosl . - . 
Equity Shares at the end oltha yeatJnos) 268.10,000 268,10,000 2.68,.10,000 

12.2 Tbe details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares: 

Name ofth~Sl)areholden . M~t~1,st\\t1~rctt,2.01~ A!iO at ~~st March, 2017 As aUst April, 2016 
No; ofSnar~s • % Holdiilg No. of Shilres % Holding No. of Shares % Holding 

Mr. "min Kumar Oldwaoia 92,50,000 34.50 92,50,000 34.50 9:2,50,000 34.50 
Ms. NIt! Oldwania 67,13,100 25.04 67,13,100 25.04 67,13,100 25.04 
Onix Assets Ltd. 30,00,000 11.19 30,00,000 11.19 30,00,000 11.19 

. latitude Consultants Umlted 26,00,000 9.10 26,00,000 . 9.70 26,00,000 9.70 
Kamalasini Tradellnk ?lIt Ltd; 14,71,300 . 5,49 14,11,300 S.49 . 14,71,300 5.49 

12.3 Rights, preferences and ff!strietlons attached to Equity shares 

"The Company ha~ Issued only one c.lass of equity shares having a par value of INR 1 each. Each equity shareholder Is entitled to 

one vote per share. The Company declares and payS dividend in Iridian Rupees. The dividend proposed by tae Board of 
Directors is subjett to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annua~ General Meeting. 

-
In the event of I1quldatlon of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to reteil/e remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferentIal amounts. ihe distribvtlon will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the snareholders.# 

12 •. 4 Proposed Dividend 

ihe Board of Oirettocs of the Company has proposed dividend at 'f; 0.05 per equity share for the financial year 2017-2018, which 
would have been declared in the Annual General meeeting. 

;:,..-
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VERlTAS {INOlA} liMITED 

13 OTHER EQUrrv 

[I). 

(iiI. 

(HI). 

Particulars 

Securities Premium 
Opel\ing Balance 
Additions J (Transfers) during the vear 

Closinl! Balance 

Surplus in Statement of profit and loss 
Opening Balance 
Add: Proiit for the year 

CredIt for Tax 011 OMdem:f 
Transfe.drom Capital Reserves 

less: Final Dlv/(fend on Equity 
Snares (tv Its. 0.05 per share} 
{PV Rs. 0,05 per share)(PY Rs. NH per share} 
Tax on DIvidend 

Clostng Balance 

Opening Balance 
Other Comprehensive Income {Oel) 

Add: Movement in 00 {Net) during the year 

Closing Balance 

- Total 

St!cured at Amortise<! Cost 
Rupee loans 
fmmsanlcs 

Total 

Secured at AmortIsed Cost _ 
loans repayble on-demand f~om Banks 

Total 

I 

Asat ~ 

31 March 2018 
Amtiunt (Rs.} 

9711,68.750 

-
9111,68.150 

S067,10,781 
614,69,095 

-
. 

(13,40,500) 

-
566899,3.76 

~,60.263 

8,84,289 

(8,29,827) 

4.14.nS 

15384,82,852 I 

As at 
'31 March 20UJ 
·~Amc;.,.nt(Rs.) 

1114,31,467 

1114,31,461 

Mat 
31 MII.rch l017 
Am~Jnt(RS~ 

9711,68,750 

-
9111,68,150 

4316,67,158 
697,74,123 

2,14,400 

56,iO,aDO 

(13AO,SOO) 
(2,74,400) 

5061.70.781 

3,,52,239 

-
8,024 

3,60,263 

14182.99,194 I 

1679,47,202 

1S.1 Primary Security· EKtlusive Char e on the Current Assets of the Company 
Collateral SecurIty· Personal Guarantee of the Director (Mr. Nit!n Kumar Oidwanla) 

--

92 

A.!i3t 
1 April 2016 
Amount (A.s.) 

7:137.68,750 
2574,00000 
9711,68,750 

34$8.24,3{)6 
855.95,064 

2,47,789 

-

-
-

4316,61,158 

3,52,239 

-
3,52,239 

14031,S8.147 J 

:-:·Asat 
1 April 2016 
AmCJUnt (lis.) 

40,95.495 

40,95,495 

2431,45,869 

2431,45,869 
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VERiTAS (INOlA) lIMITED 

16 .TRADE PAVABlE5 .. 

.Asat As at As :at 
Partlcul.ars 31 Marth 2018 31 March 2011 1 AprU;a016 

Amount {Rs.l Amount (1\5.1 AmOunt (R:i.) 

Trade paY<'btes .. 
• Micro Small and Medium Enterprises . . -
-Others 9217,70,212 4320,45,221 :1.857,20,117 -

- Total 9211,10.2~2 4320,45,221 1.~,20J217 

16.1 Refer Note 32 for disclosures onder Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

P3iil~iai's 
.-

Current Matur{ty of long term Borrowings 

Statutory liabilities 
Financial Gurantee Obligation 

Interim/Flnat OMdend Unpaid 

Other Payables 

Total 

Provision far leave Encashment 

Total 

': ... ".,",- ,:, 
:,(v<>' ',';'.' 

pa~#UI~S,,' 

Provlslon tor Tax {Net of Advance Tax} 

Total 

93 

A,sat. . AS at 
3i Mar~h2018 .. ·······31 'Mardi '2QU 

Am~~~t(Rs.) 

-
8,43,304 

912,03,150 

16,14,602 
253;18.582 

1190,40,238 

:' ..... ·P,.sat •... :.. 

31Ma~d, 201)J 
.. :;~,:·:~L> 

13,45,343 

13,45,343 

1l3,lO.176 

113,10,178 

:,;,.-

··Amou~t(R$.) 

39.02,659 
7,1S,931 

-
13.68,710 

256,38,450 

316,25,750 

. A'i> itt 
II Ni~rch 2017 

Amo\.lnt{fls.l 

11,88.242 

11,88,242 

'i,:A.saf:· 
"?31M~rchio17 

..... Amount (~~.l 

36,35,544 

AS at 
. .1 APril 2016 
. Am6tJttt {R~,l 

99,43,613 
6,58,534 

-
11,12,195 
77,00,969 

194.15.311 

As at 
1 Aprll2016 

Amount (Rs.) 

11,45,472 

l1,4S,4n 

39,86,612 

39,86.672 
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VERtTAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
iIlote, (0 Flnanci3! ;'t;;t(.!!t1;?nh"" for tile \!~;M <!ndl:!d 3:15t March; 2018 

PartlCUiars 
- --::_'-::--

Sale of Products 

Total 

Elec;trlcity Generation 
Agricultural Farm Produce 
Traded <Jnd Developed GOOdl 

1m! 

---
Part!cUian -

Dividend 1n<X11T!e 

- Subsidiaries. 
" OthefS 

InUlut Incomo . 
- Interest on Income Tax Refund 
- Interest ,ncome on FO carried at Al1\orrtised Cost - • Subsidl:\rie~ 

Other Non Opratlng lnI:JOme 
- Amortisation of Floan,lal Guarantee 
-lnlereston Fair Valuation of Rei'll Oeposit 
-Others 

Tobl1 

-

"" 

_./\sat 

llMitri:ii20i8 
:~~(I\£) 

52488,95,415 

52405.91,447 

52488.95.415 

Aut 
31~~~hiolS 
Amount IRs.} 

166,75.298 
-

-
- 99.05,155 . -

222.35,438 
2,31,253 
1,11,106 

491.s&.SSO 

94 

As at-

-llZo~(t 
53401.76.,119 

81,75,789 

52,28.908 
53261,71,722 

53401.16,419 

Asat 
n M<lf~hW17 
-~~t(Rs.) 

171,12,850 

2.500 

112.59.625 
-

110,60.568 

165,82,500 

Z.01,4Q2 
112,75,300 

675,00,745 
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VERITAS (INDIA) UMtTED 
NO~t!S: to rii1~ncj31 5,=a~el'nt:!nts for rh~ I/e.a( ~!fld~d 315C {1J~2:rfChl ;,,\)'1{t 

Salar, I wages and Allowances 
CanUibuticno:'UI Provident & OthQr fund 
OIrecl:ori' I\'emuneratlon 

Total 

~itlc:ular$ 

On Term loilns 
• ll'lte«!st on Term t031'1 

- Intlll1!$t on Car loan 

On WOfkIne: Capital to~a$ 
- Bank lat_st 
• Bank Ch¥s:es, Commission and Others 
·Interest on F<llt Va!uatlon of Relit t!eposit 

Total 

0- ;.;.' 

.: \ 

As at , 
ll~~ch 2IlUI 
'~nttR$;)' 

232,50,379 
U,13,4S4 
30.00,00(1 

kat 
3i Match 2018 
ARiarilrt {as.} 

76,282 
SO? 

194.25.411 
49,07.200 

l.l2.168 

246,41.708 

95 

Aut 
31 M~rch'201i 
·;~tl~.) 

nl,13,!142 
9,0l.970 

24,00,000 

264,16,912 

AUt 

3.lMafch~n 
Amaunt (RS.) 

W.7S,442 
53,168 

131,17,397 
SO.62.W 

2.32.1G8 

225,41,318 



VERlTAS (INDIA) LlMITE.D 
NQt~; to ::in.iH)cl<l1 S~atf!mant'i for the '1e"'f ~ncled 31st M<Jn::n, ~OH 

I.ogi$tics Expenses 
~OIarges 

Rent Paid 
Repairs 8. MailltalnanCi! 

Mad"iinel)' 
Others 

Insuranc9 
Rates. and illlll!S 

llrokerage & Commiuion Ooarges 
Communication el<j)etl~es 
Travelling <Ina Convr;vancli 
!'tlntinli an6 Statlonftt'¥ Expenses 
Advertising 1 Business PrlllT!(!l.ion Expen~s 
Legal atId Pfofl!5Slol\i.lt Fees 
Pavments :0 Auditors lRefe.' Note 24.1} 

t.oss on tale of J:ixed Assets 
E1ectrl6ty Chal'ges 
"arminl!. txpense$ 
Directors' Sittlng Fe6 
Mlscellaneous Expenses 
COrpOt<lt~ Sodal Responsibility {Refer Note 26l 
ead.debts. 

Ulss:Proviron Far bad debls 

Provision on Win 
Allowance 101' Expected Cu!clt loSS, 
Nat \.o$s olllnve$Unent c.mi\ld at MPl 

Statutory Audit Fees 
Tax Audit F~s 

Tobi 

Total 

-

. As at 
!1~~iilo1S 
,~~tll\$:) 

36,11,039 

~,20,611 

15,48,415 

-
2S,34.988 

19,760 
lMA8S 
833,460 
4,98,163 
1,37,409 
8,73,316 

1,25,204 

5,37,538 
55,11,186 
29,10,000 

. 
6,46,939 

-
88.21Q 

1,59,396 
5.9S,2:l.S 

79S,07.6lB 
(725,92,993) 

20,00.000 
78.15,129 
27,93,944 

4H,17,821 

..••..... :.!\S~,~.;', 
at MlIrch:2018~ 
~;tj~t i~:L ......• 
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Mat 
.U M~r~Il'2lit1 
~l8S;) 

24.35,190 
56.080 

U,83,5ll 
. 

18.60,108 
1,1l,n4 
l,o:.,SOl 

89.022 
. 

10,61,631 
23,11,601 

n,860 
9,20,217 

112,8S,B28 
l!},OO,OOO 
47,75,211 
7,l6,412 
6,92,941 

S6,000 
12,59,391 

-
· 
· 
· 

:U2.Za.~96 

77,81,561 

602,l7,191 

kal 
31MarChlOl1 
~mIl\lnt {as.) 

9,00,000 
1.00.000 



VEIUTAS (INDIA) lIMlTED 
~j{lt,:!.'l to:; Fimmd3i Stll~~lm!nt5 lor til::. '!f!;'!j( ended ,Ust Mllr<.h, :Wlu 

, AUlt ~3t 
!>a~iH$" :31~ri:h 2018 ,;31 MiirdilOl1 

-- : :'An\~ ,ItS.) '~~il~J 

Proltt bllfote Taxes 9S11.34,71S 5li4,69,SS9 
~: Exempt Incomas - (4S,U,461j 
Add: Ol5al!owanee of EXpenses l.26,732 1,09,981 
Profits a$ per lna:)me TalC Act,1961 1037,76,585 920,41,013 
AppIkableRate (MAl) 20.39" 2O.3!mr 
T;u Pmvi!;iQn - 211,58.852 187,6&,116 
Md: Interests Attrib\ltal.lie 11.32.842 U7.317 
Mel: Taxes related to Pdar Years (55.462) 1,:21,082 
Add: Tax On items In OCt 2;l7,974 

Total <:utnmt Tax Provision 214,54,207 198,25,115 

l5.1 Deferred Tall liability I (AUeIS} 

A$!,t Aiit Mat 
Pafti~ula rs U Match 2018 ill M~rch 2017 31 March 2D1t> 

Amount IRs.) A~l\tiib.} Ampunt{~,) 

Arising: on II\:tOUtlt of Tlmlns Difference In Oeprecillble A$Seu 
Gross Deferred Tax liability I (AsselS) ( 19,42,487J 46,42,445 :t9S,~9,816 
Add/tless) : Provision for Current Year tl9,SG,8S4 (65,84.932) (148,n.371) 

~et Deferred iax liability / I~etsl 100.14,3" t~,4US7) 46,42,.445 

-- ;..-
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
NO~!1J to irinlllH:ir;ll Statements 1M ~he y~",r ~1i!1;,,(! ;Hs~ iVI<lrch .• lUi!; 

. Mat 

" :31 r.iiaiih ama 
. "-,; ... ,. tArh~~tt~} 

(i) Gross Amount to be: spent by the Company during the veM 
(RJ Amount spen~ during tile 'fear 
ti} COIlstl'uction/Acqulstion afany asset 
b) On purpose other than above (il) (a)-In cash 

c) On purpose other than above Iii) (a}. Vat to be paid in cash 

Amcunt unspent during the ~r 

.partteuiar.s .. ... 

{ll. ProfltJ(loss} ilttrlbutable to Equity Shareholders of the 
CompallY (>Is.) 

{Il}. Weight!!<l Average number of Equity Shares (llaskl{no$) 
(fill. welght!!<l AVer.!ge number of fquity Shares (Ollut!!<ll(oosl 

(iv). Bask: Earning~ per Share (Rs.) 
(v). Olluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 

Ivn. face \/alue per Equity Share IRs.) 

16,19,305 
5,95,215 

10,24,090 

A$<it 
11~~h2ol8 

614,69,(l95 
268,tO,OOO 

268,10,000 
2.29 
2.29 

1 

98 

. Asilt 
........ '.'.31' Marth 2011 
··.·:;;~Ji~IR$;) ~-. 

18,91,153 

18,9USl 

Molt· 
31 Mafth2.Ol7 

697,74,123 

268.10,000 

268.10,00!) 
2.60 

2.60 
1 
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• ......,.,'T'U"O' .... ~~ ..... OF VERITAS INDIA LIMITED 

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated fud AS Financial Statements ofVERITAS~ 

lNDIA LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries 

(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), comprising 

of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statements of Changes 

in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 

of the significant accounting poHcies and other explanatory infonnation (hereinafter referred 

to as "the Consolidated Iud AS Financial Statements"). 

Management's Responsibility 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true ane. fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial perfonnance (including other 
comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated statements of changes in 

equity _~f the Group including its Associates and its Jointly controlled entities in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards _ (Ind AS) sp~cified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian 
- -

Acco~ting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, The respe~tive Board of Directors of the 
." companies -/ go:veming bodies included in the GrQup, its associat~s and of its jointly 

controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of--adequate accourtting r~cords in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group, associates 

and its jointlycon1!0Ued entities and for preventing and detecting fr.auds and other 

irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgmen~ and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the~ design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively tor 
- --

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 

and pres..entatio~ of the lnd AS Financial Statements that give a true ~d fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, wheili(lf due to fraud or- error, which have been used -for the 

purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Board of 

Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
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Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the 

provisions of the AC4 the accounting and auditing standards an9 matterst which are required 

to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 

under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 

requireI!lents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 

disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statementst whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal tinancial control relevant to the Holding 

Company's preparation ofllie Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and 

fair. view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An 

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company's Board of 

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements. We _believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and_ the audit evidence 

obtained by the other ~uditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-para~aph (a) of the 

Other Matters paragraph below; is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit-- . 
opinion on the Consoli~ted Ind AS Financial Statemen~. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us and based on the consideration of reports of o~her auditors on separate financial statements 

and on the other -fmancial information of the subsidiaries, the attached Consolidated Ind AS 
. . 

Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the acco~ting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the consQlid~ted state of affairs of 'the Group, as at .March 3J,., 2918, and their 

consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated changes in 

equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

.~. 
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Other Matters 

a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of aU the ~ubsiaiaries (and their step­
down subsidiary) included in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement, whose Ind 

AS financial statements reflects total assets of Rs. 2776.30 Crores and net assets of 

Rs.l176.59 Crores as at March 31, 2018, total revenues of Rs. 1154.43 Crores and net 

casnflows of Rs. 3.02 Crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. This includes the unaudited financial 

statements of one overseas subsidiary whose total assets Rs.0.22 Crores, Net Assets Rs. 
(0.11) Crores, Total Revenues of Rs. Nil and Net Cash Flows-of Rs. Nil is based on 

management accounts. These Ind AS financial statements have been audited by other 

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on 

the attached Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the 

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled 

elltities and associates, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, insofar as it 

relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

b) The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31. 2017 
and March 31, 2016 prepared in accordance with the with the Companies (Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2006 were audited by the predecessor auditor who has issued a report 

dated 25/05/2017 and 24/051 2016 on financial statements of the Company for the··year 

ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 respectively expressed an unmodified 
opinion, which have been relied upon by us. We have audited differences in the 

atcounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS for the year 
ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016. . -

c) Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, and our report on Other 

Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above 

matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors 

and the financial statements! financ~a1'inforrnation certi~ed by the Management. 

Repo.rt on Other Legal and RegUlatory Requirements 
As required by section 143(3) of the Act) based on our audit and on the consideration of 

report .. of the other auditor~ on separate financial staterp.ents and th~ other ~nancial 

information of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, as noted in the 'other 
matter' paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a) W~ have sought aI).d obtained"all th~ ~iiformation and explanations, ,?"hicb. to the best of 
OU~ knowledge. and belief were necessary for the p~\rposes of our audit of the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statem6ots; . 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

Consolidated Iud AS Financial Statements have been kept so rar as it appears from OUr 

examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors; 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including other comprehensive income). the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account and workings maintained for the purpose of 

preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements; 

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the 

Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company as on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

directors of the holding company is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being 

appointed as a director in tenus of Section 164 (2) ofllie Act; On the basis of t.he reports 

of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, incorporated in India. none of the directors of 

the subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India is 

disqualified !\S on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a direct9r in tenus of section 

164 (2) of the Act; 

. .- ~ 

f) With resPe<:t to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure 1 except in case of 
" -

oversea~ subsidiaries the reporting on operating effectiveness of internal fmancial 

controls over financial.reporting is not applicable. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance 

\vith rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 as amended, i~ our 

opinion and to the- best of our information and according to the explartations given to us 

and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors oh separate Financial 

Statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries,: 

-l. T-he consolidated lnd AS' Financial' Statements - discld"SC the impact at' pending 

litigati~ns on the conSolidated financial positlon.of the Grou~~-- Reier" note 31 to the 

consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements: 
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ii. The Holding Company and the individual entities have made provision, as required 

under the applicable law an~ accounting standards; for material foreseeable losses, if 

any, on long~term contracts including derivative contracts~ and 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group. 

For M. P Chitale & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: l01851W 

Sd/~ 

Ashutosh Pednekar 

Partner 
Membership No.: '041037 

Place: Mumbai 

Datet June 12, 2018 
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Annexure I - referred to in paragraph 1(1) under "Report on Otlu~r Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even dat 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under 

section 143(3)(i} of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the 

Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited th.e Internal 

Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements of VERIT AS INDIA LIMITED 
Cthe Holding Company') and its subsidiaries. its associate companies and jointly controlled 

entities (together referred to as 'the Group'), which are companies incorporated in India" as of 

that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Group are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro I stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (leAl). These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
~ - . ... 

of frauds and errors, the ac6uracy and completeness of the accounting records, and-the timely 
- - -

preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors'Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls 

with reference to Financial Statements based on our audj.t. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial . . 
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed 

to be prescribed l.Ulder section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the ex.tent applicable 

to an. audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidan~e Note require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
. . 
Statements was estaplished -and IlJ.aintained and if such controls operated effectivelY in all 
",.. ~ - -- . ... --
materiaL- respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statement and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 

risk. The ProcedUre.li selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements~ whether 

due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the 

other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph. below, is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company~ s Internal 

Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
A company)s,Intemal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of Consolidated fud AS Financial Statements for external purposes in 

accordance \vith generally accepted accounting principl~s. A company1s Internal Financial 

Control'with reference to Financial Statements includes those poliCies and procedures that (1) 

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, a~curately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

,assunlnce that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS 

Consolidated Financial statements in accordance with.. generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance- regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statemenb 

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

• -projections of any. evalUation of the lnt~mal Financi~i Controls with ref,?rence to Financial 
. Statements" 1.0 future periods- are subject to the risk that the Internal Fin(Jl1cial Conlrol with 

,.' refer~nce to Financial St~tement~ may become i~adequate b~-cau~e' of changes in -colldit.!~ns)' 
.' t;r that the degree or compliance with' the policies or p,:ocedures rt1ay dCletinrale. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion. the Holdint Company, its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in 

India, have, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls system with 

reference to Financial Statements and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Financial Statements were operating effectively as on March 31~ 2018, based on the Internal 

Control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Holding Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in. the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (rCAI). 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements in so 

far as it relates to the company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in 

India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in 

India. Further, the Company has overseas subsidiaries where Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to Financial Statements are not applicable. 

ForM. P Chitale& Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 101851W 

Sd/-
Ashutosh Pednekar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 041037 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 12,2018 
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ASSETS 

1 Non·Current Auets 
(a) PfOperty, Plant and Equipment 

(bl capital Worl;·iI\-Progress 
. (e) FlnantlalAuets 

- (I] -Investmllnts 
(d) . Oeferred tax mets INet) 
('!l. Other Non - Current Assets 

Total Non Current Assets 

2 Curtent mats 
(al .J!Iventorias 
(bl Financial AsselS 

(i) • Trade Receivables 
[Ii) - Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(ill) -LOins 
(iv) - Other financial Assets 

(el OtnerCUrrent Assets 
Tol1'llCUrrent Assets 

Tol1'liAssets .. 

VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet As lit 31st March lOiS 

.C 

':.:<::" ' .. ·.i ... ··~· ... \.1~~~e51· ":llM~~\~l~ ,. "'.::.'.,:. 
I I I 

3 SS794.8S.86! 

3 131631,22,,454 

4 126.73,168 

27 -
5 575,84,757 

218128,66,242 

6 1473.84,041 

7 66619,73,6()1 

8 5719,58,362 

9 1415.67,271 

10 10,18,404 

11 245.54,97" 
75484,56,653 

293613.22 895 

(Amount In Its ) 

~l ~~~~~i1:\' .' 1~t;iI~io1~ ·.:i: >.: 
I 

BS8OS,84,Sn 85676,34,553 
72969,23,532 38607,71,346 

154,67,112 232.48,679 
19,17.133 -

213,67,927 76,16,023 
159162,60,381 124592.70,601 

3404.95,679 34,16,590 

50272.83.254 41188,94,271 
48S0,U,442 8691,69,738 
1951,52.508 2798,26,730 

S,Q9,068 9,68,768 
43,17,891 1706,79,597 

1i0527,69,843 54429,55.694 

.. 
2l!690,30 22S 179022.26 295 

'EQUIIY AND UAlIlllTlES . .: >.: . ":::.: ,'::.:: ..... :::;. : ... ,:: .... :., .. ,>.: .•. : .. -.. : .. 
Eql!ity 

1 (a) Equity SharI! capital .- 12 

(b) Other Equity 13 

Total Equity 

-. UabiUtles 

2 Non<arrent Uabillties 

lal Flnanclal Uabliltie.s 
-II) - Borrowln&S 14 

(Ii) • Other FlnanclalLJablUtles 15 

(b) oeferred Tax Uablatles (Net) 27 

.. Total Non Current Liabilities 

3 Current Uabllities 

lal financial Uablll~ --
(i) • Borrowings 16 

(II) • Tnde Payables - 11 -lift) • Other Financial liabilitIes 18 

(b) Provisions - 19 

(e) .. current Tax Uablllties (Net) 20 

ToulCUrrent Uablltles 

Total Equltv and Uablltles 

- Tile accompanVing notes forms Integral part of the Financial Statements 1& 2 

As per our report of Il\Il!n date: attached 

for M.p,Chltaie &. Co. 
Chartered AccovnlDnts 
Firm Reed. No~ 1018S1W 

Sd/· 
Ashu!osh PednelGlr 
Partner 
Membership No.: 041037 

Plata: Mumbai _ 
Date: 12th June 2018. 
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268,10.000 268,10.000 
124444,83.759 117226.14,716 
124712.93,759 117Q94.24,176 

Q640S,89,821 49026,20,936 
40576,09,374 24302.83.537 

100,20,679 -
87082,19.874 73329.04,ol73 

50466,07,567 15371,54,791 
25215,00.147 13257,81.810 -
·5799,80,417 188,40,588 

224,10,953 11,88,242 
113,10,178 36.35,544 

81818,09.162 28867.00,976 

2936l3,22,895 219690,30,225 

For and on behaH of the Board of Olretlors 

Sd/· 
Nltln KUmar Dldwanla 
Director 
DIN : 0021.0289 

Sd/-
R~laram Shanbh.!1l 
elflel Financial Officer 

268,10,000 
111045,33.879 

111313,43.819 I 

-

25412.69,944 
16563.49,181 

46,98.563 
42083,17,6811 

_. 
15285.49,603 
lOOS8,S5,86() 

230,27.120 
.. 11.45,472 

39.86,672 
25625,64,721 

179022 26,295 

Sd/­

Saurabh Sanghvl 

Director 
DIN: 02000411 

Sd/­

Prasad Oak 
.~ Company Secretory 



VER1TAS (INDIAl LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement or Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31st March 2018 

.. .';::: 

:....:\,>~{ .. :.: 
~enue from Operations 
Omer Income 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 
PurdlaseofStock-in-Trade 
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 
Emioyee Benefit Expenses 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Otber Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional Items and tax 

Exceptional items 

Profit! (loss) befOre lax 

TilxExpense 
a) Current tilx 
b} Deferred tax 
c) Earlier Years 

TotillTax Expense 

Profit! (loss) for the period from continuing operations 

Profit! (loss) for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 
-Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
• Income tax-relating to items that will not be reclaSSified to profit 
or loss 

Total Other Comprehensille Intome 

Total Comprehensive Income foi the period 

21 
22 

23 
3 
24 
25 

26 
26 
26 

(Amount in Rs \ 

167931,50,944 164847.92,051 
104,65,866 226,49,266 

168036,16.810 165074,41317 

lS73S8,63,689 159475,25,800 
1931.11.638 13370,79,090 
286,52,791 276.20.236 

66,25,752 70,58.839 
124.17,872 937,05,619 
492,97,061 660.89,145 

160859.68.808 158049,20,549 

7116,48,002 7025,20,768 

- -
7176.48.002 7025,20,768 

224,64,207 i 196,03,422 
119,37,830 (66,15,696 

155,462 1.n,46S 

343.46,576 131,65,:1.94 

6833.01,426 6893,55,574 

6833,01:'426 6893:55,574 

(10,51,801 8,024 
2.21.'n4 - -

.(8.29 827 - 8.024 I--===+-~ 
6824.71,599 ~93,63.S98 . I! __ ...;.:..,:...:...::.:.;:.:..j.-_---=.:..::..:..:~ 

Earnings per equity share \ 

<lJ Basic 28 ------!:=:+------~:.!..:l 
bl DIluted _---'-'----:-_-:--_,...---,...,.-.,..--:-,..,...._-l---=28=--.1\ ____ -==L-___ ---:=~ 

25.49 25.71 

The acxompanylng notes forms Integral part of the Ftnanclill Statements 
As per our report of even date attachel! 

rorM.P.Chitille & Co. 
Chartered AccOuntants 
firm RegeL No.: lOl8S1W 

Sd/- . 

Ashutosil Pednel\ilr 
Pattner 
Membership No.: 041037 

Platl!.: Mumbal ~ 

Date: 12th JURe 20la: . 
.'1=.-
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25.49 25.71 

for ana an behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
Nltln Kumar Dldwanla 
Director 
DIN: 00210289 

Sdt-
Rajaral1J Shanbhag -
Chief Fl!?andol Officer 

Sd/­

Saurabh Sanghlll 
Dfrector 

. DIN: 02Q()(»1.l 

Sd/­
Prasad Oak 

Company Secret'Ory 
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. 

-... --...:.......:. . 

VERITi'\S {ii\lDIJ':',) LlMlTED 

8 

C 

.>- -: --~rtkular5 
--- . 

Ca~b Flow From Oueratlng Activities 
Pcofi~ before Ta)( 

Add/{Less): 

Depredation and Amortisation Expenses 
loss on Sale of Assets 
Effect of exdla~~ differences on translation of Assets and 
Uabllities 
Interest & Fmance Charges 
Fair VakJatiQfl of Investments 
Ilemeasurements of post-employment bEnefit obligations 
Olvidends 

Operating Profit before worldng Capltat Changes 

Workfng CapItal Changas 

(lnc~sellOecrease in Inventories 
(lncrease)!Oecrease in Trade Receivables 
{Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 
(Increase)/Oecrease in Other Non Current Assets 
Increase/(Oecrease) In Other liabilities 
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payables 
Increase!(Decrease) in Other Noo Current Llablilties 
Incmase/{Oecrease) In Provision 
(Increase)/Oecrease In Working capital 

Casn Generated ftom OperatIng Activities 

Taxi'ald 

Cash Used H/t+) generated for operating· activities (A) 
- .. -

_ Cash Flow FrO{l'llnvestlng ActMtI~s 

.. 

Addition to FiKed Assets 
Addition to CapiUlI Work In Progress 
Proceeds from disposal of Fixed Assets 
Dividend Received 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ( 8\ 

Cash Flow From FInancing Actlvlties 

{Repayment ofllPr9ceeds from Short Term llorrowings 
Repayments of long Term Borrowings 
Transfer to Capital Reserves 
Interest Paid 
Dividend Paid 

Net Cash Used in Financing Actillities { C ) 

--

--

o Net Increase (+)/Oecrease H in cash and cash equivalent 
~ash equivalent! A+B+C) • -

Cash and Cash ~quiyalent Opening Balance, 
Cash and Cash Equivalent dosing 6.3lance 

(Amount in Its ) 
Forthe'Jt!,arperiod ended 31st 

- Mai"ch2018 
fOr the year period e"nded 31st 

M~;;~;;iQi7 --

7176,48,002- 7025,20.768 

66,25,752 10,58,839 
. 47,15,211 

395,79,556 (m,ll.018) 
724,11.8n 937,05,619 

21,93.944 77,81,567 
3,28,490 . 

. - (Z,sOO) 
. 1217A5,614 361.07.718 

8393,93,615 7386,28,485 

1931,11,639 (3370,7S,CSS) 
(16346,90,347} (9083.88,984) 

530,75.902 851.33,922 
(102,37,OS3) 1663,61,706 
(360,35,377) (URAO,S1G} 

16273.25.837 {41,86/ill} 
11957,18.336 3199,25,950 

5611.39,828 7739,34,356 
212,22.711 42,770 

19606,31A47 839.03.283 

28000,25,062 8225.31,769 

(149,15,514) (217,68,722) 
\149,15,574) {217,6B,722} 

278~1,OSAM 8007,63,047 - .. -
(55,26,931) ("2«",98,009) 

t5SG61,98,922j (34361,52.186) 

" 3,20,686 
. 2,SOO 

(58717,25,859) (~603,27,Q()9) 

- . 
- 35093,52,776 81,OS,195 

(2620,31,115) 23553,50.991 
. 66.70.000 

(n4,17,87J.1 . 1937.05.619) 
mAO.sool . (16.14.900) 

31735.63.289 22154,OS,66S 

869,46,9 19 {38:'ll.5S,Z9S) -- - -.~ .. . . , 
. '- 4850;-11,4 42 8691".69,738 

si 57.19.58,3 4~SO,1l,442 

~------.-------,~------------------------~----------.~--------~-- .... 
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Closing Balances represented by: 

Casn and Bank Balances 
Cash and C<lsh Equivalents 
(i) Balances with Sanks 
{iI) Cash on !i('md 

Other Sank BallmCi/S 
(it Earmarked Balances with Sanks 
(IiI Agairu:t Margin Monev for SlBC 

The accompanying notes forms integt'al part of the flnarl!:lal Statements 

As. per OUf report of even date "ttached 

For M.P.Chltale & CO. 
Chartered A«ountants 
Firm Regd. No.: .lO.l8S1W 

SdI-

Asnuto$n Pednekar 
Partner 
Membership No.: 041037 

Place: Mumba! 
Oate: 12th June 201a. 

2979,21,771 3591,81,771 
8,{l9,874 4,57,174 

16,14,602 1'3.&8.710 
2716.12,114 :1134,03,7&6 
51l9,S8,3G;a 48S0.U/44~ 

For and on behalf of the Board ofOirectors 

Sd/-
Nitfn Kumar Diliwania 
OfrsetOf' 
DIN: 00210289 

Sd/. 
Rajafflm Shotlbhag 
ChIef Flnanelal Officer 
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Sd/­

SaurabhSIm&hvi 
Director 

DIN: 02000411 

Sd/­
Prasad Oak 

Company Secretary 
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(Amo""t In "t.) 

~nkulir 

Outmn<iins;: at 1M ll~g.Ynnil'JI of tile year 
Cha"Cllsln Equi\y Sl>a<eI:'Apltllf dtUing the 
AnMdSIYear 
Outstaadlttg at the eM of theyear 

~ at the beaJnnltla of the r~portll'! 
Ir;rerlod le.1st AiKII. 201(, , 

Transfers to I {f/ollll Relalned Eornlnl!S 
Transfers from Capital Rl!SefVts 
",.!.once ltl:the ~nd 01 the r~ petlcd leo 
31st Maid\, 2011 '"-

BiIlanca as lit Alltll 1. 2017 
\lll!InC<l .. t~e beslnn"'s~Hh~ rcpartillS 
loectad I.e. lstAatlt 2017 

DMdf<1ds 
Others 

March 31.2018 March 31.2017 
268.10.000 wtl0.ooo 

.. . 
261U0,OOO 269,10,000 

93l11,6JI.15O 169!!Q.94 103 
6893.55.574 

(8,014 

.JU.4ltOSOO 

s,.os.asO 
2.74AOO 

53171,5ll,15O 30917~.6:S1 

2.74,O2l1 

IlaIaIlCl! at the end oftbe r~artlng parl041.f!. 9h11,6&.m 37739,71.6(16 
~ MlIIdt, 20U 

FOT M.JS.Chiit>tc 11 Co. 
ChlJftertd ~colll1(Onts 

Fi<m Regd.Ilo.: 10t851W 

Sd/-

JlJlwtosh i'edl1eJuw 
I'afU'ler 
Mtmbershlp No.: 041031 

Plate; M\II'I1blIi 
Date: lllh lune,201il, 

:.;.-

Marth ll..2ll16 
26lUO,OOO 

. 
2n.1OOOO 

UOl6S.6M}3 8131U8e 
6993,35.574 

13Jl24\ 

/13.40500 

6,06,$$0 tm.11,(18) 
6610000 

124ll9S.G5,401 t01,01.110 

11A<l9S.oS,4112 101.07.170 

6833.Q!426 
2,74,02l! 

. I13AO.!iOO) 

lOl.07.m 
130911,4O.35S 101,07,110 

Far ~nd on li'chllif of lIHJ II<md of DlnlctofJ 

Sdt-

IIltln iCuma, Old_nit. 

DfN!C1Of' 
DIN ; 002102&9 

Sd/-
R_iaram $hartblPe 
Chief f'lnan<lal Offieer 
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3.52.239 876.70,427 

:1;.51.239 .J!,G24 

[77:2,11.0181 

3,60,263 104,57,433 

3,fiO,163 104,61.43:-

SM62 ~462 

395.79,556 
4.14.11$ 501,01,4$:2 

11104S.31,l!SQ 
6893.55,574 

(s.o24) 

aille 
113,40,501)1 

(756,G4,l681 1 
66.70.006 I 

111226M.71& i 
I 

To~-" 

~ln~M4,m 

GS33,01,42{; 
2,74,025. 

.4.462 
IU,40,5001 

39S,79,556 

124«4.13.7~ 

Sdt­
~rabl> Sancllv\ 

Dltector 
Olt~ : 02000411 

Sd/-

I'fllsad oaJ, 

Company S<!(!et~ 



VERtTAS (INDIA) lIrll1lTED 

1 Corporate Information 
Veritas (India) limited ("The Company") is a Listed Public entity Incorporated in India. It has five subsidiaries 
incorporated in India and five subsidiaries Incorporated out of India. The Subsidiaries are wholly owned. The 
Company and toe subsidiaries are reffered to as ''the Groupu. The company is in the business of International Trade 
& Distribution of Polymers, Paper & Paper Boards, Rubber, Heavy Distillates, Chemk:als, Development of Software, 
Manufacture of Ceramic products, etc.. The Company is also engaged in generation of Wind Enerav. 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 
1.1 Compliance with Inti AS 

The Group's financial statements have been preflared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 1013 
and the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under the Companies (radian A«ountlng Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended from time to time. 

These financial statemen~ include the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in 
equity and the statemem of cash flows and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies. and 
other eJCplanatory lnformatlon-and comparative information In faspect of the preceding period. 

Up to the year ended March 31. 2017, the Group prepared Its financial statements in accordance \Nith the 
reqUIrements of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in compliance with Accounting Standards as 
spOOfied in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules. 2006 read with Rule 7(1) of the Companies (Accounts} 
Rules, 2014 issued by the Mini~~ry of Corporate Affairs in resped of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20:t.3. These 
aTe the Company's first Ind AS financial Statements. The date of transltron to 100 AS 15 April 1, 2016. 

The Group has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with [nd AS 101 First-time 
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. 

Refer Note 2.4 for the details of first time adoption exemptions availed by the Group. 
2.2 Basis of Accounting 

The Group maintains Its aa:ounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention except certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with Ind AS. 

Fair value measurements are categorizeointo levell, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair 
value measllrements are observable and the significance of the inp!lts to the fair 'qlue measurement In its entirety, 
which are described as follows:" -_. . 
Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted5 in active markets for fdentical assets or liabilities that entity can access 
at measurement date 

level \I inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices induded in Levell. that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly; and 

level III inputs are unobs.ervable inputs for the assator liability 

2.3 Presentation offlnancial statements 
The financial statements (except Statement of cash·f1ow) are prepared arid presented in the format preSCribed In 
DiVision \I -11'10 AS Schedule III ("Schedule IUH

) to the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared and presented as per the requirements. of lno AS 7 NStatement of 
Cash fIows~. . 

. . 
Disclosure requirements with respect to items in the finallClal statements, as prescribed in Schedule III to the Act, 
are pfesented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with the other notes required to be diSclosed under 
the notified ACCOUnting Standards. 
Amounts in the Hnanaal statements are presented in Indian Rupees In line with the requirements of Schedule III. 
Per share d.ata are p~ented in tn_dian Ru~es to'\wo decimals pl.aces. 
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b}. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Property. Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. net of recoverable taxes, tmde discount and rebates ~ss 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, botTowing cost and 
any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its worlting condition for Us intended use. 

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's canying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as 
appropriate, only when it Is probable fuat future economic benefits associated with lhe item will flow to the entity 
and the cost can be me<lSured reliably. 

Oepredation on all Property. Plant and Equipment is provided based on useful life prescribed in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 201~ under Straight Une Method. 

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet Is disclosed as "capital work-in-progress". 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment ara reViewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, If appropriate. 

Gains or losses ariSing from derecognitlon of a property. plant and equipment are measured as the difft;l{ence 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognIsed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when the asset is dertlcognised. 

Type of Asset with Usefullife# 

Type of Asset life 

Leasehold land OVerthe lease Period* 
Plant and Machinery used In wind power generation 22 Years 
Other Plant and Machinery 15 Years 
Office Eauioment 5 Years 
Computer Equipment's 3 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 

Venide 8 Years 

cl. leases 

leases where the lessor effectively retains ~.ubstantlally aU the r(s1's and benefits of ownership over the lease 
term are classified as operating lease. lease payments for assets tallen on operating lease are recognIsed as an 
expense in the Profit and loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

d). Intangible Assets and Amortisation 

Intangible Assets ara slated at cost of acqUisition less accumulated amortisation ldeplelic<o and impairment 
loss, if any. 
Such CO$t includes purchase price. borrowing costs. and any cos, directly attributable to bringing the asset to its 
'1Iooong condition for the intended use, ne\ cllarges 'On foreign exchange contraC1$ and adjustments arising from 
exctlange rate variations attribu'able to the intaf!Yibte assets. 

Subsequent costs are included In the asset's carrying .amount or recognised <IS a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it Is probable that future er;onom1c benefits associated with Ihe item will flow to the entity 
and !he cO$t can ~ measured rellably. . . 

Gains or tosses arising from derecognilion of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
nel oisposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the asset is derecognisad. 

Intangible assets of the company comprises of Software which is amortized over a period of 5 years. 
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ei. Bortowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquIsition, construction or production of a qualifyinG 
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 

intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get. ready 
for their intended use or sale. 

fl. lnventories 

Items of il'lventorles are measured at lower of cost Of net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if 
·any. Cost of Inventories comprlses of cost of purchase and other overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred 
In bringing them to their respective present location and condition. The valuation of inventories is done on 
FIFO (flrst-In-flrst-out) Method 

g}. Impairment of Non Financial Assets 

Assets are tested for impairment whenever event$ or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An Impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The re<:overable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value 
l~ss costs of disposal and value In use. 

hi. Provisions & Contingendes 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the 
amount can be reliably estimated as at the balance sheet date. 

A disclosure fur a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in 
the notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefit is remote. 

A contingent asset IS not recognised but disclosed in the finandal statements where an inflow of economic 
benefit is probable. 

il. Employee Benefit Expenses 

11). Shol1 Term Emplov~e Bene.fits 

All Employee Benefits payable wholly within welve month of rendering the service are classified as Short Term 
Employee Benefits and they are recognised in \he period in which the employee renderS the related service. 

The undiscoonted amount of short telTll employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 
rendered bV employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the emp(oyees render the 
services. 

-
(II). Post Employment Benefits 
Oefined Col)trlbution Plans 

A. defi~ contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified 
monthly payments to employee State Insurance Scheme, Provident Fund Scheme and Government 
adminilteretl Pension Fund Scheme for all appllcable efl11)toyeas. The Company's COfItrlbutlon is "recognised as 
an expense ill the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period ill which the employee ren(\(!ts the related 
s·ervlce. 
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Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valu anon on 
Projected Unit cost method made at the and 01 each financial year. Actuarial gainslllosses) are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income. This benefit is presented according to present value after dedu cling the 
faIr value of the plan assets. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit Uabftity (asset) 
in respect of a defined benefit by multiplying the net liability (asset) In tespect of a defined benefit by the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation as they were determined at the beginning of the 
annual reporting period. -

Re-measutement of defined benefit plan~ in respect of poSf:.employment are charge<! to the Other 
Compreoonsive Income. 

Accumulated leava is treated as short-term employee. benefit The Company measures the expected cost of 
such absences as the adOltional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the IJnused entitlemsnt that has 
accumula~ ,at the reporting date. 

Other long Teon Employee Benefits 

The employees of the company ate entitled to compensated absem::es which are both accumulating and noo­

accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absentes Is determined by actuarial 
valuation using projected unit credit method. 

j). Tax Expenses 

The tax expense for the period comprises Current and Deferred Tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Prof1t 
and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items fetQgnised in the comprehensive incollle or In eqUity. In 
which case, \he tax is also re<:ognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to- the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Salance sheet 
date. 

Min~mum Alternative tax (MA 1) Credit 1$ recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the compariy will pay Income Tax under the normal provisions dUring tile specified period, 
resulting in utilisation of MAT Credit In the Year In which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognis.ed as 
an asset in aceordance with the recommendations contained in Guldance Nate issued by tne Institute of 
Chartered Accountants' of India: the said asset is created by way af a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and. shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes 
down the canying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 'evidence to the 
effect that the Company wUl utilise MAT Credit during the specifled-pertod. 

For Subsldiaries,lncome taxes currently payable are provided for in accordance with existings legislation of the 
various Countries in which tile company operates. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporel'j differences between the canying amOl.lnts of assets and liabilities in 
the standalone financial statements and the corrasp'?nding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Oeferred tax liabilities and a~ts are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the p~riod io 

which the liability Is settled or the asset realised, based on tal( rates (and tax laws} that have been enaaed or 

substantively enacted by th,e end of the reporting period. The carryi~ amount of Deferred tal( !labilities and 

assets are reviewed at the end of each reportrng perlod~ 

k). Foreign Currency 

functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements of th:~ Company are presented using Indian Rupee (INR) Le. currency of thf.!. pflmary 

economic environment In whith tha entitY operates (fthe fU!l(iiooal currency'). • . . _... ~ 

Transactions and balances :,.' • -

ForeIgn currency t~ans~ctiOns a;e trans~~ed into the respective functlo"!al currenCy using ~he exchange rates 
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I}. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognised to the ex~ent that it is probable that the economic benefits wlH flow to the company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Escalation and other claims, which a re not 
ascertalnablelacl<nowledged by customers. are not taken into account. Revenue is measured at the fa ir 'Ia lue 
of the conSideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 

Criteria for recognition of revenue afe as under. 
a) Sale of Goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which 
time aU the following conditions are satisfied: 

til significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer; 

(iI)Companv retains neither continuIng managerial invoivement to the degr~ usuaUy assoda1:ed with 
ownership nor effective control over the goodr; sold; 

(Iii) It 1$ probable that economIc benefits associated with transaction will flow to the Company; and 

{ivlamount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

b} In cases where trade contracts provide for crystalliution of price or for price adjustment on a subsequent 
date, corresponding purchase and sales are recogoiled 01'1 the basis of expected settlement price and any 
differential determined subsequently is accounted fur at the time of final settlement 

d) Interest income is recognized 00 a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding and 
applicable interest rate. 

el Dividend is recognised when the company's right to receive the payment is established, which Is generally 
when shareholders approve the dividend. 

mi. Floanclal [n$trum~ts 

{II. financial Instrut\'l@nts 

tnitlal Recognition 
. 

Financial Instruments i.e. Financial assets and ftnandal liabilities are recognised wn.en the Company becomes a 
pany to the contractual provisions of the Instruments. Flnanciarirmrument5 are initially measured ~t fair 
'ialue. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments (ather 
than flnanaal Instruments at fair value through profit or loss} are added to or deducted from the fair value or 
the financial instruments, as appropriate, on Initial recognition. Transaction costs dlrectlv attributable to the 
acquisition of finandal Instruments assets or financial liabilities. at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised in profit or .1055. 

sUbsequent Measurement 
Financial tisets 
All recognised flnandai assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost except financial assets carried at 
fair value through Profit and loss {FVTPL} or fairvillue through other comprehensive Income (FVOO). 

a) E:qutty Investments (other than Investments In s~bsidiaries. assodates and Joint venture) 

All equity investments falling within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are rnandatori.lymeasured at Fair Value Through 
Profit and LOss (FVTPL) with all 'fair value changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

The Company has an )rrevocabie' optio!! of designating certain equity instl"'Jments as F\lOCI. OPtlo~ of 
desig~ating instruments as FVOCI is done '00 an iflstrumentCby-instrument basis. The classification made on 
initial recogni.tion is irrevocable. ' 
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the Instrument 
are recognized ill Statement of other Comprehensive Income (SOCt). Amounts from SOCI are not subsequently 
transferred to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 

b} Derecognition 

A financial asset is primarily derecognlied WIlen the rights to receive cash flows from the asset halle expired, 
Of the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to 
pay the received cash flow&-In full without material iielay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement; 
aod with that altha Company has transferred substantially all ~he risks and rewards of the asset, or b) ~he 
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

c!lmpalrmtmt of financial assets 
ihe Company applies the expected credit loss model fur recognising allowances for expected credit loss on 
financial assets measured at amortised CQst. 

Ffnandaillabillties 
Classification 

Fln~ndalliabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are d·assified accordina to the substance of 
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial UabUlty and an equity instrument. 

SUbsequent Measurement 
LoarlS and. borrowings are subsequently measured at Amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate lElR), 
except for financial ftabIHtles at fair value through profit or loss. Amortlsed cost is calculated by taking Into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
Amortisation is included as a part of Finance Costs in the Statement of Profit and loss 
Frnandalliabilities rei:ognised at FVTPt, shall be subsequently measured at fair value. 
Derecognltlon 
A f!nanclaillability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged orcancel\ed or elCpires. 

Offsetting financial instiumtmts 
Financial asseU and liabilities are off~et and the net_amount is reported in the balance sheet where there i? a 
legally enforceable right to offset the reCQgnised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset a nd. settle the liabilitlJ simultaneously. 

Re-classiflcatlon of flnandal instrum"ots 
The Company determines ciassiflcatron of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassifIcation Is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and finanCial 
liabilities. For flnanclal assets which are debt instruments, iii reclassIfication Is made onlv if there is a change In 
the business model for managing those as~ets. Changes to tlw business model are expected to be.infrequent. 
The Company's senior management determines,c.nange fn the business model as a result of external or 
Interii81 changes which are signifICant to the Company's operations. Such ~changes are evident to external 
parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an 
actMty that is slgnlflGant to Its operations. If the Company reclasslfies financial assets, it applies the 
redassiflcatlon prospectively from the reclassification date which Is the first day of the Immediately next 
reporting period followlng the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously 
recognlsed gains, losses (Including impairment gains or losses) or Interest. The-Company has not reclassified. 
any financial asset during the current year or previous year. 

n). Ca5n and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalent io.the balance sheet comprise <ta§h at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
'NlIh an,ofiginal maturity of Ih(~ months or less, which are subject to an Insignifis:,ant risk of changes In ::-alue, 
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oj. Earning5 per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or lOS$ fOf !he period attributable to s-quity 
shareholder by ll'Ie weighted average number of eqUity shares outstanding during the period. 

F()r tl1e purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. the net profit after !al( for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period arB 
adjusted for the effects of all dllutlve potential equity shares. 

pl. Segment Reporting 

Based on ~Management Approach" as defmed in lod AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating 

Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of 

various performance indicators by business seg~ts. The Company concludes that it operates under two 
reporting segment villa) Trading, Distribution and Development and (b) Wind power genratJon. the secondary 
reporting segment is geographical segment based 00 location of customer viz domestic and overseas. 

Unallocable Items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 

business segment. 

Segment Policles 
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting polldes adopted for 
preparing and presenting the standalone finandal statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable 

costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis. 

Key estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make 

estimates and assumptions that impact the reported amount of assets, lIabilities, income, expenses and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions 
used In the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of th.e relevant facts 
and circumstances as on the date of the flnandal statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and 

assumptions used in preparing the accompanying finandal statements. Difference between the actual and' 
estimates are recognised in the period in Which they actually materialise or are known. Any revIsion to 

accounting estimates is recognised prospectillely_ Management believes that the estimates used in 
preparati?" of Finandal Statements are prudent and reasonable. 

2.4 first llme Adoption of ind AS 

The Company has adopted Ino AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being restated. 

Accordingly the impact of transition has been provided in the Opening Reserves as at 1st April 2016. The 

figures for the previous period have bee,n restated, regrouped and reclassified wherever 'required to comply 

with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule IH. 

exemptions ffom Retrospective Application 
(I), Business comblnatioll$ 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided In 100 AS 101 on non·appliUltlQO of lndAS 103, "Susiness 

Combinations" to business combinations consummated pdor to April 1, 2016 (the "TransltiQfl Date"), pursuant 
to which goodwill/capital reserve arising from a business combination has been stated at the carrying amount 
prior. to the date of transition UNder Indlan GAAP. The Company has also applied the exemption for 'past 

business combinations to acquiSitions of Investments in subsidiaries I asroclates I Joint ventures 
consummated prior to the Transition Date. 

{ii). Fair value as Deemed Cost 

The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets al il$ 
carrying value at the traositlon date exCept for ~rtain ,class of assets which are-measured at r~ir value as' 
deemed cost. .. -' 
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liiil. Investmel'\ts In Subsidiaries. Joint Ventures and Associates 
The Company has elected to measure Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates at Cost 

(Iv}. Clas$lficatlon and measurement of financial assets 

The Company has classIfIed" the financial assets 1n accordan<:e with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and 
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 
For the purpose of fair value disdosures, the Compal\Y has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lIablllty and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
eKpiained above, 
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Ai lilt A$.:it;: .. -Ant 
. Plli'llwlats !lM~~2018 .:'1 "'iinI1.~on lAPr.lillU.6 

_ntiRs.) . ARIount (f\$.)' ArilOlmt t&.) 

1. InllUbm!nts m~ athkValue tII!lI. Profit 
;IIdLoU 

JlIYlIstm4ntS in Eqtlity intrumenls· Quotlld 

'nve~~t$ ill otnel'$ 
Vltan Agro ImIu$1l'1ltS I.Im!Nd 1.8.80.000 40,40,000 54,92,000 

"ICY 4,00.000 !Equity Sl1i3tes of I!.$. lllad'd 
(py 4,00,000 !Equity Sharll5 of Its. 1. aadll 
{F"f 4,00.000 Equity Shares of lis. 1 !!amI 

011 (Intern:atlonai) Stocl:. SI()\tom l..IrIUted 42.00,000 47,80,000 99,50,000 
{CY S,OO.OOO Equity Sham of Its. 2. ~3(h} 
(I'Y 5,00.000 Equltv Sh\lre,$ of Its. 1. ~ad\1 
(py 5,00,000 Equity Shares of 115.;0 e;v.hi 

lIa"d~Corporatlo" lImIted 64,03,418 53.~1,lll 63,57,679 
{O 4,$1,l8 Equity Share! of lis. 10 each) 
{PV 4,57,3.11 E'qultySharet of Its. 10 (taCh) 
{py 4,57,3f:! Equl\,! Shares Qf lis .• 0 1!3(h} 

O:llnte,,"aliOl\3llil1'~ted 1,99,750 3,15,001) 14,49,000 
(CY ts,OOO r:qul\,! Shares of IIS.10 each) 
(l'Y 15.000 £qultv Shares of lis. to l!;I(.h} 
ll'Y 15.000 Equi\'! Sru.mnf lis. 10 e;l(.h) 

Tetal US.n.1U _~67.U1 232.411.G7!t 
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As at Ant As at 
I'afticwars 31 Milrch lOUt 31 March 2017 1 April 2016 

UII$I!(ureo. Considered Good 
Cal*al Atlvall(\U 
Adlianc;e True (Net of PrOllisklnsj 

Security Oeposlt 
(}thaI'S 

TctAl 

{At lower of Costand !let realizable value} 
Stoddn Trade 
Stod: In Tr3l'tSlt 

Totill 

.. 

partiCularS 

Trade Rece[vahles 
UI\$ecured 

(il 

(Ill 

{II 
{II} 

CoMld'lted Good 
Considered Doubtful 
u..s ! Provision for Expected Cte-dlt loss 
aUowance on doubtfui debts 

Total 

Tl10de l\et~\I;tble$ 

~el Me1c311tile Umlted 
Sanman Trade Impex-Umlted 
Aspen I ntamatiooall'tivate Umited 

'(Om 34'1d CQh EqulYolenU 
lIal1Hl= with Banks 

In Current Accounts 
Cash oil Hand 

01hof BlIink BlIlllRceS 

UtlPllIc! tllvldeft(l a.mk A(:(Ounts 
Deposit with maturity for more than U months 

(!Il) 
04:po~t ..... 1\11 maturity for mC!!e than 3 monlbs but 
!eS$ than 1 i:! Months (hefi! as margin lJ'.<J~V against 
~ortC)Wlnll) -

Amount 111$,) Amount fRs.1 Amo,unt IRs.) 

U8,90.816 
93,08.S{;4-

' 350,91,161 
12.93,616 

515,84,157 
,. 

1473.84,{l41 

As at 
31 Marcb 2.018 
Amolint IRs.) 

6-6619',73,601 
18,15.129 

(18.15,129 

6"19,73.601 

Ant 
31 March lOl3 

Amount 

1016,91.500 
3688,81,004 

315,51,825 

2979,21,111 

~.O9.874 

16.14.~l 

:1;116,12,11<1 

122.40.815 
91,17,Ul 

-. 
213,G7,.9V 

2934.71,219 
470,24 .• dOO 

Aut 
31 March 201-7 
AmOUnt (Its.) 

50272,83,254 
125.92,993 

{725,91,993) 
SOZ72,83,Z54 

3591,81.771 
4.$1,i14 

13,68,710 

1234,03.786 

4.00.000 
72,16,O2~ 

-
-

1&.1s.o23 

34.16.590 

34,16 !lO 

As at 
1 April 1016 
Am~IIt1Ri.l 

~1188,94,210 

503,69,598 

(S03,69,S97} 
41198,.94,271 

AU~ 

1 Apn120Ui 

7~S6,24.278 

82.87.174 

11,12,195 

~2·11.46.091 

of C35h Flows 
5119,58,362 ~aS(}.11.1142 8691,69,H8 

133 

-



PlIrtiCulalll 

UiU«11rI!d CP(I$ld(!u:d GaOl! unless oti1l!rwlSe 
stM\1d 
Loan, and Advilow 

TofmplG...-
~ 

Ca!lltalAdltances-
SecurityD~ 

Total 

l.imecumc!, (DMkhlted Good 
Other Receivables 

:.' ,': \' .. .. :".: I'.nku~\ 

Ul'l$eC\lfed, Considered Good 
Ptepald&p-
Adltanre Gral1lity 
BlIi;nee Wil" G~mmentAuthOTltll'!5 

Tot.1 

:':. 

~ 
I 

-
~.-

AlOOtlnt fRs-I 

l,1S,000 
~.24,a2(l 

19It,4lI,1.U6 
550,78,614 

141!1.61.m 

lO,lR,A(l4 

·;·:AS1i1;···· ." 
.'.:'" ".",:. ' 

II MiUcl120U 
A~t(lls.j . 

12S,OS,ORl 
17,9'4,167 

102.S5.726 
14S,s4,!1n 

134 

. . 
Amount (lts.) Amount (Rs:.j 

00.000 43,502 
11149,16,691 21$8,49,941 

. 
901,45,817 39.~,2$1 

1951.l>l,s;n ~6,130 

. .... .: :Aiiiat ~ilt· . ..: .. '· 
:u "",'fcl.'iml lAP1112016. 
AmouM(1U.1 AIOO~tllts.1 

28,39.039 112.70.056 

-
1418.852 ll8409541 
43,1'Ul!.1 1105.79,597 

-' 



_ .... --". --

_ .. 
Ant Aut As at 

!>artltular$ 31M'-l:Ch20Ul :u Miorth 1017 1 AprRlOt6 
Amooot (Rs.) Amount (Rs.1 Amount IRs.) 

Authorised Share Capital 

Equity Shares ofJls. 1 each ..• 1000,00,000 1000,00,000 1000,00,000 
ICY 10,00,00,000 sinlf!!S of Rs. 1 eilth) 

(I'Y 10,OO,Oa.ooo sImes of lis. 1 eath) 

{I'Y 10,00.00,000 sham of Rs.l each) 
Toul 1il!1O,oo.noo lCKlD,OO,ooo . 1000.00,001) 

Issued Subsaibed and Palli Up 
Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each 268.10,000 268.,10,000 258.10,000 
(0'2,6:8,10,000 shan!~ of Rs. 1 eilth) 

Il'Yl,58,lO,OOOshMeSofRS.l each) 
(1''(2,68,10,000 $hares oHtS. 1 tach) 

T<ltal 268.W,OOO 26&10,000 26S,l.{l.ooQ 

12.1 lhe retOnclllatlon of the namberof shares outstanding Is set out·~ow : 

....... ; ... ;.:: ..... :( ..... . 

:. 

Jl.sj!t . ······ASJlt AS at 
31 Match.2.0UI .'U MaiC1l2017 1 A'prlllO.1li 

Equit'( Shares at the beginning of tile year [nos) 

A.dcl,",ss:ChangMIn E4ultvShares Inosl 
Eqult'( SlIafM at the ond of the YUt [nosl 

12.2 Ike details ofsharenalders holding more than 5" shares: 

Name ofihCsila~~o!d~ri ' .. AS at 31st' ~;m;h, 1018 

No:D.fSIlii~eJ •• "Hllli!ltIg 
Mt. Nltln I(UIMf Dldwani3 92.50,000 34.50 
M$. Nltl Dldwanla 67.13.1QO 25.04 

Onlx Auets Ltd. 30,00,000 11.19· 

latitude Con~ltant5 Umitl!d 25,00,000 9.70 

11.3 Terms and Rights attacked to the SI1ares 

168.10,000 268,10,000 268,10,000 

As ;It 3Ut Match, 20F AS at 1M Api'll. 2016 
N~QfSh~iH " Hol!fmg NO. of $Ml'fis· % Hmdll), 

92,50.000 34.S0 92,SO,OOO 3450 
67.13,100 25..04 67.I.3,lOO 25.04 
30.OD.1lOO 11.19 30,00.000 1l.l9 

- 26,00,000 9.70 26,00,000 9.70 

"'The COMpany h3$lssut4 only Ol'le class of et!uity shares having iI parvalue of INI\ l ~ach. Each equity sl\arehold<!r is entitled 
to one ~ote per shale. The Comp3tly dl!<:lares 3tld pays divldenclln Iniilao Rupees. ·The c!Mdl!1'ld proposed 'by the Board of­
Directors is subJ!lc~ to the approval of 1M ih~N!holders in the I!1'Isuioll Annual §eneral Meeting. 

In tile ~\I~nl of liquidation of the: Companv, the holders of the equity Shalti will be entitled to receive remaining lJSSuts of the 
Compa~, after dls.ttibutron of all pmferential amOUIIlli. The distribution will be in proportkm to tlla number 01 ~Ult'( sh:rres 
held by the shareholdefS/' 

12.4 Proposed DMdeod 

Th~ 8l)ard of Oirecto($ 01 tile Company has proposed dividend at ~ 0..05 per eqUity !hare for the ilnatlc.\;>1 Yi!af 201.7 ·2018. 
wnlCh would have been dedared In·the Annual <:iO!neral meeetllli!. -
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Particulars 

til. SE'urltle.s Premlum 
Op<ening aafan~ 
AddItions I (Transfers) during the year 

Closlrtg Balfnce 

(Ii). fOre\i!lCun-entyTraRSlatlan Reserve 
QJlenitl! B~lam:e 
Additions I tiraNfl!tSl during the year 

(Iodng ~r.n« 
(iil}. Sllrpllls lrt StIJtement of Pfoflt. ",,!ll.Ou 

Opening, Ilalarn:e 
Add; Profldortheyear 

@mptoymeru:benef1tobllgatlons 
Cr«llt for TlIX on OlYidend 
Ttansfer from Cillital Work 11'1 progms 

(Iv) 

Transfer Cram Capitililleserves 

ll!ss: Proposed FlnIl4 Dividend on Equity 
Shal'l!s (CY As.O..o5 ~sh~tel -
{py As. O.OSp&( share){PV As. Nll per sharel 
Tall on QlvIdend 

Closing ealilncc 

Opening Balance 
Other Co<ll+l1'1!iwnslvl! Income (00\ -
Add! Movement In CO (Ntt) dlloog \~ year 

Closll1, Balance 

iota! 

Secured at Am(IfI;l$Cd Cost 
l'Iullul.Oans 
From Banks 

-

Ant 
ll. M~r('" 2018 
MIOlllit IRs., 

93177,68,750 

!B171 .68.750 

101,01,112 
395 79S56 
Jigs;8i,1i8 

23943,18,602 
6833.01,426 

2.74,02& 
-

{ll,40,SOOI 
-

30166,13,556 

3.60,263 
8.1'!4.289 
18.29,827\ 
4.14,72S 

124444.83,159 

As.a~ 
, • ·31·Man:n 2018 

Amount IRs .• 

As at 
31 Ma.rdI 21».1 
Amount (11$.) . 

93171,68,750 
-

93171 G8 :rso 

873.18.188 
{772;l:l,018 

IG1,O?,t10 

16950;14,700 
6893,55,514 

(s.o24) 
2,74.'100 
6.06.850 

66.70.000 

(13,i1O,500) 
(2,74AOOI 

U943.7a.60Z 

3,52,239 

8.014 
360.263 

11722-6,:1.4.116 .. 

As at 
31 Ma!-di'2017 
AmOilritllls.l 

49026,20,936 

Mat 
1 April 2016 
Amount fRs.} 

7137,611, 75(} 

8604G,OO.OOO 
93111.68.150 

276,27.160 
596,91028 
813.18.183 

10362,57.936 

6125.88.978 

2,47,789 

-
-

16990,94 702 

3,52,,"39 

-
~.52~39 

111045,33.819 

As;it 

lA.prii2i:ilG 
.Ami:!untlRs.l 

, 
i , 
i 

Total 49026,20,936 25472,69,944 

14.:1 Terms of lI~plIyme"t 

111ol~!m.! l.ermll»"""dudos Rs.Nlt/·(P.Y.It.. ~02.659 {-HP.\'.lt5,9,94l,612 )bI1Il'!!l d-~ rorpayment",\1fIlnone,.ear. 
\wlllch Is show1I ~ 61het Cl;Irent la!)Wltle$. 
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.:.' 

lIartkulars 

UnseCllft!d atAmonl!H!d Casts 
~ From Related Parties 

Total 

Sl!tured atAmafllsed Cast 
Loans repavble en derll4Or1irom Ban!:s 

UI1Jecurcd at AlMI'tl$o\f Cost 
from Related eartles 

Total 

. j\ut 

UMaic:ll20l.8 
AmIlUAt (R5.~ 

40576,09,374 

40576,(l9,374 

27242,86,193 

a32n,20,T10 

50466,01 ,su~ 

A~at 

31 M<il'Ch 2017 
AmounHR.s,} 

2431l2,33,s37 

24302,83,537 

1531Z,S4.791 

A5,at , 
1 Aprll l0l6 
Amoun, (Rs.} 

16563,49,181 

16563,49,.181 

,'.;(;;~,~ .. ' 

',:1 Apd,cZC16 ' 
',', / Amoufi't"";, ' 

B807,05.369 

1418,44,234 

16.1 Primary Sectnlty 
ExchJsive Charge Oll the CUtren, AS$IlIS And lmn1o ... able propertv construttt!.d on til<! land of the Company 
CoUate,...t Security 
P~rs(mal Guarantee of Ihe Director IMr. Nit!n Kumar Oi<:Iwania\ 

Joint and several corporate GUl'ilfltees iTom veIitas indIa Umi\ed.Ha~ Mlddl~ East FZ£ and Veritas InternatIonal FZE. 

J 

Aut .. As at As.at 
Partkullirs " 3~~l!rcli 2018 31fllarth2G17 1 April 1016 -." " .. ,".'.~ 

kio~tlll5.l Amoui-li (Its.) '1l.rIIOImt (&;\ 

Trade hyable$ 
·Othen - 25215.00,147 }31S7,81,8tO 10058.55.860 

- '. . 
Tatal 2521S.oo,147 13257 .1t1.810 10tlSS,sS,860 

.' 
17.1 Refer Notl! 34 fer dlsdoStlfl!S under SectIOn 22 of Mlero, Small and Medium enterprl~s OevelopmentAct, 2006 

(:~(ten\ l'ta\lJtlty of tons term BOffOw\1tltS 
StatutllfY Uabiiltl~ 
Credt\O($ for Qpltal gOQcIs 
InterimfFinal OiYldend Ul\j)aid 

OtiWPayables 

, Total 

137 

11.49.157 
56SS,Uf\OO 

16,14,602 

116,93.857 

5799,80,417 

:19.02,659 
S.13.539 

13,68,710 

127,~5,680 

188.40,588 

99,43,612 
8,10,0)4 

11.1.2,195 

111,51.279 



! Mat Aut Aut 
Partltulars ~l Ml\n:n 2018 31 Mardi 1.017 1 Aprll 1016 

- Amount!~J Al'!'lCiunt!Rs.1 Amount (1\$.) 

Provtsloll for lail\le Encuhml!'nt 13.45,343 11.811.142 11,45,472 
Others 210.65.610 -

lOIll' 2a4,10,953 11,$8,142 11,4.5,411 

PtOVlslOn fot Tall {Netof Advance TlIx} 

;. 
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VERIl'AS !INDIA) UMITED 

Matos to CallsoHdated Siil~H)d.at Statament$ for the V8nr erufed 32St ~"iatchr 201f; 

Sate of Produr..ts 

Total 

Elec.trtcltv Generation 
Agrltulturall'arm !'rodute 
.raded and Oeveklped Goods 

Total 

PoirtlCIJlars 

DIvidend Incomet 
Others 

IntereU l!KOme 
lnt~rett en Income Tax ltefund 
flllUest lncoml! on FO 1:artled.:.lt AmotTtised Cost - -- -
Other Non OperJltlng Income 
Interest on-Fair v<\luaUon of Rent Deposit 
Otl\ers 

'l'o~1 

139 

: Aii-at' -:< 
31Ma~ai2017_ -_ 

-,kiii'~l~f/ :: 

167931,S0,944 

83,03,968 
2,35.709 

167846,11,266 

167931.50.944 

Mat 
31 March 2018 
Am~wrt (Rs.i 

-

. 
98,91.744... 

-. 
2,44,664 
1.29.45S 

104,6$.861 

164347,92.0>1 

81.75.789 
102,68,$13 

16~663,4.7.f;49 

16484792,051 

As at 
3.l MarCh 20,;7 
Amount IRs.1 

2.500 

112.59.625 

-
2.07.402 

111.79.738 

226,49,266 



VERlTAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

salary /WlIjJeS and Allowances 
Contrlbutloos to Providel'lt &. Other Fund 
Staoff Welfare and othec benefits 
DI~ l!emunerilUOn 

Total 
~efer Note No. 3G for details of D~ned ~Ilef;t Contributlon.. 

"--. 

i>artic.u!ar~ 

On Tlum loans 

lnteresl:on Term Loan 
Interest on Car Loan 

On Working C;apitlllloans 
Sank Interest 
Bank Charges. Commission and O~hec; 
tnterest on Fair Valuatlon of Rent oepc>sit 

Tot;l 

.··>~~t;,. 
all\'latdl2.0~· 
A~~t(ils;) . 

16,2J" 
507 

671.88,.558 
49,2O,85S 

2.31.163 
7Z4,17Jln 

140 

24,00,000 

A$I't 

31 MarChiol':. 
Amount {~$.l 

10,75.442 
53,768 

51l!1,41,210 
345.03,031 

2,31,16S 
!J31,OS,619 



lD£ls'II~ Expen$l!$ 
---Packing CMfSI!S 

RentP1lld 
Repalr$ &. Maintalnaf\.,.'"E! 

Madlllltty 
OthlifS. 

IMuralKm 
Rates and Taxes 
6rok!r~e &. COI'III'IIJs$lQ1I Charges 
Commulllcalion ExpetlSllS 

T"'IIe!1I11E and Con'ltllyance 
Printing and Sliltlol'lety l!ltpenses 
A.dvertising I S!.l.1lInIlSS Promotion li!xpmn$Qs 
!.egaland Prof~1 Fee~ 
Payment~ to AuOltors (!\efer !'Iote n.l) 
toss 011 $<lIe or F~ As$'(!ts 
Electrldty Ol,uges 
Farming Expenses 
Olrectors' Sitting Fees 
lIIIlscelt341eous llxpel\$ll$ 
Colpnrllte Social RUPOMiblllty 
Sad GebU 
LUd"/!Ms()11 For bad debtS 
Provlslan an.loan 
Allowance for Expected CredIt lon 
Net Loss Olllnllestment carried at Ml'l 

Total 

. 
-Pary.iwlai$ 

SlatIJ~OlV Audit FII'IS 

i~)( J\U(\lt Fees 
Total 

VERITAS (iNOlA) LIMITED 
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'36,17,039 
3,lO,511 

34.%.282 

26.34,988 
1.9,100 

2.37.369 
10,65):105 

4,93,163 

13.26,710 
15,39.263 

2,48,114 
5,37,538 

61,08,901 
32,09,$9 

S,54.2~S 

2.1.730 

8:f!.210 
12.47.529 

5,95,21$ 
81a..o7,591 

{71S.91.993} 
20,00,000 

-

18.15,129 
27.93,944 

491.91.067 

-Aut 
n Marcb-l01S 

A~;"t(~l 

32,09.861t 

-
n,09,869 

24,3S.190 
56,080 

29,17,101 

18,61),108 
1.12,124 
2.32,710 
1,94.$42 

15,58,759 

31.SS,S~ 

1,16,677 
9,20.217 

111,61,875 
11.20,029 
47,75,211 

7,16,412 
7,03,741 

. 
.M-at-

.' ',-'" 

31 Matdl2017 -
AmQ~i~;) 

1.0.20.029 
1.00.000 

11,2.(1,029 



.. 

t 

vtRITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

II) 

I'rollt tu~fo~ TalCU ofthc PaNtn: CompllllV 
Less: ecempt \1'ICOl1\e$ 

Add: OlsaltllWal'lO! ot~mes 
Proflts as per IntORll! T~ Act.. 1961 
Apj'I!iQbl~ flaIl! (MAn 
TI1lCl'rovI5iao 
Al:Id: I nteresu Attrlbutllble 
Add: Taxes telated to Prkl .. Veafs 
Add: Tilt On ltl!mlln 00 

. <' ~ 
'. pa.rt~ltil$ 

-~ 

AriSing on iKCQunt oflll'lllnc Difference In Oepredable Assets 
Gross OtImrredTiJx UablllLy IIAssetsl 
Add/{les1S} : Provision for CUtrellt Yellr 

Net Dmrrd tax U;tbill;ly J (Amlls) 

" , ':'. '.":' ...... 
~;irtlC\llm 

-

G(OI$ Amount to be spent by tht Company during the Vllar 
(Ii) ~untspeotdunnstheyear 

4) ConS!:I'IJ<:tlOn/Aoqul,sUon of ;:InYlisSI!t 
bt On purpose othuthan aOOve{il) (al -lnaun 
c) On pUlpo$e other than abov-e (II) (ai- Vet to bi! paId in (;11m 

Amaunt unspent during: the year 
-
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211,S8,852 
U,l1,842 

\55,462) 
2;2.7,:f14 

':AS~l .. ,\ 
nwri:Il2D18 
~~~(~.i 

119,17.1331 
119.37.s~ 

1OO.lO.61:9 

Aut .' 
3iM~'20i8 
~~~i~i 

16.19.305 
5,95,:(15 

. 
-
-

10,7A,ogo 

6lB3J)1,426 
263,10,000 

268.10.000 
2SA9 
~5.49 

964,69..so2 
(4S,3t\4(1) 

l.0'9.9Sl 
920,41,016 

lO.~ 
185,88,637 

8,37,317 
1,11,458 

ASa~ .. lIS.lIt .' 
UMmhlO17 nl\ll~~ i()16 
AmQU~ttlb,} ~tltCRS.) 

46,98,563 
{6G.1S6961 

_l19.17,ua) 

Au':t 

31 M\1..th ;tOl7 
AmDurltlrb;1 

18.91.153 

-
-

11l,9U53 

6893,55,574 
268.W.ooo 
~.lO,()OO 

25.11 
25.11 

1 

195.7$,934 
(148 n.S?l} 

46.9B,SEa. 



VERITAS (INOlA) liMITED 

IiJ. Cilatuity: AmounllRs.) 

The Gr4tr.tltlj Plu I'f, fW~(t\<I'd by t"'~ P.aymd'lt of Gratuity A(f, l!ln. UJ'idtr \I~ Att. an E'mpto.,"ff wtm hu compfet~ fM: yeotrs of '5~NkIt it o:ntitkJd t:) 1pta& btMfit. Th~ lett'l of bei\tfi1~ prQ"'l>If~ dependl on the- M~ber'$ 

~thof kt\'ic:e ,11 ~~Mfl(tndate. 
Th:e 'OIIo ..... i:n't,}bl~ setouttherunded~tlltul ofthe-gratuitv p~nsMld the IUI'lOlltlt ffiOgnlledttl dt<! O)mpa'rI:sfJnand-al~t,)h:ments-as itt M;'Irth 31. 2018 "tld Mllth)1, 2017. 

Fund SUtloli Sw- Us./tD·dfdt) 
~tAuet! Uolibait U It\Motdt 11. 2018 

IntwntC'.::nt 

Nef Amlafl.ll GlI1ntVlolU's 
TOUI~~'!r 

A;UftclIlC'tlPnon pbnAnets 
MorWityrabfe 

143 

60",",,: 

11,44,161 

l.1.44,161 

l.G3.~ 

11111,010 

1l1l.691 

34 SG.311 
34,50,311 

S415S5. 
{4,21.l3G 

1.31.M1 



b. 

Cu'ref'lt~eColot 

Contin,~nl UlbllftlH, 

CQrpgr.'e GY.l!'lnt~/St.lnd bv lettll1' of Credit 

Q.)lm.s ar,w.st Com~nv mit ;u:know~ed as Odm 
lncol7le To .. D«nand Pff'dlft! Appeal Uld R«Umtlort 
S~TuDM\JndPffl~A~.1 

Taut 

Commftme"1It, 
~. e1.~'""tcd Amount of Conuacts ft!:m«Wn; to be cxlerut.ed 

T ... ' 

V.lu..tIon 
All fhunr!a.lIIl'trum~rut n¢ lniti~l)y nt:QUIiltd >1nd ,ubn~~nw t~~~ur~ 4t bit \faWe as dtsttibed btlow: 

01. ~ bb'value-oflfWt1'tm.Ml in unquotll'd €quitySh"'~' h: me.u~d 1t tIAV. 

b. 

levtll! Quqted ",Ic~~ {un1rlju11td. h., Ktlv~ rur1ttU for Id.!mblulet1 Of notbllloo;.\tId 

11.83,2"'2 11..91,725 
256,337 3,92,3$0 

7S 59C) .$5,940 
60.'269 '9,395) 

1.111.557 oUl,W 
13AS,l43 11 SS,242 

In<!\ln Auured l~el MOtt61it-; (2.006- Indl.Jn Auurt'd; lNtS MMUlitvt2006-

'" oa 

43'lOUXl,OOO 

1~6.17.2~O 

1.S9,5]4 

c..4OS9.!6,174 

13317,22 'i!6 
lU772l,.U& 

level 2: Input~olb.erth.an tM: Ql.Ut«fPfh::!$lncl~ wI1hinlevei Ilh.tt.ue cb1.trv.ble fctthe.l.uet otn"billty,clthf:t dlr~t~\)rlftdlrt;d.tv. 
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o\ror.ount(~t, 

4J.S12.00.000 

1.S9.S34 

149-92,59,139 

20'SS4.12 091 
lSs.&7 U.2:So 

Amotml(Rs.1 



FotltiCn CurrGncy IUp, 

1he: fQ!lo~ T~b!c $hoWl F~r~iln CWTe(lC'l E~P'<I~Ul'eIln Fln,u!(ullntrum-:nt\ at the ~nd oUhc fe()Ortfn, ~kxt. 

'". ',AnUl M"tth.lal1 
......... , .. -

246,16114 ltiOl&aG,ll8 US B,SO] 
B!S,51757 SGZ91 26,305 629.23,948 40799,&&,802 

F6re1tn CUftA'ncy ScftfMritV 
n~ foUowing t"* demonstn;le ~h.e \lemitiYity to a reHOnabiy poulblt' chante In exthange r.ltet. wtth ioU ather vad-lbIes htld (Q"t.t~"t, TIICl' Im~ut on tko COInJUIrf'$ profit befor~ taxC$ b. dw to dur.ge' 1" the f.lu ulut' of 
monQ~ 3'1{.qts and Ii;ibi!tl~. 
TtMleh ht~ Amo\n'\I' f:h: 

~f.ut bta Aidt 
Tho! ~c of thec:on:~n(1 bo(rQwJ.r,g t.o lnteOl'~ rate dwnus 3.\ the eott<:>1 the reporllt\gpetiod .re ,1:$ foft0>N5: 

fnttrest lb." StfttJtMty 
Imp.&rtM Iftt~ei\ EJ~ for ~yqU on l%(~&e il\ !ntef~tRlIte 

Cre4hRld, 

1% 
-l'l' 

(96.8.11.91JI 
<}6S.71,"4 

("",OS,1S7) 
(;.4l.9/t7S1 

Credit mk Is the tl\l,: 0.11'1nl1OO41 bn to the COfllp.lny If. C.n1M11t"f 0( (o',llJter~1W t'l)" rm~na,),1 instrument faits to !n«t Its (.ontr.u:tlI&1 obi!(atiom. and .uu.e .. princ~u., Irom the ComplIlW'! n:!<1!I'r.lhle:s from rustomNt and 
Io"n~ ~nd I1lNoltlf6. 

Tht: CompJPy"l C!lPOUH'e to' ct~ rhk k lnflut!fl(~cI maW., by t~ IndkMual dt'ir.attffktks of .«h tullom~' and tnt: &~o£nphy In whkh It operatt5,. Credit ride. i-s m.a~"!.t'd thtou:h (ft1fit appt(rlats. dubl»tV", uetlU I'tmlts 
... 04 ~~V1I'{ IJt01Iltcring the "~lW(Jnhirle'5 of C\.I1.torrter-t. to whI<h the C.I)mp.lttV gnnaO'~tt t~rm1ln th~ norm.u (oun.: oft)usines" 

F'~~(Cl:mnt) 

Cuh .ardath eiluivalent1i 

O'~trn\a"(~ ilud5 
TAde arut Qthd're<I!iv~~$ 

a) rn.de l"ft:I"iw:ab~ 
fheo~nyIMMdu~lJ.,monitots lha t~nctlolt'f'l.t~ GrrliU as a,iWlst thoow~ !Hwnu", 

...... 
2931.31.64S 
2112.1'.717 
141S.67.~71 

10,1$.40-1 
6&519.73 GOl 
13105.17,616 

3602,35,546 1419114Sl 

1241.11A!JG 125258186 
1,S1.S1,SOa 119825110 

5,09,068 9631G3 
wn.S3,2S4: ~l1eM4271 

57019,5&.%13 SZm,S9.507 

The Co.mP"lttf t1oub!ish'C', an ~anc~ for fa1p.a"'nlent that tepte~nts. it£ ~lmate of e.lpc<ted lo"snin tcspcrt of ~r.tde: rle«ivob!es. The Cornp.a.nv u~s It p,02'A'~ lTWuh: to' <omputc the cAPt'(ted crc:dit km tot u.de 
rtec:MbJe,., Th~ComJ»:~ hu d(Vdo~ thiStTl~lrtA b.udonnn.tC1kald.ltll as W<:!a\ forw&rdlookktg ioform.ltlon pert"mln! to UleSSl'nl:f)t of <.redit n$1(, 

An imp,tImW:n' a.nilt.,5is. K perlotmed .. 1 adl r~ dAte' on if\ indMdtl;a.l bonis fer m<JJO( cm:nu. In adduron. ~It~ m:mb-tr of mtl'lO( r«ernbt.es tll'e SfOUf'l:d into homoget\O\lS ~ .I\d a.n~t.td for lrnp<Jitrnent 
(oft«livtoty. The (aktrt.t1on k. bi~ en ~h.ange lao\S" ""tDnt ... ! d.tt~ Thi! m3xttnum expo~ure toeredb: rkk:,,! 1he report~ <hte ~ the- cartyine va~ of euh cUl'or finlndtl Jt~t1. dI,doud en notl! 'l. The ComPoll'l1 lIou fIOl 
holeS (olLJ,(cul .. st«srity. The Comp.1ny '!'{;Imte.s the co:,c;enlT.I~" or risl; with ras.pe<:t to I,.de rt<etn~ "" Io ....... n it, cus.lomers ~ !o(:41.t'd 'n ,~tnJ jl,lt\$ditUon ,,11<1 Irn:h.lstries ~nd o~te b"e~ m 'Nf~~nt 
1,UIti;:tU 
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b) cast. al\d ash otquj",\.ents 

C.1111 .3nd c,ull e<Nlv,d~!\'s of !fiR lS.8;7.11.G.fS at M.lr<;h 11, '2018 IM,).I'~h 11,2011: INR 16,02:.lS:J..16, "'\.ITCh 31, 20l6;1~iR 74,39,11.452), The cnn "hd nuh 'C'Qutlo!knts ue hdd with ~n.\ and financial imliH.ltion 

(O\Ifiterpartles ~y;th ,ood crtdit r;,tinll. 

Uquldity R~k 

Tn.: \,!quld m.k th4t the COtn~ will ~C( ollTtCUlty in I'Jl«'ttllg 1M oblig:.ation 4,SOO.11!d with us ftnoln:l,d lIabtllU(l1.lh4t art \et~ b'( ~Irlf cam or another (1t\&m.I&J olS.1M. fh~ CQfnJUr'I"" "ppt'oilch of mJlUging 
f.qu1dlto( I~ to tolUfe. as fv as ~\~blc, thac it wiUh:r .. e wffideot t>q\lidItV to n\IUtt its lbbilltln wh~n U~ are- dol". Ulld~ both ttO~1 arm rtrQu~ col'\diUono; ..... t\haut incur1in, unaccltPtabk klu~s Of fluing: wm.;.~ to the 

(omp.my', f'C1ru\ltotion, 

M;Jfwlty ProfUeofloIM~ndOlMf'tlnancl.l1 U~.lS Or) j I M;r.rth. 201S 

Sorrowing'S 
'OfrO~ 
TnukP;Jvables 
Ol"" f1:».tld4IU.l~ 

ToUl 

50'466.07. !i57 
10628.98,39'5 

25215,00,141 
5799:.30 417 4OS1!i,09.314 

61410 S no 611:a~,01,169 

Millurltv !'rol1le: oflo:a.n'$3ndOthtr F'lNI\C:btO,lbjHt~:as cn 11 March,. ZOll 

8onn~~ 

'""­Trade:hyahle'> 
Ot~ FJnal'lCbl Lbbilitig 

Hote No: lJ Operatil'l.C Stll1'l6Jlls 
a.usln.u~t\tt: 

15l72;S4.791 
Uo141,07.13O 

1l2S7,Sl,8.1C 

11840.588 2430l,81 Sll 
28318 ».190 4C'64490..641 

Amount Rt-I 
'. ~ :AbOve.l-yurs:: :. -;- TQtil>~';:' 

5<»,;0,01.'61 
lS'76.91,.\l6 4640S,8!U21 

2'$215.00.147 
46375,39191 

lS-71S.91.4:(6 16$.462.s.1.nG 

Amount R.i.1 
r:~:..:,-'";::~.;..::):: L;·.:AbOVtt·.rt~"~ .:!:":~ '::'1"otI':.:~:::,; 

15.172.54.791 
326a4.U,.s.oG 4902G,lO,93& 

13251,41.910 
24491.24,US 

llG34 U,IlO5 10.2147,8166-l 

The Comp.t1W bu ldet\tifted buslnu~ sec.ml.:tlB IIndUitry pt~t1kc) ~,its pNnary ~~t .and gl)-OVoJphk RltT'M't\t:.u lb. leconda!y ~rMllt. aulioe'lS ~~lTIents .;)r& primarily Tritd41c, OC'fdopm~\ of ScftWiJ-U' ~nd 

Dltutbu1tOft & \Vfn.i POWtr GmvuUon etc.. 
It(vt:n~ k'.d ~u:s dl:reaty 4ttn,,", .. bl~ to 1~IfT\~fJt$ are rt'POrtt:d under Ol(.h re<portable sqment- EJ:pa.nS{!$ wtUth .11: not ~r«tl'f ~ntlflJbte 10 tilch r~pl)rtatg segment howe betn do, .. t~ on lite; b.ul, of .~ted 
rt:"C'~ of the segrn-cnt 0100 manpower efforu.. AtI oliJel ~P'ffl$es. whkh uc not tltlributa~ or .. I!oulofe to ~men!s hawe b«n tlbdoSJ.:d.u unalloubhl' expmsel. 

An.els ,,"6 li.J.bill\lc1; tmt ate dtRttJ.{ .'ttt.ribu~e or .. UaalW: ~ 'Sqmc-nU, iI~ diS(~ed undoet earn report.1M s~mt'fl\. All other ancts and ltablltie$ lt~ dktloled ,)S ~,)JlOCOlhlt'_ tllCc<i .n.ets. that ue used intefthans:e"bly 

lm~ ~&ments OIre IlOt altout~ to prim~1Y tnd s«Qnd.ry ~q;mt'nls, 

Ext-elm.»1 s,.hu (Net} 161~8,.1G,91S 83.03,968 161931,50.944 164766,16.202- 81.75.789 164847,92.0S1 

OthOl'lncome 104,65,866 104,65,366 226.49.266 22G.49 • .l66 

Totllf Rav.nLle 1G7848,46,975 8.ft~.96& 104,65,866 168036.16.810 164766.16..262 81.75.789 226~9.266 16S014,41;311 

S-cm.nt R.'Wt(PBtT) 

Pro:lit Beront tntof'!ul 
7719,91,430 16,08,577 104,65-,866 7900,G5.813 71a8.s9,1~9 21,31.126 146,3S.531 7962,26.)86 

ilnd Ta'IC 

(ntetfnt 723,32,009 16.282 9.581 124,17.872 925.74.094 10,15.442 56.083 937,OS.61'3 

Prolli::lon fot Ta)( 343,46,51S 131,650,194 

ProUt .ft .. ,.. T_", 7056,59,421 15.32,295 104.,56..285 6833.01,426 &862,$5_&]G 16,55.684 145;19,,448 689155..574 

OtMf'rnfonTl_tlon 

Se-s:msnt H.-lPd 
85279.03,780 515.82,083 131631.22.~S4 211426.08,317 85211,33,754 594,50.923 72969.23,53:2 158775.08.209 

A$:l\!:tc 

S~gn1ent Othe' 
76004.90.190 SS,Sl.220 lZ6.73,16a. 16187.14.51& 60690.79",657 69...99,810 154,42,349 60915,22.016 

A1lt:ts 

oul~nts 161283_93.,969 511,33,303 131757,95,622 293613,22,119S 14S~Z,.l3,611 "-4.50.733 73123,65,881 219690.30.225 

Sesment llabHlti«'$ 168686.98.219 213:.30,9.57 168900.29.136 102192,73,a92 38.45,250 35,18,293 102196,05,449 

Tot.' UDblHtlfl 168686.98,279 213,30.851 168900.29.13" lOZ191.78,49~ 38,45,250 35,18.293 102196.05.449 

8,l~ 01\ tlIO "maNgoem&-l\t apprClluh- ckfiMd In Ind AS tog • OjlH.atrng Seamcn~ thtt Chkf Ope:n.tH'tB ~I:t~n ~ktU' CV1.f1U,tl!1 \h1!! ~mp.tny'.s: petfOf'flQllC'll' aM .. 1l1X~~ re~C-e$ ba~ on ~11 In.:dY1.!' of 'oIllitioU$ 

~rfcrrtl~tttl' ft,(f1¢1itorc t7t bx.if\MJ '~lml'nt'. A«o:6m-tiyjm-ocmattotllut; b«n Pf~..ente-d <110f\& t~ U'l"ItnlJ.. 

Amount Ri.. 

:"~ "',~'" 'C, ',',',:;"~i'. ;CC,';:J"", 
Sl963.N.61S ]1,5968 !6 .. )1~ 167931 SO'j.;4 

1D943"i,61.S91 5:54\'2.29,0100 164341,92.051 
llS141,b7,G1& 158'271.'S5,220 19J61l2U~ 

191711.94.019 2196UG.141 l19G.90..30,215 
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N.tt" HQ.l'" •• ~'oi. (Q.IotIyl'llo/uo. u"'~ and "".6.lft"l&I'I'I..."n"".~ 
'f1It.e(o.oro~'<T,I'W'lduu... p~~olo.bol,Jlrd'ncfflfOf'T'OUcJ.A'''''~\oCI'WIoor~tJ'tI~r''......dt'II.\itfa. s.r.ull ,rodtA(4lvIln~'C"("!.fAO~IooO-UI'II"'«.l'OOtI 

I~ 

1.1 

1-1 

~p.I,JI7I.Wtt ntn .... 1fI4I ~!1N1 ~I~ .... 

~'-I'JJJJ'Wa..~$or.(tD~C1' 

.... r.t'.,.I ... ""'tM(~,..,"I'ItInt.tel'~ 14 
~I ~tr.. "'kJ'O. ~..,.aI ,.".:I Mcd:LIdl Cll.16",ikt 

o.w~, AoIl )~, akw1 ........ "'" Ihi ~untol 

lilt p.I..,.,...,.ll'll'.'o ~t"Hlkot~ru4 U'of' 

.1IIPO...."od&Yftl.l~I".6"1.., 

•.• ctl_." ~,*'eJ IhI ~old.i In 

,.....tt.r.. ~ (WIIcPla.-. ~ ~\utlloc'yolwl 

ow. .. o.owlrd ... ,dlllftn.lIM:PII'I'IOd'I bI.tI: wktJovl 

.4d11\i1M1ft'rn IO«Jii\t'd dJII6u' til.; NN.~ '1'".. .. 11 H'Id 

M~ (t\u;l(Wl,,", ... ",.10» 

IrII.t,rt\tl(l'ft.hhtC."""INII~~.NIO"'lk 

1""'~YNI" ... ht. """,",doll. ~,~ ~'''''''''''' 

HoI:t»o.J..I~: 

OP'l'.",lhl"-ft" ~1:isJ 

tM (.ooinP4AJ ~ ~t('d101cm.rl' ~ 1'IOI'I ,u.nrr!IA(M O~"llnr lNlo('f. 

nw ~rW'C1Ir'1( ~I •• "'h5",1CI vI~ IN...,.."., 'In MItdl!OU...,d "~a' ~~ lOll ... ~C .. U .. ~(1<IfL 

~,~"'" 6I\d.u}ol" Ih-I4h(LahIN'1b' v, .. LronJo ...... h the Id.luS p.lILIn We ~ .. "'..,. 

.lUI\rA ..... I.406 .. IP .... wfIl1.(ahl.-pJod'1.....t .. IIG...,b!t'LI~~~\h~II ... ~'I .... O\_..,:...,,,...I(4.II~ 

," • ,I' 1. t, :,*~.'!,:· .• '. r .. -· ..... ,·~··-
fMUW!\C": Ore' ....trwt.t"~".1I\.WIt Pt~ IIfIo~Ltr..eI.' .d...1JwoloI 

"'r:.t"t4.0CXC'T(''''\JtIl'''''rr4~'''C 

u.....a.....J. t-.to Ci.Mto ID 

""1lVftI.Ir'tHd.....,,., 
.lJ,~~t.tU.~II<'4 

H....tl '-Ud4Io tnl 

UIft-... ... 4la.1I1.14.1IkI1'w 

HIIw."""PIM'lI ..... fIII .. 
,. •• alltt&tUl.atUM/'l" 

i"'.' .... lddItbtJ 

~ .... ,., wutOIAu tlnlllfeyM a .. ",,,ttu'. I(N' 
ltur.bhtr.n,: .... 

"".~~. 
nlot44hl' 

.M""'. 
1km.a,WOoW!.Me'()cowI.of"".,... r..""',ttUmUe<I 

~ .. 'N.~"""~U"\"C'6 
~t:t1'701l.r-.<Uoll 

is"'' .nI..a~tc: JI'II'( ." 

p""~"11'.d .. I'f\,*,P""N, .. 'I'{d 
~"'''U4A&1~ Vti'l",,~''''''Jt. Urr.lIrct 

Wlln t-fo",o.o...,.. o.~ 
u.c.,.."..J ......... Wt.III" jjrr.lla.r.n~ 

Jt.,.~Jf\th .. _,\ .. -(11M ')IUoI\d.JI~CII' 

..,JI.d~t · {)oflA, h ... t'Cu. 

V"I.,(~s.-I~1Ht 

l.un.ILN~(,,~rf."""lt\-'''''''' 

0'0 .. 'h ....... """.'1 Unt. •• ed 
Cl.~VO't""rn~'ll\l>'n")v'lc'''''rtc4 
W,'rlMldlliehrt ftt'U4t 
~1.tLO .... ""Io(.\I",',,,4 

IJlIiS.,.lQ.tIOO 

lO".,.<CJQ ''',00,00) 

Jt..Oa."'" 10._ 

LL'4.0.1& I\IOJX>O 
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11.000 

' .. -
11.~,o::JO 

''','-I,COO 

UlVj.l 

'..,,. ... 10 

, "" 

19tt?.D4,6U 
1~1U1.J'1 

lO..U,..IU 
~,H.nJ 

,.n,,.!)1 

1.1 .. ..., 

".000 
,,100 

A.O.LOI) 

".OlA" 

'.~..o» L'SO,OCO 
~>O.1lO() ),:1).,.00<) 

)>>0.<>00 llO.OOO 
<~(()Q .... -

i..lO.lIXl l.IO.(J)CI 



c.} BtlI,n,," with rel,ted parties: 

Amount PlIv-bl.!t 
mtnkurnlfOidw,l~ 

Jfu('\ MC'tt~ntlflf limited 

Wrl(;a:~ 1"~t{Mnl tKt'lltcd 

oNI! ftado Impex 'mAte Umltod 

CI.llr~oyal'll Trad~tmp.t:fptNUt ltd 

If.uolMkkl}f£.ut 
ft,ud to~)(S Prt .. al~ limited 

Amount Receivable' 

flltet ~(olI\Ule limited 
$anman r,lIItkl Impo lIl1Iked 

A'~lntlfrnatbr\il1 pm.n.l.lntil~ 

~fftvDtpcm 

~I""oyant fr.dc Itflp« pru'1e ltd 
Venu1.lnvt1tmt:C\t Urnrtrsl 
ONa Trad~ ImP'f< Priv.t. tlmlllKf 
Votri~" UltudftgOtvt"!opmttnt Pf~.to Utnitil:d 

n.t CompenUlUonof iCty Mana,tlmtnt 'etJOtlntl 

~rem~4tiooofdittc.tOf.ndO;thef"membtrotkcvm,)Mgtmer1t~lU1cld\ittngtho!YNrw"~u(oUDw'$: 

:fWbolellrneOir«ror) 

IChielFtnandalOffttet 

lot,,1 

Noto No.1' 

lU6.ao,1XlO 

19886,40,761: 
111.41.000 9,61.000 

t5.ooo 
1.35,000 

8235.£9.391 49SS.l1.1S7 165-53.49,18:1 

7,11,358 

lO16.97,SOO 
3668.61.004 

31S,51,825 

)4.000 14.000 
25.000 15.000 25,000 
1<!.OOO 20.000 10,000 

25.00000 25,00 2S,OO,OOO 

10,00000 24.00000 

15.00.000 70.20.000 

H.16.0n 15.20000 

1 .... '),000 

In lhe opWon of (he So.ltU .tnd to th;Q bo1.t q( thm fu\O'.vIcd~e and be:Uttf. tlu! valU1! on realit"tio-n of Ull!" CUlfI!:nt asc&, 106M to adv~nc.cs., depo'l~ in ,he orOin.,.,. (tIU'~e 01 bmmeu will not bf: I~u tmn t~ ~tw uated In 

&taml!" Skffi, 1he IlIJbmtie; .. t:t1 ~W)u", (If \IIpp!y of t~ds & kNlees tIIrt .,}I~ not more lh;}n the v"kle.of fi.lblfitk::s a~t lilWity Wflt1cn off on .CCOU11l cd Short&,,, I ~tl!! OifftferICe I contratt ~o'm.1\tt' IQu4!1ily lHl.U::S 

C~C. 

lite COlnpcnv hito\ fe«lrni!.ed Olathe cbHn rl."<civable1./1i4biiiti!!t wah ".floU1 govdnment .. uthorities t.w/4M CU\tom thlty. VA', CC'u.lnttlm~I"IC. SAD. Unl,lWired CU(\lATa«ht itOd InwtM1(e cblm !:tc. on .:!tauat ba$l-.. and: 
~hown undf!r the IN!ad loUIS 3r AdvilflCf!1, ~nd Cttn't'nt U.b!\ntes fl11.PCcg.;rly. 

The CompaflY', o~c1lve fel C..lpit;)1 M~fUlemMt ~Io. milIlmi~:share ha~ya~e. ~f~td bu~u Cotltlntmy .n:J lUcport the grQ~hDfthe Com~ny. TMCortlp'~'jI lidemiftes. the Capiul 1'N;\Memtfltt bat.ed on a.tInual 
operati", pLuu .and Io1tt renn IllJd Clhf'l' Ilnt~iI:: lrNei.tmfl\t. planL The fuf'!dltle fequ\rerntnts. are met tMouth equity;tnd l)pt'uUne e.ad1 flol1J'l tentntC'd. 

__ e~;~~_~~~~ 
Pun:snt 
Vet1t~s IndlnUmlted 8.09 10084.76.202.91 3.86 263.52.362.02 l.M 263,52,362.02 

Subshli:ui4tS 

Indian 

Verltas Polychem Pnv4tc Umlt\!d 
4.19 5225.28.688.00 

GV Investment fln;lIn<:e: Company Urrntod 
(0.02) (21.S2,8G9.O<1J a.O?} (4.53.. 8SS.90 om 4,53,856.90 

Vent.n Agro Ventures Privati<: Umltot:d 
65.94 33488,07,91S.00 0.71 48,47,111.00 0.71 4847111.00 

VeriQ~ Agrtcom UP 0.00 7,013 .. 00 0.00 7.013.00 0.(0) 7,013.00 
Veritit5 Infra llP 0.00 17030.00 0..00 410.(0) (0.00 410.00 

V(!til.U Infra and lOgistic' Private Urruted 
0.00 (4.60.168.00 (0.04 (2.60.515.00 {O.C4 2.60.515.00 

foretan 
V~rlbJ:l America Tr~d\nR Inc 0.01 11.68.119.48 (0-00 l7,7t3.SO 0.00 27,713.50 
VeritM InleflU;UaneJl FIE 20.76 .25892,32,455.S9 97.03 6621.71,31);9,41 97.03 6621.11389.41 
Vertt.» Global Pte Umltvd 0.05 6O,33,OOS,44 (0.07 4.55,532.60) 0.01) 4.S5,532.60 
HlIted Infern,uionlll FtE 0.00 23.352.00 

Total 124712..'3.759 6324.1L599 &824.71 .. 599 
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........ 
PurdM~ pf stotk·;n.tnde 

f1nW(4Costs 

Oth~r E lpeftS¢S 

Oeferted lalli 

AdiustfMIU of w6t-rYean 

3':;04)15,,679 

S099i.7ti,247 
11850.11.441 
1951,71.Z14 

$.09:.05& 
43,11,&91 

2&8.19.000 

-&.1)026,2Q,936 

24102.11:3,517 

lS112,54.791 
U2S7.31.S1Q 

1&8.&0.5&8. 
1l • .cS,242 

• ikms thAt 'MU not be redM.dfied to prcfit or lou 
• tncom~tu rd.ltJnc. toltem\ tMl will not be-ted&1.1ifkd 10 ()fofiC 

U.6'l',OS9 

143.01,711 

276.20.115 

70.sa,.839 
914,13,4S1 

J60,8-I,l82 

1%,030,422 

149 

as!OS.t4.G17 
12;'369.13,532 

154.67,1.12 

19,11.113 

34:04.9S.679 

s.:0172,U.2.S4 
4850.11."'42 

1951,S2.soa 
s,.~.OGB: 

43,17.891 

~68,IO,DOO 

490:!6.20,'l16 
24301,&3,531 

lS3?2,S4.J501 

1'32S1.81.810 

lB8AO,~8a 

11.8-$.242 

SS(i.7ti.H,SSl 

3U07.71.l46 

109.9S,051 

34.16,S90 

41692.63,8&8 

8691,G9,13a 

2793,26,730 

9.65,753 

1105,19,S'17 

26B,10,ooo 

lS472.&9,9-W 
1&56),49.19.1 

15:Z$5.4,.601 
10055.55,£00 

2JO,27.120 

11,4$,:03 

l~l2.1Sa 

300,0';,,,) 

27S.Z0,21& 
1O.SI.!.H 

917.05,619 

1160.19,\45 

1%.01,412 

1u..5O,62:6 

AmounltR~) 

8S616,H.SSl 
38607.71,146 

211.48.679 

34.16590 

41lBS,94.271 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
CIN: L23209MH1985PLC035702 

Website: www.veritasindia.net 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
Members ofVERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Friday, 28th day September, 2018 
at 11 :45 AM at 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 
020 to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31 st March, 2018, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Statutory Auditors thereon; and 

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2018, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Statutory Auditors thereon. 

2. To declare final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2018. 
3. To appoint Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi (DIN: 02000411), Non-Executive Director, who retires 

by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
4. To Regularise the Appointment of Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar (DIN: 01193544) as a 

Whole-Time Director of the Company: 
To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approval of the Board and subject to provisions of Section 196,197,198, 
203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, 
approval of the members ofthe Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Praveen 
Bhatnagar (DIN: 01193544) as a Whole-time Director of the Company with effect from 
12th June, 2018 for a term of five years (12th June, 2018 to 11 th June, 2023) upon such terms 
and conditions which is hereby approved and sanctioned with authority to the Board of 
Directors to alter and vary terms and conditions ofthe said appointment in such manner as 
may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar." 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 10th August, 2018 

Registered Office: 
Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 
70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 
Phone no: 91 222275 5555/6184 0000 
Email-corp@veritasindia.net 
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By Order of the Board of Directors 

Sd/­
Prasad A Oak 

Vice President - Legal & 
Company Secretary 



NOTES: 

a) In terms of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meeting, an explanatory statement setting out the material facts concerning business to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is annexed and forms part of this Notice. 

b) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELFfHERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY. 

c) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as 
a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty in number and holding in the aggregate 
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
A member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital carrying voting 
rights may appoint single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any 
other member or Shareholder. The instrument appointing the proxy shall be deposited at 
the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the Annual General Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, 
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution / authority, as may be applicable. Proxy 
form is annexed to this Notice. 

d) Proxy holder shall prove his/her identity with a valid photo identity card at the time of 
attending the Meeting. 

e) An instrument appointing proxy is valid only if it is properly stamped as per the applicable 
law. Blank or incomplete, unstamped or inadequately stamped, undated proxies or proxies 
upon which the stamps have not been cancelled, will be considered as invalid. If the 
Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings ofa Member, the proxy which is 
dated last will be considered as valid. If such multiple proxies are not dated or bear the 
same date without specific mention of time, all such proxies shall be considered as invalid. 

t) During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the 
meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a Member can inspect the proxies 
lodged, at any time during the business hours of the company between 10:00 a.m. to 1 :00 
p.m. provided that not less than three days' notice in writing of the intention so to inspect 
is given to the company. 

g) Any Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the 
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 113 of Companies Act, 2013 are requested to 
send a duly certified copy of their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney authorizing their 
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

h) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first 
holder in the order names as per the Register of Members ofthe Company will be entitled 
to vote. 

i) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from Saturday, 22nd September, 2018 to Friday, 28th September, 2018 (both days inclusive) 
for the purpose of annual book closure. 
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j) Members, Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring Attendance Slip 
duly completed and signed as per their specimen signature registered with the Company 
for admission to the meeting hall. Members who hold shares in demat form are requested 
to bring their DP ID and Client ID / Folio No. for identification. 

k) Members holding the shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all the 
changes pertaining to bank their details such as bank account number, name of the bank 
and branch details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, 
change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their 
depository participant (DP). Members are encouraged to utilize the Electronic Clearing 
System (ECS) for receiving dividends. 

I) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to send/notify any changes in their 
addresslbank mandate, if any, to the Company or the Company's Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent. 

m) Members are requested to hand over the enclosed Attendance Slip duly signed in with their 
specimen signature(s) registered with the Company for admission to the meeting hall. 
Members who hold shares in demat form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID 
numbers for identification. 

n) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory (by circular 
dated March 21, 2013) for all listed companies to use the bank account details furnished by 
the Depositories and the bank account details maintained by the Registrar and Transfer 
Agents for depositing of dividend through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) to investors 
wherever ECS and bank details are available. In the absence of ECS facilities, dividend 
warrants will be issued to the members with bank details printed thereon as available in the 
Company's records. 

0) The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for securities market transactions and/or 
off-market transactions or private transaction involving the transfer of shares in physical 
form has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore 
requested to submit the copy oftheir PAN to their Depository Participant with whom they 
are maintaining their demat accounts in case they have not submitted their details till date. 
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company's 
Registrar and Transfer Agents. 

p) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, 
Members holding shares in single name may avail the facility of nomination in respect of 
shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form may avail this facility by 
sending a nomination in the prescribed Form No. SR-13 duly filed to the Registrar and 
Transfer Agents, Universal Capital Private Limited. Members holding shares in electronic 
form may contact their respective Depository Participant(s) for availing nomination 
facilities. 

q) As provided in the Section 124 sub section (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of 
dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of 
transfer to the unpaid dividend account is required to be transferred to the Investor 
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Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). The list of transfer of shares which are due to 
transfer to IEPF Authority and the list of unclaimed dividend for the year 2011 is updated 
on our website viz. www.veritasindia.net/index.asp 

r) Members, who have not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s), for any dividends declared 
after the aforesaid dividends, are requested to forward their claims to the Registrar and 
Transfer Agents, Universal Capital Services Limited or the Company at its registered office 
address. It may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the IEPF, as 
above, no claim shall lie against the Company.

s) Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Act read with the relevant Rules made 
thereunder, companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through 
electronic mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail addresses either with 
the Company or with the Depository. Accordingly, the Notice of the Meeting along with 
the Annual Report 2017-2018 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose 
e­mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless any Member has 
requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e­
mail addresses, physical copies are being sent through permitted modes at their addresses 
registered with the Company.

t) Members may also note that the Notice of3Yd AGM and the Annual Report 2017-2018 
will also be available on the Company's website www.veritasindia.net and also on the 
website of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com. Physical copies of the same will also be 
available at the Company's Registered Office for inspection during business hours on 
working days except for Saturday and Sundays up to the date of the Meeting.

u) In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi (DlN: 
02000411), Director, retires by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. Accordingly, a briefresume of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi and 
information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by the Institute of 
Companies Secretaries of India is attached hereunder, along with the details of the 
companies in which he is Director/Chairman and the Board committees in which he is 
chairman/member.

v) The route map for the venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed at the end of this notice. 

Voting through the electronic means 

1. Pursuant to Section 108 of Act read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and the provisions of
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 the
Company will provide remote e-voting as an option to members to exercise their vote
on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting. All business
to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting can be transacted through the electronic
voting system. The facility of casting the votes by the members using the electronic
voting system from a place other than venue of the Annual General Meeting ("remote
e-voting") will be provided by Central Depository Securities Limited (CDSL).
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It may be noted that this e-voting facility is optional. The e-voting facility will be 
available at the link www.evotingindia.com during the following voting period: 

Commencement of e-voting From 9:00 a.m. of 25th September, 2018 

End of e-voting Up to 5:00 p.m. of 27th September, 2018 

Remote e-voting shall not be allowed beyond 5:00 p.m. of 27th September, 2018. 
During the e-voting period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date may cast their vote 
electronically. The cut-off date for the purpose of remote e-voting is Friday, 21st  
September, 2018. 

2. The Members who do not have access to remote e-voting facility may send duly
completed Ballot Fom1 (enclosed with the Notice) to the Scrutinizer appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company. Members who have cast their votes by remote e­
voting or by Ballot Papers prior to the AGM may also attend the Meeting but shall not
be entitled to cast their vote again. Any person who becomes a member of the Company
after dispatch of the Notice of the Meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e.
Monday, 24th September, 2018 have the option to request for physical copy of the Ballot
Form by sending an e-mail to corp@veritasindia.net or by mentioning their Folio/ DP
ID and Client ID No. Ballot Forms received after 5:00 p.m. on 27th September, 2018
will be treated as invalid.

3. The "cut-off date" for determining the eligibility for voting either through electronic
voting system or ballot process is fixed at 24th September, 2018. During this period,
shareholders' holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
the cutoff date shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting. The remote e­
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

4. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 24th September, 2018.

5. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

6. Members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through remote e-voting or by
Voting facility provided at the Meeting. If a Member cast vote by more than one mode,
then voting done through remote e-voting shall prevail and the voting through voting
facility provided at the Meeting shall be considered as invalid.

7. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the
Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 21st 

September, 2018 may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@cdsl.co.in or to the Share Transfer Agent.

However, if you are already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then you can 
use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your 
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password, you can reset your password by using "Forgot User DetailslPassword" 
option available on www.evoting.csdl.com. 

8. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Mansi Damania 
(Membership No. FCS 7447), of M/s. JMJA & Associates LLP, Practising Company 
Secretary as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

9. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first 
count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e­
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses who are not in the employment of the 
Company and shall make, not later than two working days of the conclusion of the 
Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, 
if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign 
the same and declare the results forthwith. 

10. The results of the voting on the resolution at the AGM shall be declared by the 
Chairman or his authorized representative or anyone of the Directors of the Company 
on/or after the date of the AGM within the prescribed time limits and shall be 
communicated to the stock exchanges. 

11. Pursuant to Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the results once declared 
along with Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 
www.veritasindia.net and the website ofCDSL www.evotingindia.com. 

12. The Scrutinizers decision on the validity of remote e-voting and ballot process will be 
final. 

PROCESS FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR E-VOTING: 

Members are requested to follow the instructions below to cast their vote through e-voting: 

A. In case of members receiving e-mail from CDSL [for members whose email IDs 
are registered with the CompanylDepository Participants(s)]: 

a) Open the internet browser by typing the following URL: https:/! 
www.evotingindia.com 

b) Click on Shareholder - Login 
c) If you are already registered with CDSL for e-voting then you can use your existing 

user ID and password. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by 
using "Forgot User Details/Password" option available 011 www.evotingindia.com. 

d) If you are logging in for the first time, follow the steps given below: 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 
PAN* Enter your 10 digits' alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

-Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the last 8 
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digits of the sequence number which is mentioned in address label as Sr. No. 
affixed on Annual Report, in the PAN field. 
-In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 
O's before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL 
letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number 100 then enter 
RAOOOOOIOO in the PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account. 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the 
Bank company records for the said de mat account. 
Details 

-Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details 
are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id I 
folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

e) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 
t) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company 

selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 
'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used 
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

g) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

h) Once the home page of remote e-voting opens, click on remote e-Voting: Active Voting 
Cycles. 

i) Select "EVSN" (E-voting Sequence Number) for Veritas (India) Limited. 
j) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens. 
k) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the 

same the option "YESINO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as decided by you. 
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that 
you dissent to the Resolution. 

I) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details. 

m) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", 
else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote. 

n) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

0) You can also take a print of the votes casted by clicking on "Click here to print" option 
on the Voting page. 

p) Note for Institutional Shareholders (other than individual, HUF, NRI etc.) 
./' Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian 

are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates . 
./' A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 

be emailedtohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
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./ After receiving the login details, they have to create compliance user using the admin
login and password. The Compliance would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on .

./ The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote . 

./ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice (whose e-mail ID is not
registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s))

a) Initial password is provided as per the format given below at the bottom of the
Attendance Slip for the AGM: EVSN (E-Voting Sequence Number) USER ID
PASSWORD/PIN

b) Please follow all steps in SI No. (a) to SI No. (p) above to cast vote.
c) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently

Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting user manual for shareholders available at the
downloads section of www.evotingindia.com or write an email to
he! pdesk.evoti ng@cdsl ind ia.com.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

In respect ofItem No: 4 

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory 
statement sets out all material facts relating to the businesses mentioned under item No.4 of 
the accompanying Notice 

Board of Directors after recommendation from Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(NRC) vide resolution passed on 12th June, 2018 approved appointment of Mr. Praveen 
Bhatnagar as Whole-Time director of the Company in accordance with the provisions 
contained in Section 196 ad 197 read with Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 for a term of 
five years in place of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi who resigned from the position of Whole-Time 
Director of the Company and would continue on the Board as a Non-Executive Director with 
effect from 12th June, 2018. 

The Company has received notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. 
Praveen Bhatnagar satisfying his candidature as Director of the Company and is not 
disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and has given his consent to act as a Whole Time Director. Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar 
satisfies all the conditions set out in Section 196(3) of the Act and part-I of Schedule V of the 
Act, for being eligible for his appointment. 

Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar, will be eligible for gross remuneration ofRs. 48,00,000/- p.a. including 
perquisites and benefits. It includes contribution to provident fund, medical, leave travel 
allowances. All the perquisites and benefits would be subject to the applicable Company policy, 
and any changes from time-to-time. 
Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar will be drawing Salary from Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the 
Company, Veritas Polychem Private Limited. 

Notice have been received from a member of the Company, along with a deposit of requisite 
amount has been received, proposing the appointment of Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar as a Whole­
Time Director of the Company. 

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel or the relatives except Mr. Praveen 
Bhatnagar is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution in relation to the appointment of Whole­
Time Director, for the approval of the members of the Company. 
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Brief resume of Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar 

Name of Director Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar 
Date of Birth 02/0311959 
Date of Appointment 12/06/2018 
Qualification Chemical Engineer and Post Graduate from 

Indian Institute from Foreign Trade 
Expertise in specific functional areas Petrochemical and polymer industry and 

Trading 
Board Membership of other companies i 
Membership/Chairmanship of Committees NIL 
of other Companies 

Mr. Bhatnagar aged 59 years, is a Chemical Engineer from Delhi University and a post graduate 
from Indian Institute of Foreign Trade (IIFT). Mr. Bhatnagar has three decades of experience 
in the polymer and petrochemical industry. He also has experience in trading of petro chemica is. 
He has worked with Godrej soaps Limited, Indian Rayon & Industries Ltd. (A V Birla), Oriental 
Carbon & Chemicals Ltd and LG Chern Limited and also has an expertise to set up the 
manufacturing facility or unit. 
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ANNEXURES to the Notice 

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 

For other details such as number of shares held, number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year, remuneration drawn in respect of the aforesaid directors, please refer to the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

1. 
Name of Directors Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi 
Date of Birth 05-08-1974 
Date of Appointment 5th December, 2007 
Qualification B.Com 
Expertise in specific functional areas Has rich and varied experience in the field 

of trading in iron and steel products 
Board Membership of other companies as on Relight Infra Private Limited 
31't March, 2018 Palak Agency Private Limited 

Blackstone Multi Trading Limited 
Hazel Mercantile Limited 
Harshamey Software Private Limited 

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees 2 
of other Companies as on 31" March, 2018 

For other details such as number of shares held, number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year, remuneration drawn in respect of the aforesaid directors, please refer to the 
Corporate Governance Report. 
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VERIT AS (INDIA) LIMITED 
CIN: L23209MH1985PLC035702 

Reg. Office: Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 40000 I 
Tel No.: +912222755555/61840000, Fax No.: +912222755556/61840001, 

Website: www.veritasindia.net Email: corp@vertiasindia.net 

FORM NO. MGT-ll 

PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member 
Registered Address 
Email Id 
Folio No/ Client Id I DPID I 

I/We, being the member (s) of ________ shares of the above-named company, 
hereby appoint 

1. Name 
Address 
E-mailld Signature 
Or falling him 

2. Name 
Address 
E-mailld Signature 
Or falling him 

3. Name 
Address 
E-mailId Signature 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Thirty­
Third Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2018 at 
11 :45 am at 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 
020 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Reso. Description For Against 
No. 

Ordinary Resolution 

1. Adoption of audited Standalone and Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 5t March, 2018 together with 
the reports of Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon 
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2. Declaration of final dividend for the financial year 
ended 31 st March, 2018 

3. Appointment of Mr. Saurabh Sanghvi (DIN 
02000411), Non-Executive Director, who retires by 
rotation 

Special Business 

5. Regularisation of Appointment of Mr. Praveen 
Bhatnagar as a Whole-Time Director 

Signed this __ day of ___ 2018 Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Signature of Shareholder: ______ _ 

Signature of Proxy holder(s): _____ _ 

Notes: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting. 

2. It is optional to put a "P" in the appropriate column against the Resolution indicated 
in the Box. [[you leave the 'For" or 'Against' column blank against Resolutions, your 
Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

3. The Proxy-holder shall prove hislher identifY at the time of attending the Meeting. 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
eIN: L23209MH 1985PLC035702 

Reg. Office: Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 
Tel No.: +91 2222755555/61840000, Fax No.: +91 2222755556/61840001, 

Website: www.veritasindia.net Email: corp@vertiasindia.net 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

THIRTY-THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON FRIDAY, 28 th September, 2018 
at 11:45 am at 20 Downtown Hall, 2nd Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Churchgate, 
Mumbai 400 020 

Folio No.1 DP ID & Client 

ID* 

No. of Shares held 

* Applicable in case shares are held in electronic form. 

I/We certifY that I/We am/are registered memberl proxy for the registered member of the 
Company. 

I/We hereby record my presence at the THIRTY-THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
of the Company to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2018 at 11:45 am at20 Downtown Hall, 
2nd Floor, Eros Theatre Building, Church gate, Mumbai 400 020. 

Signature ofMemberlProxy 

Member's 1 Proxy's name in BLOCK letters 

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand over it at the entrance of the meeting hall. 
Joint Shareholder(s) may obtain additional attendance slip at the venue of the meeting. 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
ClN: L23209MH 1985PLC035702 

Reg. Office: Veritas House, yd Floor, 70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 
Tel No.: +91 2222755555/61840000, Fax No.: +912222755556/61840001, 

Website: www.veritasindia.net Email: corp@vertiasindia.net 

BALLOT FORM 

(In lieu of remote e-voting facility for 33rd Annual General Meeting being held on 28th 

September, 2018) 

l. Name and registered address of the Sole/first 
name Member 

2. Name of the joint holder(s) if any 

" Registered Folio No.1 DP ID No. & Client .). 

IDNo. 

4. Number of shares held 

II We, hereby exercise my/our vote in respect ofthe business to be transacted at the 33rd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 28th September, 2018 set out in the 
Notice dated lOth August, 2018 of the Company convey my/our assent (FOR) or dissent 
(AGAINST) to the resolutions by placing the tick mark (P) in the appropriate box below: 

Resolution Description No. of I/we I/we dissent 
No. Shares assent to to the 

held the resolution 
resolution (AGAINST) 
(FOR) 

Ordinan: Business: 

1. Adoption of audited Standalone and 
Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year 
ended 31 st March, 2018 together with 
the reports of Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon 

2. Declaration of final dividend for the 
financial year ended 3pt March, 
2018 

3. Appointment of Mr. Saurabh 
Sanghvi (DIN: 02000411), Non-
Executive Director, who retires by 
rotation. 
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S~ecial Business: 

5. Regularisation of Appointment of. 
Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar as a Whole-I 
time Director 

(Signature of the Member) 

Place: ----

Date: ----

Note: Please read the instruction carefully printed in the Notice of the AGM before completing 
this form 
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The Route map of AGM Venue is as given below: 

4!$'< C~'1QWk 

.., ... 
'" .,. 

... St. Thorn"", 
Cinema Ca1he<:lral Church ... 

Govt Of Maharastra <!! 
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If undelivered, please retum to: 

Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. 
UNIT: Veritas (India) Limited 
21, Shakil Niwas, 
Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple, 
Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093. 




